Public Document Pack

:
E
§ of Windsor &
2 | Maidenhead
NOTICE
OF
MEETING

WINDSOR AREA DEVELOPMENT
MANAGEMENT PANEL

will meet on

WEDNESDAY, 8TH JANUARY, 2020
At 7.00 pm
in the
CONFERENCE ROOM - YORK HOUSE, WINDSOR

TO: MEMBERS OF THE WINDSOR AREA DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL

COUNCILLORS CHRISTINE BATESON, JOHN BOWDEN (VICE-CHAIRMAN),
DAVID CANNON (CHAIRMAN), WISDOM DA COSTA, JON DAVEY, KAREN DAVIES,
DAVID HILTON, NEIL KNOWLES, JULIAN SHARPE, SHAMSUL SHELIM AND AMY TISI

SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS

COUNCILLORS CLIVE BASKERVILLE, MANDY BRAR, GERRY CLARK,

CAROLE DA COSTA, ANDREW JOHNSON, LYNNE JONES, SAYONARA LUXTON,
GARY MUIR, HELEN PRICE, SAMANTHA RAYNER AND JOHN STORY

Karen Shepherd — Head of Governance - Issued: 23 December 2019

Members of the Press and Public are welcome to attend Part | of this meeting. The agenda is available on the Council’s
web site at www.rbwm.gov.uk or contact the Panel Administrator Wendy Binmore 01628796251

Accessibility - Members of the public wishing to attend this meeting are requested to notify the clerk in advance of any accessibility
issues

Fire Alarm - In the event of the fire alarm sounding or other emergency, please leave the building quickly and calmly by the nearest
exit. Do not stop to collect personal belongings and do not use the lifts. Do not re-enter the building until told to do so by a
member of staff.



http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/

Recording of Meetings —In line with the council’s commitment to transparency the public part of the meeting will be audio
recorded, and may also be filmed and broadcast through the online application Periscope. If filmed, the footage will be available
through the council’s main Twitter feed @RBWM or via the Periscope website. The audio recording will also be made available on
the RBWM website, after the meeting.

Filming, recording and photography of public Council meetings may be undertaken by any person attending the meeting. By
entering the meeting room you are acknowledging that you may be audio or video recorded and that this recording will be in the
public domain. If you have any questions regarding the council’s policy, please speak to the Democratic Services or Legal
representative at the meeting.




ITEM

AGENDA

PART |
SUBJECT

PAGE

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

To receive any apologies for absence.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To receive any Declarations of Interest.
MINUTES
To confirm the minutes of the previous meeting.

PLANNING APPLICATIONS (DECISION)

To consider the Head of Planning’s report on planning applications received.

Full details on all planning applications (including application forms, site
plans, Objections received, correspondence etc.) can be found by accessing
the Planning Applications Public Access Module at
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/pam/search.jsp

Key:

APP = Approval

CLU = Certificate of Lawful Use

DD = Defer and Delegate

DLA = Defer Legal Agreement
PERM = Permit

PNR = Prior Approval Not Required
REF = Refusal

WA = Would Have Approved

WR = Would Have Refused

19/00063/FULL - STEVENS YARD, KIMBERS LANE FARM, OAKLEY
GREEN ROAD, WINDSOR SL4 4QF

Proposal: Extension to existing maintenance building and showman’s store
Recommendation: PERM

Applicant: Mr Stevens — PWS Rides Ltd

Member Call-in: Clir Coppinger

Expiry Date: 22 January 2020

19/01555/FULL - DATCHET COMMON, HORTON ROAD, DATCHET,
SLOUGH

Proposal: Change of use of land to the stationing/parking of motor vehicles
and siting of a porta-cabin (retrospective).

15-30

31-44



http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/pam/search.jsp

Recommendation: REF
Applicant: Mssrs Loveridge and Giles
Member Call-in: Clir Muir

Expiry Date: 2 September 2019

19/02007/FULL - LEGOLAND WINDSOR RESORT, WINKFIELD
ROAD, WINDSOR SL4 4AY

Proposal: Redevelopment of Adventure Land including the erection of new
buildings, ride and play equipment, hard and soft landscaping with associated
infrastructure, following demolition of various existing buildings.
Recommendation: PERM

Applicant: Legoland Wiindsor Park Ltd

Member Call-in: N/A

Expiry Date: 18 October 2019

19/02017/FULL - LAND AT DATCHET COMMON, HORTON ROAD,
DATCHET, SLOUGH

Proposal: Use of the land as a Gypsy and Traveller site consisting of 9no.
residential pitches 5no. Amenities blocks, 1no. Warden blocks, play area,
entrance gates and associated parking.

Recommendation: REF

Applicant: Mssrs Giles and Loveridge

Member Call-in: Clir Larcombe

Expiry Date: 1 November 2019

19/02073/FULL - THAMES VALLEY ATHLETICS CENTRE,
POCOCKS LANE, ETON, WINDSOR SL4 6HN

Proposal: Side extension to the existing building to provide an additional
squash court

Recommendation: REF
Applicant: Mr Fenwick
Member Call-in: N/S

Expiry Date: 29 October 2019

19/02733/FULL - 63 THE AVENUE, WRAYSBURY, STAINES TW19
SEY

45-76

77 -102

103 - 120

121 -136




10.

Proposal: Application for demolition of existing dwelling and outbuilding and
replacement with new four bedroom dwelling and car port using existing
access

Recommendation: REF

Applicant: Mr Marston

Member Call-in: Clir Bateson

Expiry Date: 29 November 2019

ESSENTIAL MONITORING REPORTS (MONITORING)

To note the Essential Monitoring reports.

137 - 142







Agenda Item 2

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985

In accordance with the requirements of the Local Government (Access to Information)
Act

1985, each item on this report includes a list of Background Papers that have been
relied

on to a material extent in the formulation of the report and recommendation.

The list of Background Papers will normally include relevant previous planning decisions,
replies to formal consultations and relevant letter of representation received from local
societies, and members of the public. For ease of reference, the total number of letters
received from members of the public will normally be listed as a single Background
Paper,

although a distinction will be made where contrary views are expressed. Any replies to
consultations that are not received by the time the report goes to print will be recorded
as

“Comments Awaited”.

The list will not include published documents such as the Town and Country Planning
Acts

and associated legislation, Department of the Environment Circulars, the Berkshire
Structure Plan, Statutory Local Plans or other forms of Supplementary Planning
Guidance,

as the instructions, advice and policies contained within these documents are common
to

the determination of all planning applications. Any reference to any of these documents
will be made as necessary under the heading “Remarks”.

STATEMENT OF THE HUMAN RIGHTS ACT 1998

The Human Rights Act 1998 was brought into force in this country on 2nd October 2000,
and it will now, subject to certain exceptions, be directly unlawful for a public authority to
act in a way which is incompatible with a Convention right. In particular, Article 8
(respect

for private and family life) and Article 1 of Protocol 1 (peaceful enjoyment of property)
apply to planning decisions. When a planning decision is to be made however, there is
further provision that a public authority must take into account the public interest. In the
vast majority of cases existing planning law has for many years demanded a balancing
exercise between private rights and public interest, and therefore much of this authority’s
decision making will continue to take into account this balance.

The Human Rights Act will not be referred to in the Officer’s report for individual
applications beyond this general statement, unless there are exceptional circumstances
which demand more careful and sensitive consideration of Human Rights issues.



MEMBERS’ GUIDE TO DECLARING INTERESTS IN MEETINGS
Disclosure at Meetings

If a Member has not disclosed an interest in their Register of Interests, they must make the declaration of
interest at the beginning of the meeting, or as soon as they are aware that they have a DPI or Prejudicial
Interest. If a Member has already disclosed the interest in their Register of Interests they are still required to
disclose this in the meeting if it relates to the matter being discussed.

A member with a DPI or Prejudicial Interest may make representations at the start of the item but must not
take part in the discussion or vote at a meeting. The speaking time allocated for Members to make
representations is at the discretion of the Chairman of the meeting. In order to avoid any accusations of taking
part in the discussion or vote, after speaking, Members should move away from the panel table to a public area
or, if they wish, leave the room. If the interest declared has not been entered on to a Members’ Register of
Interests, they must notify the Monitoring Officer in writing within the next 28 days following the meeting.

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs) (relating to the Member or their partner) include:

e Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain.

e Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit made in respect of any expenses occurred in
carrying out member duties or election expenses.

e Any contract under which goods and services are to be provided/works to be executed which has not been
fully discharged.

o Any beneficial interest in land within the area of the relevant authority.

e Any licence to occupy land in the area of the relevant authority for a month or longer.

e Any tenancy where the landlord is the relevant authority, and the tenant is a body in which the relevant
person has a beneficial interest.

e Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where:
a) that body has a piece of business or land in the area of the relevant authority, and
b) either (i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the total issued
share capital of that body or (ii) the total nominal value of the shares of any one class belonging to the
relevant person exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class.

Any Member who is unsure if their interest falls within any of the above legal definitions should seek advice
from the Monitoring Officer in advance of the meeting.

A Member with a DPI should state in the meeting: 1 declare a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in item x
because xxx. As soon as we come to that item, | will leave the room/ move to the public area for the
entire duration of the discussion and not take part in the vote.’

Or, if making representations on the item: ‘I declare a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in item x because xxx.
As soon as we come to that item, | will make representations, then | will leave the room/ move to the
public area for the entire duration of the discussion and not take part in the vote.’

Prejudicial Interests

Any interest which a reasonable, fair minded and informed member of the public would reasonably believe is so
significant that it harms or impairs the Member’s ability to judge the public interest in the item, i.e. a Member’s
decision making is influenced by their interest so that they are not able to impartially consider relevant issues.

A Member with a Prejudicial interest should state in the meeting: ‘1 declare a Prejudicial Interest in item x
because xxx. As soon as we come to that item, | will leave the room/ move to the public area for the
entire duration of the discussion and not take part in the vote.’

Or, if making representations in the item: 1 declare a Prejudicial Interest in item x because xxx. As soon as
we come to that item, | will make representations, then | will leave the room/ move to the public area for
the entire duration of the discussion and not take part in the vote.’

Personal interests

Any other connection or association which a member of the public may reasonably think may influence a
Member when making a decision on council matters.

Members with a Personal Interest should state at the meeting: ‘I wish to declare a Personal Interest in item x
because xxx’. As this is a Personal Interest only, | will take part in the discussion and vote on the
matter. 38



Agenda Iltem 3

WINDSOR AREA DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL

WEDNESDAY, 4 DECEMBER 2019

PRESENT: Councillors Christine Bateson, David Cannon (Chairman),
Wisdom Da Costa, Jon Davey, Karen Davies, David Hilton, Neil Knowles,
Julian Sharpe, Shamsul Shelim and Amy Tisi

Also in attendance: Councillors Carole Da Costa and Helen Price

Officers: Andy Carswell, Victoria Gibson, Adam Jackson, Rachel Lucas and Ashley
Smith

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies were received from Clir Bowden.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Clir Da Costa — declared a personal interest in items 7 and 8 as he knew the registered
speakers. He stated that he was attending Panel with an open mind.

Clir Hilton - declared a personal interest in items 4 and 6 as his wife was a member of
Sunninghill and Ascot Parish Council, which had considered both applications. In addition he
stated that he had been a parish councillor when item 4 was discussed. He stated that he was
attending Panel with an open mind.

Clir Davey — declared a personal interest in item 7 as he knew the registered speaker. He
stated that he was attending Panel with an open mind.

Clir Bateson — declared a personal interest in item 11 as her husband had received a pension
from British Airways Trust Ltd, and the receipts had passed to her following his death. She
stated that the proposals would not affect her pension in any way, and stated that she had
been advised she would be able to take part in the discussions on this item.

Clir Tisi — declared a personal interest in item 8 in that she had previously discussed her
opinions on the allocation of sites in the Borough Local Plan, including this application site,
although this was before she had been elected as a councillor. She stated that she was
attending Panel with an open mind.

Clir Sharpe - stated for the purposes of openness and clarity that his wife was chairman of
Sunninghill and Ascot Parish Council, although he had no involvement with this council.

MINUTES

RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY: That the minutes of the meeting held on November 6%
2019 be approved.

ORDER OF BUSINESS

RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY: That the order of business as detailed in the agenda be
varied.

19/01755/FULL - SQUIRES GARDEN CENTRE, MAIDENHEAD ROAD, WINDSOR
SL4 5UB
9




S5AZ

19/01755/FULL
Squires Garden
Centre,
Maidenhead

Road, Windsor
SL4 5UB

Erection of 37 dwellings including the re-location of
existing access along Maidenhead Road with associated
parking, internal circulation, public open space,
landscaping and related infrastructure.

A motion to refuse the application for the reasons listed in
Section 13 of the officer report, and for the additional reason
that the design, bulk and scale of the proposals and the
layout of the landscaping was contrary to policy DG1 and
paragraph 127 of the NPPD, was proposed by Clir Hilton.
This was seconded by Clir Davey.

The Panel voted unanimously to REFUSE the
application, subject to the wording of the additional
reason for refusal being agreed between Clir Hilton, the
Chairman, and the Head of Planning.

A motion to refuse the application, but without any additional
reasons for refusal, was proposed by Clir Davey but was not
seconded.

(The Panel was addressed by Martin Hall, objector, and
Geoff Wilde, on behalf of the agent)

19/01513/FULL - SG AUTOPOINT, 437 - 441 ST LEONARDS ROAD, WINDSOR SL4

19/01513/FULL

S G Autopoint,
437 - 441 St
Leonards Road,
Windsor SL4
3DT

Construction of 50 bedroom hotel

A motion to refuse the application, for the reasons listed in
Section 13 of the officer report with the exception of reason 1,
which should be removed, was proposed by Clir Tisi. This was
seconded by Clir Hilton.

The Panel voted unanimously to REFUSE the application.
(The Panel was addressed by David Rennie, objector, Tudor

Marsden-Huggins, the applicant, and Andrew Ransome, on
behalf of the agent.)

19/01714/FULL - SITE OF FORMER 61 TO 63 DEDWORTH ROAD, WINDSOR SL4

19/01714/FULL

Site of Former 61
To 63 Dedworth
Road, Windsor
SL4 5AZ

Mixed use development with retail unit at ground floor
and 13 x apartments above, with access, car parking,
servicing and landscaping following demolition of
existing buildings (Part Retrospective)

A motion to approve the application, subject to the conditions
listed in section 13 of the officer report, was proposed by Clir
Bateson. This was seconded by ClIr Cannon.

A named vote was carried out. Three Councillors voted in
favour of the motion; three Councillors voted against the
motion; and four Councillors abstained. The Chairman used
his casting vote in favour of approving the application.

10




The Panel voted to APPROVE the application.

(The Panel was addressed by Andrew Middleton, objector,
David Lomas, on behalf of the agent, and Councillor Mrs Da
Costa)

19/01464/FULL -

HENLY AND BEHARRAL HOUSES & LYNWOOD

COURT,

LYNWOOD VILLAGE, RISE ROAD, ASCOT

House Including
The Cottage And
The Bungalow,
London Road,
Ascot

A motion to refuse the application, as per the reasons listed in
section 12 of the officer report but subject to reason 1 being
amended to say chapter 127 of the NPPF, was proposed by
Clir Sharpe. This was seconded by Clir Knowles.

The Panel voted unanimously to REFUSE the application.

(The Panel was addressed by Robert Lester, objector, and
Robin Wood, on behalf of the Parish Council.)

19/01924/FULL - 9-11 IMPERIAL ROAD WINDSOR

19/01924/FULL

9-11 Imperial
Road, Windsor

Construction of x2 houses and x14 apartments following
demolition of the existing buildings

A motion to approve the application, subject to the conditions
listed in section 13 of the officer report, was proposed by Clir
Knowles. This was seconded by ClIr Bateson.

A named vote was carried out. Eight Councillors voted in
favour of the motion; one Councillor voted against the motion;

11

19/01464/FULL Construction of 4 two-bedroom extra care units,
additional staff/resident parking and revised refuse
Henly And | storage/collection facilities, following the demolition of 2
Beharral Houses | residential blocks (44 residential units) and the alteration
And Lynwood | of the internal floor space of the existing care home to
Court, Lynwood | increase the number of care bedrooms from 93 to 102.
Village, Rise
Road, Ascot A motion to approve the application, subject to the conditions
listed in section 13 of the officer report, was proposed by Clir
Bateson. This was seconded by Clir Shelim.
A named vote was carried out. Nine Councillors voted in
favour of the motion and one Councillor voted against the
motion.
The Panel voted to APPROVE the application.
(The Panel was addressed by Robin Wood on behalf of the
Parish Council, and John Sneddon on behalf of the agent.)
19/01701/FULL - SANDRIDGE HOUSE, INCLUDING THE COTTAGE & THE
BUNGALOW, LONDON ROAD, ASCOT
19/01701/FULL 33 No. dwellings, with associated parking and
landscaping following demolition of existing buildings.
Sandridge



and one Councillor abstained.

The Panel voted to APPROVE the application.

(The Panel was addressed by Glen Batchelar, objector.)

CONTINUATION OF MEETING

At this point in the meeting, and in accordance with Rule of Procedure Part 4A C25.1 of the
council’s constitution, the Chairman called for a vote in relation to whether or not the meeting
should continue, as the time had exceeded 9.30pm.

Upon being put to the vote, those present voted in favour of the meeting continuing.

RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY: that the meeting continue after 9.30pm to conclude the
outstanding business on the agenda.

19/02073/FULL - THAMES VALLEY ATHLETICS CENTRE, POCOCKS LANE, ETON,
WINDSOR SL4 6HN

19/02073/FULL Side extension to the existing building to provide and
additional squash court

Thames Valley

Athletics Centre, | The Panel agreed to defer the item to the next meeting, in

Pococks Lane, | order to clarify the acceptability of the flood voids at the

Eton, Windsor | application site.

SL4 6HN
(The Panel was addressed by Grant Price, on behalf of the
applicant.)

Clir Davies left the meeting at 10pm.

19/02416/FULL - WINDSOR DIALS, ARTHUR ROAD, WINDSOR SL4 1RS

19/02416/FULL Alterations to the existing roof structures to create an

additional office floor, creation of new entrance lobbies
Windsor Dials, | and core areas and refurbishment of the elevations and
Arthur Road, | public realm to buildings 1 and 2 Windsor Dials.

Windsor SL4 1RS

A motion to approve the application, subject to the conditions
listed in section 12 of the officer report, was proposed by Clir
Shelim. The motion was seconded by Clir Davey.

The Panel
application.

voted unanimously to APPROVE the

(The Panel was addressed by Chris Moore, on behalf of the
agent.)

ESSENTIAL MONITORING REPORTS (MONITORING)

Members noted the contents of the reports.

The meeting, which began at 7.00 pm, finished at 10.07 pm

12




13



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 4

ROYAL BOROUGH OF WINDSOR & MAIDENHEAD
PLANNING COMMITTEE

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL PANEL

8 January 2020 ltem: 4

Application 19/00063/FULL

No.:

Location: Stevens Yard Kimbers Lane Farm Oakley Green Road Oakley Green Windsor SL4
4QF

Proposal: Extension to existing maintenance building and showman's store

Applicant: Mr Stevens - PWS Rides Ltd

Agent: Mr Philip Watts

Parish/Ward:  Bray Parish/Bray Ward

If you have a question about this report, please contact: Antonia Liu on 01628 796034 or at
antonia.liu@rbwm.gov.uk

1. SUMMARY

1.1 It is established that the lawful use of the land is for the purposes of maintenance and storage of
travelling showmen’s equipment; ancillary repair and parking of lorries, rides and caravans; use
of the paddock for equestrian purposes; and use for the stationing of caravans / mobile homes for
residential purposes. The proposal is for extension to an existing maintenance and storage
building adjacent to the eastern boundary of the site to create a second maintenance unit.

1.2 Following negotiation, the proposed footprint of the extension has been reduced by 208m2 and
the overall volume by 1501m3.

1.3 The proposal is considered to be inappropriate development in the Green Belt in accordance with
paragraph 145 of the NPPF. However, it is considered that there is a case of very special
circumstances that would justify the development.

1.4 It is considered that there is no undue harm to existing trees on site; character and appearance of
the site and local surrounds; neighbouring amenity; highway safety and parking; flood risk and
sustainable drainage and ecology.

15 In accordance with paragraph 11 of the NPPF, the tilted balance is engaged. For decision making
this means approving development proposals any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly
and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in this Framework
taken as a whole. However, such assessment are considered to be academic as Officers are of
the view that if this application is determined in accordance with the normal test under section
38(6) of the 2004 Act the proposal is in general conformity with the Development Plan overall and
that there are no material considerations of sufficient weight to justify refusal.

It is recommended the Panel grants planning permission with the conditions listed in
Section 13 of this report.

2. REASON FOR PANEL DETERMINATION

o The Council’s Constitution does not give the Head of Planning delegated powers to determine
the application in the way recommended; such decisions can only be made by the Panel

o At the request of Councillor Coppinger if the recommendation is to grant the application to
ensure that the increase in size is acceptable within the Green Belt

15



3.1

3.2

4.1

5.1

5.2

5.3

DESCRIPTION OF THE SITE AND ITS SURROUNDINGS

The site measures approximately 4.4ha and comprises of a residential dwelling, outbuildings and
hardstanding located at the southern end of the site with open grassland to the north. Following
an enforcement  appeal public inquiry  (ref: APP/T0355/C/14/2226708 and
APP/T0355/X/14/2227138, April 2016) it was established that the lawful use of the land was for
purposes of maintenance and storage of travelling showmen’s equipment; ancillary repair and
parking of lorries, rides and caravans; use of the paddock for equestrian purposes; and use for
the stationing of caravans / mobile homes for residential purposes.

Access to the site is via a single track lane measuring approximately 220m in length leading off
Oakley Green Road, a classified road (B3024). To the west of the site is a detached dwelling
(EImfield) while to the east is a cluster of buildings at Willow Farm in residential use including
Willow Farmhouse which is a Grade 1l listed16th century dwelling. Beyond these sites are arable
fields. The site and immediate surrounds have been identified as a settled farmed sands and
clays landscape character area in the Council’'s Landscape Character Assessment.

KEY CONSTRAINTS

The entire site is located in Metropolitan Green Belt and to the north, parallel to the northern
boundary of the site, is a public footpath (Bray/52/3).

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSAL AND ANY RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

The proposal is for an extension to an existing maintenance and storage building adjacent to the
eastern boundary. This maintenance and storage building was retrospectively approved in 2011,
ref: 11/00537/FULL. During the course of this application the proposal has been amended by
reducing the size of the extension and it is this scheme to be determined.

The proposal also includes the demolition of another maintenance and storage building which is
located adjacent to the southern boundary. This building is subject to an appeal with the Planning
Inspectorate against an Enforcement Notice for the material change of use to the land to a mixed
use comprising a dwellinghouse, outbuildings and hardstanding. The requirements of the notice
are to cease the use of land and building identified for the repair of vehicles and are now
registered to the landowner or PWS Rides Ltd, removal of all vehicles from the land stored in
connection with the vehicle repair business, and removal of all tools, apparatus, structures,
containers and other vehicle maintenance paraphernalia from the land and building used in
connection with the vehicle repair business.

Reference Description Decision

417173 Erection of a dwellinghouse and detached | Approved — 06.12.1985
garage

417873 Use of land and buildings for the breeding | Approved — 09.01.1986
and rearing of horses and ponies

89/01445/FULL Erection of 12 stables with office, toilets | Approved — 27.03.1990
and grooms quarters

92/01034/FULL To erect two storey and single storey rear | Approved — 18.08.1992
extensions

01/37876/CLU Certificate of Lawfulness for mixed use | Refused — 12.12.2002
comprising residential use and use for the
storage for four fairground rides, four

16



lorries and six caravans
11/00537/FULL Retention of an outbuilding and | Approved —21.04.2011
hardstanding area (used for the storage
and repair of funfair rides and equipment)

12/02113/FULL Change of use of part of agricultural land | Refused — 12.09.2012
to hardstanding. Retrospective
14/01225/CLU Certificate of Lawfulness to determine | Refused —03.07.2014

whether the existing use of the land as
mixed use comprising residential use and | Appeal Dismissed
ancillary storage of rides, lorries and
caravans is lawful

DEVELOPMENT PLAN
Adopted Royal Borough Local Plan (2003)

The main strategic planning considerations applying to the site and the associated policies are:

Issue Adopted Local Plan Policy
Green Belt GB1, GB2,
Character and Appearance DG1, E10
Warehousing Development El
Highways P4, T5
Trees N6

These policies can be found at
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/downloads/download/154/local plan documents and appendices

MATERIAL PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
National Planning Policy Framework Sections (NPPF) (2019)

Section 2 — Achieving Sustainable Development
Section 4 — Decision Making

Section 6- Building and Strong, Competitive Economy
Section 9 — Promoting Sustainable Transport

Section 12 — Achieving Well Designed Place

Section 13 — Protecting Green Belt Land

National Design Guide

This document was published in October 2019 and seeks to illustrate how well-designed places
that are beautiful, enduring and successful can be achieved in practice. It forms part of the
Government’s collection of planning practice guidance and should be read alongside the
separate planning practice guidance on design process and tools. The focus of the design guide
is lo tool at layout, from, scale, appearance, landscape, materials and detailing. It further
highlights ten characteristics help which work together to create its physical Character, these are
context, identify, built forms, movement, nature, public spaces, uses, homes and buildings,
resources and life span.

Borough Local Plan: Submission Version

17


https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/downloads/download/154/local_plan_documents_and_appendices

Issue Local Plan Policy
Green Belt SP1, SP5
Character and Appearance SP2, SP3
Employment Use ED1, ED3
Neighbouring Amenity EP1, EP4
Sustainable Transport IF2
Trees NR2
Flood Risk NR1

Borough Local Plan: Submission Version Proposed Changes (2019)

Issue Local Plan Policy
Green Belt SP1, QP5
Character and Appearance QP1, QP3
Employment Use ED1, ED3
Neighbouring Amenity EP1, EP4
Sustainable Transport IF2
Trees NR3
Flood Risk NR1

The NPPF sets out that decision-makers may give weight to relevant policies in emerging plans
according to their stage of preparation. The Borough Local Plan Submission Document was
published in June 2017. Public consultation ran from 30 June to 27 September 2017. Following
this process the Council prepared a report summarising the issues raised in the representations
and setting out its response to them. This report, together with all the representations received
during the representation period, the plan and its supporting documents was submitted to the
Secretary of State for independent examination in January 2018. The Submission Version of the
Borough Local Plan does not form part of the statutory development plan for the Borough.

In December 2018, the examination process was paused to enable the Council to undertake
additional work to address soundness issues raised by the Inspector. Following completion of
that work, in October 2019 the Council approved a series of Proposed Changes to the BLPSV.
Public consultation ran from 1 November to 15 December 2019. All representations received will
be reviewed by the Council to establish whether further changes are necessary before the
Proposed Changes are submitted to the Inspector. In due course the Inspector will resume the
Examination of the BLPSV. The BLPSV and the BLPSV together with the Proposed Changes are
therefore material considerations for decision-making. However, given the above both should be

given limited weight.

These documents can be found at:
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/blp

Supplementary Planning Documents
¢ RBWM Landscape Character Assessment
Other Local Strategies or Publications

Other Strategies or publications relevant to the proposal are:
o RBWM Parking Strategy

More information on these documents can be found at:
https://www3.rbwm.qgov.uk/info/201027/planning guidance

CONSULTATIONS CARRIED OUT

18


https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/blp
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/info/201027/planning_guidance

Comments from interested parties

4 occupiers were notified directly of the application. The planning officer posted a notice
advertising the application at the site on 21 March 2019 and the application was and the
application was advertised in the Local Press on 28 March 2019.

2 letters were received objecting to the application, including the Oakley Green, Fifield and
District Community Association, summarised below. An additional letter was received in relation
to matters being dealt with under Enforcement and Appeal to the Planning Inspectorate ref:
16/50242/ENF. This has not been reported on.

Where in the report this is
considered

Comment

The proposal is inappropriate development in the Green Belt
and would have significant impact on openness due to scale,
siting and design. No very special circumstances has been
demonstrated.

Section 9(i) and (viii)

The scale of the proposed building is excessive and will have
an adverse impact on the immediate environs

Section 9 (iii) and (iv)

Restrictions on use are ignored on a continuing basis, as are
the restricted hours of work. The increase in activities will
result in worsening noise and other nuisances.

Section 9 (iv)

The use and proposal is industrial in character, at odds with
the rural / residential character of the area and the Green
Belt.

Section 9 (iii)

Increase in flooding Section 9 (vi)

There are a number of businesses and uses unlawfully
operating on the site — a motor repair business for example,
which the council have had to take action over.

An application should be
determined on its own merits.

Consultees

Where in the report

Comment this is considered

Consultee

Arboriculture
Officer

Raises objections as building would incur into the
Root Protection Area of T1 and T2 which are category
B and A trees respectively, to the detriment of their
health and longevity. There appears to be ample room
on site to modify the layout to redefine the footprint to
take it outside of the Root Protection Area.

(comments on
original scheme)

Section 9 (ii)

Bray Parish
Council

Recommends refusal as the proposal represents
inappropriate development in the Green Belt, and the
scale, siting and design would impact on openness.
The proposal fails to demonstrate that there are very
special circumstances due that would outweigh the
harm to the Green Belt.

(comments on
original scheme)

Section 9(i) and (viii)

Environmental
Protection

No objection subject to conditions relating to
restricing hours of maintenance and repair,
construction hours, collection during construction and
demolition; and informatives relating to dust and
smoke control.

Section 9 (iv) and a
condition relating to
hours of maintenance
is recommended.
Hours of construction
and collection during

19




9.1

9.2

construction is
included as an
informative as they
are not considered to
pass the test of
necessity for a
planning condition.

disposed of via a ‘main sewer’ but there is no public
surface water sewer within the vicinity of the area,
therefore clarification is also required on how surface
water runoff will be dealt with.

Highways No objection subject to conditions relating to a | Section 9 (v), and
Consultant construction management plan and informatives | conditions
relating to damage to footways and verges, damage to | recommended.
the highway, and no equipment materials on public
highways.
Lead Local Clarification required on the increase in permeable | Section 9 (vi)
Flood area created as part of the proposal. It is also noted
Authority that the applicant has stated that surface water will be

EXPLANATION OF RECOMMENDATION

The key issues for consideration are:

i Green Belt

ii Trees

iii Character and Appearance

iV Neighbouring Amenity

% Highways Safety and Parking

Vi Flood Risk and Sustainable Drainage

Vi Ecology

viii The Case for Very Special Circumstances
iX Planning Balance

[ Green Belt

Appropriate Development

The entire site lies within the Metropolitan Green Belt and the fundamental aim of Green Belt
policy is to prevent urban sprawl by keeping land permanently open. Paragraph 145 of the NPPF
states that new buildings in the Green Belt would be regarded as inappropriate development with
some exceptions. Local Plan policy GB1 also sets out appropriate development in the Green Belt.
However, while the Development Plan comprises of the Local Plan, policy GB1 was prepared in
accordance with the cancelled PPG2 Green Belts and not entirely consistent with the NPPF.
Therefore, Local Plan policy GB1 should not be given full weight and the NPPF, as a more up-to-
date expression of Government intent, should be given significant weight as a material

consideration.

20




9.3

9.4

9.5

9.6

9.7

9.8

9.9

In this context, exception (c) listed in paragraph 145 of the NPPF is ‘the extension or alteration of
a building provided that it does not result in disproportionate additions over and above the size of
the original building’. In this case the building to be extended has not been previously extended
and the proposal would result in the following:

Footprint of Original Building 497 square metres
Volume of Original Building 3694 cubic metres
Percentage Increase
Footprint of Extension 361 square metres 72%
Volume of Extension 2763 cubic metres 75%

It is generally considered that a 50% increase from the original building would be proportionate
additional, which would equate to an extension with a footprint of approximately 249 square
metres and a volume of approximately 1847 cubic metres, which the proposal exceeds.
Therefore, the proposal would be a disproportionate extension over and above the original
building and therefore inappropriate development in the Green Belt. Paragraph 143 of the NPPF
states that inappropriate development in the Green Belt which is, by definition, harmful to the
Green Belt and should not be approved except in very special circumstances. This is considered
in section 9(viii) below.

Other Harm to the Green Belt

In terms of any other harm to the Green Belt, as inappropriate development in the Green Belt the
proposal is by definition harmful to its openness, and considered to conflict with one of the
purposes of the Green Belt, namely to assist in safeguarding the countryside from encroachment’
which forms the third purpose outlined in paragraph 134 of the NPPF.

i Trees

Local Plan policy N6 states that new development should wherever practicable allow for the
retention of existing trees, include appropriate tree planting and landscaping, and where the
amenity value of trees outweigh the justification for development planning permission may be
refused.

The Council’s Arboriculture Officer raised concerns over the original scheme as the original
scheme infringed upon the root protection area (RPA) of T1 and T2 (Hybrid Black Poplar) which
would damage the future viability of these two trees. T1 is identified as category B and T2 is
identified as category A which is trees of notable quality. However, following negotiation and the
reduction in footprint of the proposal it is considered that the proposal would not result in undue
harm to T1 and T2. If minded to approve it is recommended that submission and approval of tree
protection details and implementation are secured by condition.

iii Character and Appearance

Local Plan policy DG1 resists development which is cramped or which results in the loss of
important features which contributes to local character. This policy accords with the NPPF which
states that good design is a key aspect of sustainable development and indivisible from good
planning, and planning permission should be refused for development of poor design that fails to
take the opportunity available for improving the character and quality of an area and the way it
functions.

The site lies within an area largely characterised by flat to gently undulating arable fields and
pastureland, which is largely open and bounded by hedgerow and trees with urban ribbon
development off Oakley Green Road. The proposed development is sited within the envelope of
developed land, so would not lead to encroachment or expansion into the rural character beyond.

21



9.10

9.11

9.12

9.13

9.14

9.15

The scale of the proposed building is not considered to be overly dominant to the existing
buildings on site, or disproportionate to the plot. The proposed building is also reflective of the
form, design and materials of the existing maintenance and storage building which it is sited next
to. Overall, it is considered to be in keeping with the site and its surrounds. The bulk of the site is
set approximately 190m back from Oakley Green Road and due to this distance there is limited
inter-visibility between the site and the public highway. As such, there would be no undue harm to
the streetscene. There is a public footway running parallel to the northing boundary, but sited
over 300m away. As such, it is not considered that the proposal would result in any undue harm
to visual amenity of users of the public right of way.

iv Neighbouring Amenity

Paragraph 127 of the NPPF states that planning decisions should ensure that development
achieves a high standard of amenity for existing and future users. The nearest neighbouring
property is at Willow Farm to the east of the site at a distance of approximately 77m. To the
south of the site are Braywood Cottages that front onto Oakley Green Road which are
approximately 217m away. Given the separation distance, it is not considered that the proposed
building would result in undue loss of light, visual intrusion or loss of privacy to these properties.

Concerns have been raised by local residents over noise and disturbance. The site comprise of
land and buildings was for purposes of maintenance and storage of travelling showmen’s
equipment; ancillary repair and parking of lorries, rides and caravans. The proposal would result
in an enlarged maintenance and storage area to enable a second ride to be worked on
simultaneously and so there would be some small intensification of use. However, due to the size
of the proposed building, it is not considered that the increase in activity together with the
separation distance from the nearest neighbouring properties would result in undue noise and
disturbance subject to a condition restricting hours of work of maintenance and repair within the
building.

Local Residents have raised the issue of nhon-compliance with the lawful use of the site and hours
of operation. It is advised that the enforcement process is the most appropriate way of dealing
with non-compliance of such conditions, and refusal of this planning application on additional
noise and disturbance on the basis of non-compliance with the existing development or potential
non-compliance with the proposal development would be unreasonable.

The access would run adjacent to Braywood Cottages, but this is similarly true of the existing
situation and it is not considered the proposal would result in an increase in trips to and from the
site that would result in harm to neighbouring amenity (see section 9 (v)).

\Y Highway Safety and Parking

Local Plan policy T5 requires all development proposals to comply with adopted highway design
standards, policy P4 requires all development proposals to accord with adopted car parking
standards. As a material consideration, paragraph 109 of the NPPF states that development
should only be prevented or refused on highways grounds if there would be an unacceptable
impact on highway safety, or the residual cumulative impacts on the road network would be
severe.

Trip Generation

There is no change in the existing use and, while the proposal would result in a small
intensification of this use, due to the size of the proposal it is not considered to result in an
significant number of additional movements in the context of the daily and seasonal fluctuations
in flow which would result in a severe cumulative impact on the road network.

Access

22



9.16

9.17

9.18

9.19

9.20

9.21

9.22

9.23

There are no changes to the existing access to the site or significant change in the intensity of
use, and so there are no concerns over highway safety that over and above the existing
situation.

Parking

No parking layout has been submitted, but it is noted there would be sufficient space on site to
accommodate requirements. As such, it is not considered that the proposal would result in
indiscriminate parking on the public highway to the detriment of highway safety.

Vi Flood Risk and Sustainable Drainage

Paragraph 158 of the NPPF aims to steer development to areas with the lowest risk of flooding
(sequential test). Paragraph 158 of the NPPF goes on to state that development should not be
allocated or permitted if there are reasonably available sites appropriate for the proposed
development in areas with a lower risk of flooding. In accordance with the Flood Maps for
Planning published by the Environment Agency, the proposal is located in Flood Zone 1, which is
land assessed as having less than 1 in 1000 annual probability of river or sea flooding. As such, it
is considered that the proposal is sited in an area with the lowest risk of flooding and therefore
passes the sequential test.

Paragraph 159 of the NPPF states that if it is not possible for development to be located in zones
with a lower risk of flooding, the exception test may have to be applied. With reference to Table 2:
Flood Risk Vulnerability Classification in the NPPG, buildings used for general industry, storage
and distribution is classed as less vulnerable and in accordance with Table 3: Flood Risk
Vulnerability and Flood Zone Compatibility, less vulnerable development is appropriate in Flood
Zone 1.

When determining any planning applications, paragraph 163 of the NPPF states that local
planning authorities should ensure that flood risk is not increased elsewhere. A Flood Risk
Assessment has not been submitted. However, located in Flood Zone 1 the site has a less than 1
in 1000 annual probability of river or sea flooding, and the Council’'s Strategic Flood Risk
Assessment confirms the site is not in an area susceptible to groundwater, sewer flooding and
other sources. As such, the proposed site has a low risk of being affected by flooding.
Furthermore, the proposal would result in only an increase of approximately 111sqm in footprint.
While the proposal measures approximately, 361 square metres, the applicant also proposes to
demolish an existing maintenance and storage building sited towards the southern boundary of
the site, which had a footprint of approximately 250sgm.

Overall, given the low risk of flooding from coastal, fluvial or other sources, together with the
proposed footprint and remaining undeveloped land within the site and wider surrounds, it is
considered that the proposal is unlikely to have a significant impact on flood storage capacity or
flood flows.

The Lead Local Flood Authority had requested confirmation on the increase in impermeable area
created as part of the proposal, and clarification on how surface water runoff will be dealt. At the
time of writing, no response from the applicant on this issue has been forthcoming. However, due
to the size of the proposal and the amount of green space within the site it is considered that
there is scope to accommodate a satisfactory sustainable drainage scheme. Therefore, in this
particular case, if minded to approve it is recommended that a sustainable drainage scheme is
secured by condition.

Vil Ecology

As a material consideration Paragraph 175 states that if significant harm to biodiversity resulting
from a development cannot be avoided, adequately mitigated or as a last resort compensated for

23



9.24

9.25

9.26

9.27

9.28

9.29

then planning permission should be refused. Furthermore, protecting and enhancing the natural
environment forms part of the ‘Environmental’ dimension of ‘Sustainable Development’.

The site lies within 5km and within the zone of influence of Windsor Forest and Great Park, a
Special Area of Conservation (SAC) which is a European Designated site. The primary reason for
designation is the significance of old acidophilous oak woods, range and diversity of saprxylic
invertebrates, and fungal assemblages. The Natura 2000 data form for Windsor Forest and Great
Park reports that the main threats relate to forest and plantation management and use; air
pollution, invasive non-native species; and interspecific floral relations. Where any proposal is
likely to have a significant effect on a European site either alone or in combination with other
plans or projects, the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 requires an
appropriate assessment to be made in view of that site’s conservation objectives. Paragraphs
175 and 176 of the NPPF state that development resulting in the loss or deterioration of Special
Areas of Conservation should be refused unless there are wholly exceptional reasons and a
suitable compensation strategy exists. In this case due to the size of the proposal and distance of
the proposal from the SAC it is not considered to have a significant effect on Windsor Forest and
Great Park, therefore an appropriate assessment is not required.

viii The Case for Very Special Circumstances

It is considered that the proposal would not result in a proportionate addition over and above the
original building. As outlined in section 9(i) it generally considered that a 50% increase from the
original building would be proportionate additional, which would equate to an extension with a
footprint of approximately 249 square metres and a volume of approximately 1847 cubic metres.
This is considered to be a reasonable fall-back position.

However, the applicant has also proposed to demolish an existing maintenance and storage
building sited towards the southern boundary of the site. This building to be demolished has a
footprint of approximately 250sgm and a volume of approximately 937 cubic metres.

The proposal would be comparable in volume to an increase of 50% of the original building and
the allowance following the demolition of the existing maintenance and storage building sited
towards the southern boundary of the site. The footprint of the proposal would be below the
combined increase of 50% and allowance following demolition. This is summarised in the table
below:

Footprint Volume
50% of original building 249 square metres 1847 cubic metres
Building to be demolished 250 square metres 937 cubic metres
Total 499 square metres 2784 cubic metres
The proposal 361 square metres 2763 cubic metres

Furthermore, considering the visual impact on openness, Local Plan policy GB2(a) states that the
proliferation of small structures within a commercial holding will not normally be acceptable
because of their harmful visual effect and where possible buildings within a single unit should be
consolidated into one area. For this reason, the consolidation of development in one location and
the reduction in the spread of development within the site is considered to be beneficial to the
visual impact on openness.

Paragraph 143 of the NPPF states that inappropriate development in the Green Belt which is, by

definition, harmful to the Green Belt and should not be approved except in very special
circumstances (VSC). Paragraph 144 of the NPPF states that VSC will not exist unless the

24



9.30

9.31

9.32

9.33

10.

10.1

11.

111

potential harm to the Green Belt by reason of inappropriateness, and any other harm resulting
from the proposal, is clearly outweighed by other considerations.

In accordance with paragraph 144 of the NPPF substantial weight is given to any harm to the
Green Belt. It is considered that there is no other harm from the development. However, given the
fallback position of the 50% increase of the original building together with the allowance from the
demolition of the existing maintenance and storage building to the south, and benefit to the visual
impact on openness from the consolidation of development on site, it is considered that the harm
to the Green Belt is outweighed by other considerations. Therefore, VSC has been established to
justify the development.

As the proposal is only acceptable in the Green Belt and flood risk subject to the demolition of the
exiting building to the south of the site, if minded to approve it is recommended that its demolition
is secured by condition.

iX Planning Balance

Paragraphs 10 and 11 of the NPPF set out that there will be a presumption in favour of
Sustainable Development. The latter paragraph states that:

For decision-taking this means:

c) approving development proposals that accord with an up-to-date development plan without
delay; or
d) where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies which are most
important for determining the application are out-of-date, granting permission unless:
i. the application of policies in this Framework that protect areas or assets of particular
importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed; or
ii. any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the
benefits, when assessed against the policies in this Framework taken as a whole.

Footnote 6 of the NPPF (2019) clarifies that section d(i) of paragraph 11 of the NPPF (2019) is
not applied where ‘policies in this Framework that protect areas or assets of particular importance
provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed’. This includes land designated as
Green Belt and areas at risk of flooding. For the reasons set out in section 9 (i) and (viii) it is
considered that the proposed development is inappropriate development in Green Belt but there
is no clear reason for refusing the proposed development on this basis. For the reasons set out in
Section 9 (vi) it is considered that the site is not at risk of flooding. Accordingly, the so-called
‘tilted balance’ is engaged. The assessment of this and the wider balancing exercise is set out
below in the conclusion.

COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY (CIL)

The Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead implemented its Community Infrastructure Level
(CIL) to help deliver the infrastructure needed to support development in the area in September
2016. In accordance with the adopted CIL charging schedule the development is CIL liable, but
the chargeable rate is £0 per square metre.

CONCLUSION

Paragraph 11 of the Framework explains how the presumption in favour of sustainable
development applies. As set out in paragraph 9.5 it is considered that in the instance the tilted
balance should be applied. For decision making this means approving development proposals
unless any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the
benefits, when assessed against the policies in this Framework taken as a whole. However, such
assessment are considered to be academic. This is because for reasons set out above, Officers
are of the view that if this application is determined in accordance with the normal test under

25



12.

13.

section 38(6) of the 2004 Act the proposal is in general conformity with the Development Plan
overall and that there are no material considerations of sufficient weight to justify refusal.

APPENDICES TO THIS REPORT

o Appendix A — Site Location Plan
o Appendix B - Proposed Plans and Elevations
o Appendix C — Existing Building to be Demolished

CONDITIONS RECOMMENDED FOR INCLUSION IF PERMISSION IS GRANTED

The development hereby permitted shall be commenced within three years from the date of this
permission.

Reason: To accord with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
(as amended).

The materials to be used in any exterior work must be of a similar appearance to those used in
the construction of the exterior of the existing building to be extended. The development shall be
carried out in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: In the interests of the visual amenities of the area. Relevant Policies - Local Plan DG1
Prior to any equipment, machinery or materials being brought onto the site, details of the
measures to protect, during construction, the trees shown to be retained on the approved plan,
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved
measures shall be implemented in full prior to any equipment, machinery or materials being
brought onto the site, and thereafter maintained until the completion of all construction work and
all equipment, machinery and surplus materials have been permanently removed from the site.
These measures shall include fencing in accordance with British Standard 5837. Nothing shall be
stored or placed in any area fenced in accordance with this condition and the ground levels within
those areas shall not be altered, nor shall any excavation be made.

Reason: To protect trees which contribute to the visual amenities of the site and surrounding
area. Relevant Policies - Local Plan DG1, NG6.

Within one month of the substantial completion of the development the building shown to be
removed on drawing ref: 753-501 shall be demolished in its entirety and all materials resulting
from such demolition works shall be removed from the site.

Reason: To prevent the undesirable consolidation of development on the site having regard to its
Green Belt location. Relevant Policies - Local Plan GB1, GB2,

The new shed hereby approved shall be used only for the storage of funfair rides and equipment
used/owned by travelling showpeople who live at this application site and for the ancillary repairs
of such rides and equipment. The building shall be completely removed from the application site
when it is no longer required for such purposes.

Reason: In the interests of the amenities of neighbouring properties, and to safeguard the Green
Belt from inappropriate uses. Relevant Policies Local Plan GB1, GB2, DG1.

Works of maintenance and repair within the building hereby approved shall take place only
between the hours of 0800 and 1800 on Mondays to Fridays, between the hours of 0900 -1300
on Saturdays and at no time whatsoever on Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.

Reason: In the interests of the amenities of neighbouring properties

No development shall commence until details of all finished slab levels in relation to ground level
(against OD Newlyn) have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The development shall be carried out and maintained in accordance with the approved
details.

Reason: In the interest of the visual amenities of the area. Relevant Policy Local Plan DG1.
Works on site shall not commence until details of the proposed means of disposal of surface
water drainage in line with the non-statutory technical standards for sustainable drainage
systems have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
development shall be carried out using the approved scheme of drainage.

Reason:  The works are required prior to the commencement to ensure that the site is

26



1

adequately drained and to prevent the risk of flooding in the locality and to comply with the NPPF.
The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the approved plans
listed below.

Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the approved
particulars and plans.

Informatives

The attention of the applicant is drawn to the Berkshire Act 1986, Part Il, Clause 9, which
enables the Highway Authority to recover the costs of repairing damage to the footway or grass
verge arising during building operations.

The attention of the applicant is drawn to Section 59 of the Highways Act 1980 which enables
the Highway Authority to recover expenses due to extraordinary traffic.

No builders materials, plant or vehicles related to the implementation of the development should
be parked/stored on the public highway so as to cause an obstruction at any time.

applicant is advised to follow guidance with respect to dust control: London working group on Air
Pollution Planning and the Environment (APPLE): London Code of Practice, Part 1: The Control
of Dust from Construction; and the Building Research Establishment: Control of dust from
construction and demolition activities.applicant should be aware the permitted hours of
construction working in the Authority are as follows:

- Friday 08.00 - 18.00

08.00 - 13.00

working on Sundays or Bank Holidays.

The Royal Borough receives a large number of complaints relating to construction burning
activities. The applicant should be aware that any burning that gives rise to a smoke nuisance is
actionable under the Environmental Protection Act 1990. Further that any burning that gives rise
to dark smoke is considered an offence under the Clean Air Act 1993. It is the Environmental
Protection Team policy that there should be no fires on construction or demolition sites. All
construction and demolition waste should be taken off site for disposal. The only exceptions
relate to knotweed and in some cases infected timber where burning may be considered the best
practicable environmental option. In these rare cases we would expect the contractor to inform
the Environmental Protection Team before burning on 01628 68 3830 and follow good practice.

There should be no collections from or deliveries to the site during the demolition and
construction stages outside the hours of 0800 hours and 1800 hours on Monday to Friday, 0800
hours to 1300 hours on Saturday and at no time on Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays. Reason:
To protect the amenity of the adjoining properties.

27



Appendix A — Site Location Plan

s
3 R
g 20 21 H]
v167«b- e S e————— g; - ————————————————————— e — " - - ‘767@1"
f
i
i
H
i
i
"'/J-
-"’#
.«""‘"
i
= | (- 66
65 165
64 64
S
63 |- 63
. l
ﬂ62mm s \1620&"
S HEEELLEL I
N
KIMBERS LANE FARM
OAKLEY GREEN ROAD
OAKLEY GREEN 0S MasterMap 1250/2500/10000 scale
SL4 4QF 22 August 2016, 1D: CM-00555198
www.centremapshive co.uk
1:2500 scale print 2t Ad, Centre: 402038 E, 176454 N
©Crown Copyright and database rights 2016 OS [
100019980 Data

28



Appendix B — Proposed Floor Plans and Elevations

-

ozt gesL

2
L l.l._ ey tamay

6930 Juiesy v
- ) g

ONITTING JONYNILNAVI C3S0d0%
-

407 715 'HOSONM
‘OVOY NZZWD ATTHVO ‘TS 3NV SUITNEN
]

0669 978¢ 020} 0+ PL

0T 6L puouipry
uespenip 3uL ‘97
Moy PL0
yauns
4T Sunuelg umo) uzuumy
NTOININNTISNMO LINUNNND MMM

a1 O1GT SURG 0N BRI SRR 5T T

Suruue[d umoy

JUEBUUND

SN61 PGSTIgEIEY

Nowwien | 3tve [womusy

R
T ST O HEFONEI I 34 0 SERSD 00

5 1HOMNADOD

W80z IS

ue|d 400} pasodoid

1m0
SR S bt xan e )

W80z IS
uofena|3 apig pasodold

—

WB0Z1 3TWS
UogeA3[3 3pig pasodold

I

w800z} 3TV0S
uojeAs[d Jeay pasodold

uoijea[3 juos4 pasodoid

SIN
uoReso s

29



Appendix C — Existing Building to be Demolished

wriBoowt

823 VL) E

SNITING ITVUOLS SNLSOE
-

0% 1715 'WOSTNI
‘090 NZ3HE AR T 3N SSER0
s

06E9 5¥aE 020} 4 AL

0T ShL puS
umipenD 24 97
o Bu0
N
T S umoL 3umungy
MO INNNY NI LINTNNITD MMM

T i SR SO S ST )

guruuerd umol

UBUUND

5561 PIUEHIGEIE]

oy | 2va |nosess

wiBoo: IS
uoyens apig Bugsixg

WiDoDkE ITVIS
ueld jooy Bugsia

w00k TS
uoners3 reay bugsng

o 11

TR ASCULAS D W L0 B ALV YOI

coKLm
RTINS L3 SR L RIS £

= LHOIYADOD

|

w00k TS
ueid ool Bugsng
st e g e sy
w00k TS w01 TS
uoyens|3 apig Bugsng uoyenz|3 o4 Bugsig
SIN
uoneao sis
s N
-
o
|
|
|
| |
|
|
— N _,/ _

30



Agenda ltem 5

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL PANEL

8 January 2020 Iltem: 5

Application 19/01555/FULL

No.:

Location: Datchet Common Horton Road Datchet Slough

Proposal: Change of use of land to the stationing/parking of motor vehicles and siting of a porta-
cabin (retrospective).

Applicant: Mssrs Loveridge And Giles

Agent: Dr Angus Murdoch

Parish/Ward:  Datchet Parish/Datchet Horton And Wraysbury

If you have a question about this report, please contact: Victoria Goldberg on 01628 683551 or at
victoria.goldberg@rbwm.gov.uk

1.

11

1.2

13

14

SUMMARY

This item was deferred by members of Windsor Development Management Panel on 6"
November to allow a members site visit to take place. Prior to this the item was withdrawn from
the 6™ October panel meeting by the Head of Planning as the agent requested some additional
time in order to submit a Flood Risk Assessment. The Local Planning Authority and agent agreed
a revised timetable which required a Flood Risk Assessment to be submitted by 17" October
2019. No flood risk assessment has been provided. The report as previously presented is set out
below.

The proposed scheme represents an inappropriate form of development in the Green Belt as set
out in national and local policy and would be contrary to one of the purposes of including land
within the Green Belt namely to protect the countryside from encroachment. Additionally the
scheme would result in an actual loss of openness both visually and spatially across the site.

The proposal would also fail to comply with both national and local flood policy, would cause
harm to the rural character of the area and would cause an unacceptable level of noise and
disturbance to nearby residents.

No objections are raised with regard to highway safety.

It is recommended the Panel refuses planning permission for the following summarised
reasons (the full reasons are identified in Section 12 of this report):

1. | The proposal represents inappropriate development in the Green Belt. Inappropriate
development is by definition harmful to the Green Belt. The proposal will also result
in a substantial negative impact on the openness of the Green Belt. No very special
circumstances have been put forward that clearly outweigh the harm caused by
reason of inappropriateness and the substantial impact on the openness of the
Green Belt. Accordingly, the proposal is contrary to saved Policies GB1, GB2A of
the Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Local Plan (June 2003), Policies SP1
and SP5 of the emerging Local Plan and Section 13 of the National Planning Policy
Framework (February 2019).

2. | Part of the site is situated within flood zone 3b functional floodplain. The use has
been classified as a less vulnerable use, and such a use is identified as
inappropriate development within FZ3b. The applicant has also failed to submit a
site-specific flood risk assessment as required by Section 14 of the National
Planning Policy Framework.

31



3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

4.1

5.1

3. | The concentration of up to 67 densely parked cars and the siting of a porta-cabin in
arelatively small area results in the urbanisation of this once open and rural piece of
land. As such the proposed use will negatively impact on the lawful open rural
character of the site contrary to saved policy DG1 of the Royal Borough of Windsor
and Maidenhead Local Plan (June 2003) and policy SP2 of the emerging Local Plan.

4. | The use of the land to station/park up to 67 vehicles will increase the level of activity
on the site by virtue of the number of comings and goings. This will negatively affect
the amenity of Mill House, Mill Cottage the properties on Mill Place that back onto
the access road and the properties on Horton Road that back onto the site. The
properties on Mill Place are positioned between three and four metres from the
access road and as such vehicles accessing the site will be in close proximity to the
doors and windows on the rear elevations of these properties and their rear gardens.
As such the increase in vehicle movements to the site resulting in noise and
disturbance will be detrimental to the amenity of these properties contrary to
Section 12, Paragraph 127 f) of the NPPF and SP3(L) of the emerging Local Plan.

REASON FOR PANEL DETERMINATION

o At the request of Councillor Muir as ‘This is a sensitive matter. There is a lot of community
tension between applicants and residents. Called in to ensure any decision is seen as
transparent’.

DESCRIPTION OF THE SITE AND ITS SURROUNDINGS

The application site is located to the rear of 236 to 248 Horton Road and is accessed by vehicles
via an existing unnamed road which leads to Mill Place Caravan Park.

The site is positioned within previously undeveloped land that is commonly referred to as Datchet
Common.

A pallet storage yard is located to the south of the site separated from the site by an emergency
exit. To the east lies a car wash and the western boundary borders the remaining area of Datchet
Common.

This application has been submitted as a retrospective application. The application proposes that
an area within the site is used to station up to 67 cars. However, it should be noted that the
related enforcement investigation has established that the entire planning unit is being used for
airport parking with up to 400 cars being stationed on the land.

KEY CONSTRAINTS

The application site is located entirely within the Green Belt and Flood Zone 3. Parts of the site
are located within Flood Zone 3b (Functional Flood Plain).

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSAL AND ANY RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

The application proposes the change of use of part of the land to permit the stationing of motor
vehicles. The car parking area covers 1925m2 and the parking layout details 67 parking bays.

The application also seeks to retain a porta-cabin used as an office in conjunction with the airport
parking operation on site. The structure measures 7m x 2.5m and has a height of 2.85m.

32



5.2 The proposal does not reflect the current arrangement on site. It details a much smaller area than
that currently used to store cars and there is no reference to the associated development i.e.
hardstanding and toilets to facilitate the use.

5.3 The entire area of Datchet Common has been covered in aggregate to form hard standing to
facilitate the current unauthorised airport parking. This unauthorised use and the associated
development (including hardstanding) are the subject of an extant enforcement notice that has
been appealed. This application does not seek approval for the hardstanding. The extant
enforcement notice is a material consideration in the determination of this application.

5.4  There is no record of planning permission being granted for any use on site.

Reference Description Decision
13/02024/FULL The use of land as a public gypsy Withdrawn on the 29™
and traveller site consisting of 10 April 2014.
pitches, 5 utility buildings, play area
and associated works
14/01370/FULL The use of land as a gypsy and | Dismissed by the
traveller site consisting of 9 x | Secretary of State on the
pitches, 5 x utility buildings, play | 5" July 2016.
area, warden's office and associated
works.
16/03681/FULL Use of the land as a Gypsy and Withdrawn on the 26™ July
Traveller site consisting of 5 no. 2017
residential pitches plus 1 no. warden
pitch, play area and three amenity
blocks.
17/02404/FULL
Use of the land as a Gypsy and | Refused- this refusal is
Traveller site consisting of 4 no. | currently being appealed.
residential pitches, 2 no. Amenities
blocks, 1 No. Wardens block and
play area
17/02236/FULL Change of use of the land to the | Withdrawn on the 6"
stationing/parking of vehicles December 2017.

6. DEVELOPMENT PLAN
Adopted Royal Borough Local Plan (2003)

6.1 The main Development Plan policies applying to the site are:

33




7.1

7.2

Issue Adopted Local Plan Policy

Green Belt GB1 and GB2

Design in keeping with character and appearance

DG1
of area

Flooding F1

These policies can be found at
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/downloads/download/154/local plan documents and appendices

MATERIAL PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS

National Planning Policy Framework Sections (NPPF) (2019)

Section 12- Achieving well-designed places

Section 13- Protecting Green Belt land

Section 14- Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change

Borough Local Plan: Submission Version

Issue Local Plan Policy
Appropriate Development in Green Belt and SP1 SP5
acceptable impact on Green Belt '
Design in keeping with character and SP2. SP3
appearance of area
Manages flood risk and waterways NR1

The NPPF sets out that decision-makers may give weight to relevant policies in emerging plans
according to their stage of preparation. The Borough Local Plan Submission Document was
published in June 2017. Public consultation ran from 30 June to 27 September 2017. Following
this process the Council prepared a report summarising the issues raised in the representations
and setting out its response to them. This report, together with all the representations received
during the representation period, the plan and its supporting documents have now been
submitted to the Secretary of State for examination. The Submission Version of the Borough
Local Plan does not form part of the statutory development plan for the Borough. However, by
publishing and submitting the Borough Local Plan for independent examination the Council has
formally confirmed its intention to adopt the submission version. As the Council considers the
emerging Borough Local Plan to be sound and legally compliant, officers and Councillors should
accord relevant policies and allocations significant weight in the determination of applications
taking account of the extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies.
Therefore, the weight afforded to each policy at this stage will differ depending on the level and
type of representation to that policy. This is addressed in more detail in the assessment below.

This document can be found at:
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/info/201026/borough local plan/1351/submission/1

34



https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/downloads/download/154/local_plan_documents_and_appendices
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/info/201026/borough_local_plan/1351/submission/1

Supplementary Planning Documents
¢ RBWM Interpretation of Policy F1
CONSULTATIONS CARRIED OUT
Comments from interested parties
43 occupiers were notified directly of the application.
The planning officer posted a notice advertising the application at the site on the 17" July 2019
No letters were received supporting the application.
4 letters were received objecting to the application, summarised as:

Where in the

Comment report this is
considered

1. Proposal represents inappropriate development and it results in a 9.2-9.10
substantial impact on the openness of the Green Belt. There are no
very special circumstances.

2. Inappropriate development in Flood Zone 3b. 9.13-9.16

A flood risk assessment has not been submitted.

3. Urbanisation of once rural piece of land 9.12
4, Negative impact on rural character of site 9.12
5. The use will negatively affect amenity of nearby residential properties 9.19-9.20
6. Increase in level of activity and number of comings and goings and 9.19

associated noise and disturbance.

7. Application gives an erroneous impression if the true situation. The
number of cars currently parked far exceeds the maximum 67 stated. 3.4
There are around 400 cars parked and it has been this way for
several years.

8. Waste storage and removal plans are indicated on the application but Not relevant to
no details are provided. application

9. The hours of operation stretch beyond 9am-5pm to operate as airport 9.20
parking.

10. | The land can be seen from Datchet Common Public land Noted

11. | Airport parking is a total inappropriate use of land so close to 9.19-9.20

residential properties.

35



9.

9.1

traffic.

12. | The use subject local residents to noise, light pollution, atmospheric
pollution and general disturbance from car journeys. The access
roads are narrow, close to houses and unsuitable for this volume of

9.19- 9.20

Statutory consultees

Consultee

Comment

Where in the
report this is

Environment
Agency

The EA have two objections namely:

We object to the proposed development as it falls within a
flood risk category that is inappropriate to the Flood Zone in
which the application site is located. The application is
therefore contrary to the NPPF and its associated guidance.

A Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) has not been submitted.
An FRA is vital to making informed planning decisions. In its
absence, the flood risks posed by the development are
unknown.

considered

9.13-9.16

Highways

Comments Awaited

Environmental

It is suggested that a number of conditions and informatives

N/A

Protection be imposed if the application is approved. These suggested
conditions cover the minimisation of artificial light on nearby
properties, site working hours, and collections during
construction and demolition.

Consultees

Consultee

Comment

Parish Council

Members had no objection on the grounds that the
applicant provides a Flood Risk Assessment (FRA).

Response

An FRA has not
been submitted.

EXPLANATION OF RECOMMENDATION

The key issues for consideration are:

[ Appropriate development in Green Belt

ii Acceptable impact on Green Belt

iii Impact on character and appearance of the area

v Flood Risk

36




9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

9.6

9.7

9.8

9.9

v Highway Safety
Vi Impact on neighbouring amenity
Vii. Planning balance

Appropriate development in the Green Belt

The application site is located within the Green Belt. Paragraph 133 of the NPPF sets out that the
‘fundamental aim of Green Belt policy is to prevent urban sprawl by keeping land permanently
open; the essential characteristics of Green Belts are their openness and their permanence’.

Local Plan policy GB1 sets out acceptable uses and development in the Green Belt and specifies
that consent will only be granted for changes in the use of the land which maintain openness and
do not conflict with the purposes of including land in the Green Belt. This part of the policy is in
accordance with the NPPF which is considered a more up-to-date expression of Government
intent in line with Paragraph 146 (e) of the NPPF which stipulates that material changes in the
use of land are not inappropriate provided they preserve the openness of the Green Belt and do
not conflict with the purposes of including land within it.

The use of the land for the stationing/parking of vehicles and the siting of a portacabin fails to
preserve the openness of the Green Belt and conflicts with one of the five Green Belt purposes —
namely 134 c) - assisting the countryside from encroachment as discussed further below.
Accordingly, the use is inappropriate development as defined by the NPPF and Local Plan Policy
GB1.

As detailed in paragraph 143 of the NPPF, inappropriate development is by definition, harmful to
the Green Belt and it should not be approved except in very special circumstances. As stipulated
in paragraph 144 of the NPPF, substantial weight should be attributed to any harm to the Green
Belt. Furthermore, ‘very special circumstances’ will not exist unless the potential harm to the
Green Belt by reason of inappropriateness, and any other harm, is clearly outweighed by other
considerations. No very special circumstances have been put forward by the applicant and as
such, the harm identified by inappropriateness is not outweighed in this case.

Acceptable impact on Green Belt

As detailed above, paragraph 133 of the NPPF sets out that the ‘fundamental aim of Green Belt
policy is to prevent urban sprawl by keeping land permanently open; the essential characteristics
of Green Belts are their openness and their permanence’. As such the effect of the proposal on
the openness of the Green Belt is an important consideration in the determination of this
application.

There is no definition of openness in the NPPF, but, in the Green Belt context, it is generally held
to refer to freedom from, or the absence of, development. The stationing of vehicles on previously
undeveloped land significantly impinges on openness and has a detrimental urbanising effect on
the lawful use. Additionally, the unauthorised use negatively alters the character and appearance
of the lawful site, contrary to the purpose of the Green Belt and resulting in the loss of open
countryside.

Policy GB2(A) of the adopted local plan is broadly line with the NPPF. Policy GB2(A) advises that
consent will not be granted for any development that has a greater impact on the openness of the
Green Belt than an existing development.

The lawful undeveloped use of the site had an open quality despite its neglected appearance.
Prior to the current unauthorised use, the area was open rough scrubland. The storage of 67 cars
and siting a porta cabin on the land will greatly impact upon the openness of the site both visually

37



9.10

9.11

9.12

9.13

9.14

9.15

9.16

9.17

and spatially and would result in the unrestricted sprawl of the built-up area and the loss of
countryside.

The use of the land to station cars and a portacabin will negatively change the character and
appearance of the once undeveloped site. As such the introduction of the vehicle parking has
had an urbanising effect and will result in a significant loss of openness contrary to the NPPF and
to Local Plan Policy GB2A of the adopted Local Plan. The proposal is also contrary to policies
SP1 and SP5 of the emerging Borough Local Plan to which significant weight can be afforded.

Impact on character and appearance of the area

Policy DG1 of the adopted Local Plan stipulates that harm should not be caused to the character
of the surrounding area through development which results in the loss of important features
which contribute to that character which is also an important aim contained within the NPPF.

The site is a relatively enclosed area of land bordered by rear gardens of properties on Horton
Road and Datchet Car wash. The concentration of 67 densely parked cars and a portacabin in a
relatively small area results in the urbanisation of this once open and rural piece of land which is
out of keeping in this semi-rural environment. Whilst it is acknowledged that the adjacent car
wash is lawful this scheme is of a larger scale and a greater level of intensity than the adjacent
use. As such the proposed use will negatively impact on the lawful open rural character of the
site and would be out of keeping with the area contrary to policy DG1 of the Local Plan and
Policy SP3 of the emerging Borough Local Plan.

The application is supported by a landscape design statement. This illustrates soft landscape
‘islands’ within rows of parking, a 1m wide land strip to the site periphery and soft landscape
buffer zones to the northern end of the site. Whilst a plan within the landscape statement
illustrates landscaping, these plans do not correlate with the plans submitted to accompany the
application. They do not mirror the proposed parking arrangement and do not include the porta
cabin and so the landscaping proposed does not correlate with the development proposed. As
such they are not relevant to the scheme being considered.

Flood Risk

Part of the application site lies within Flood Zone 3b (FZ3b) i.e. functional flood plain. FZ3b is
defined in the NPPF and NPPG as having a high probability of flooding from rivers and the land
where water has to flow or be stored in times of flooding. This is confirmed by the Council’s
Strategic Flood Risk Assessment.

The Environment Agency classify the proposed use as ‘less vulnerable’ development despite not
being specifically mentioned within flood risk table 2 of the NPPG. Table 3 of the NPPG - Flood
risk vulnerability and flood zone ‘compatibility ‘clearly indicates that this type of development is
not compatible with this flood zone and should not therefore be permitted.

In accordance with the requirements of National Planning Policy, the applicant is required to
submit a site —specific flood risk assessment. The applicant has failed to submit a site-specific
flood risk assessment which contravenes Section 14 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

As the applicant has failed to submit a site —specific flood risk assessment, no further
assessment of the acceptability of the development in the flood zone is required. The proposal
fails to comply with the NPPF, with Policy F1 of the Local Plan. With regard to Policy NR1 of the
emerging Borough Local Plan only limited weight is afforded to this policy given the level of
unresolved objection against it.

38



9.18

9.19

9.20

9.21

10.

10.1

10.2

10.3

11.

Highway Safety

The applicant has failed to identify the purpose of the car park despite the current airport parking
on site. As such there is no accurate way of anticipating the number of vehicle trips resulting
from the proposal. Although supporting information would be beneficial to fully appreciate the
extent of the impact, the location of the site and access are not anticipated to impose any severe
impacts to the local highway network or raise highway safety issues.

The sight lines at the junction with Horton Road comply with current guidance in both directions.
The applicant proposes serving the site from the main access onto the private road. The
entrance to the site is gated, but is of sufficient width to allow two way vehicular flow across the
entrance. However, the plan also shows that the applicant intends to retain access to Mill Lane.

Impact on neighbouring amenity

The use of the site to station/park up to 67 vehicles will increase the level of activity on the site by
virtue of the number of comings and goings. This will negatively affect the amenity of Mill House
and Mill Cottage and the properties along Horton Road that back onto the site and the properties
on Mill Place that back onto to the access road. The properties on Mill Place are positioned
between three and four metres from the access road and as such vehicles accessing the site will
be in close proximity to the doors and windows on the rear elevations of these properties and
their rear gardens. As such the increase in vehicle movements to the site resulting in noise and
disturbance will be detrimental to the amenity of these properties.

As a result of the current unauthorised use on site local residents have already reported an
increased level of disturbance due to vehicles being moved at all hours of the day. Whilst is it
accepted that a condition could be imposed to limit the times of these movements, this would not
overcome the unacceptable impact to these properties arising from vehicles needing to access
the site to park outside of those hours permitted. The proposal is therefore contrary to paragraph
127(f) of the NPPF and to policy SP3 (L) of the emerging Borough Local Plan both of which are
attributed significant weight.

PLANNING BALANCE AND CONCLUSION

The proposal is inappropriate development in the Green Belt for which no very special
circumstances have been advanced, this is afforded substantial weight against the development
proposed. In addition there is a harmful impact on the openness of the Green Belt which weighs
against the development.

Furthermore ‘any other harm’ is required to be considered. Set out above is the harm caused to
the functional floodplain and non-compliance with Policy F1 of the adopted Local Plan and
emerging policy NR1 of the Borough Local Plan. There is harm to the semi-rural character of the
area and to residential amenity contrary to Policy DG1 of the adopted Local Plan, Paragraph
127(f) of the NPPF and emerging policy SP3 of the Borough Local Plan. This also weighs
against the development in the planning balance.

In the absence of a case for very special circumstances, no benefits arising from the scheme
have been identified. Consequently the development fails to accord with the adopted and
emerging Development Plan; there are no material considerations which would indicate a
contrary decision. In fact there are material considerations which add to the weight of the
assessment, this includes the extant enforcement notice. Planning permission should not be
granted.

APPENDICES TO THIS REPORT

39



12.

e Appendix A - Site location plan and site layout
e Appendix B — Proposed Plans

REASONS RECOMMENDED FOR REFUSAL

The proposal represents inappropriate development in the Green Belt. Inappropriate
development is by definition harmful to the Green Belt. The proposal will also result in a
substantial negative impact on the openness of the Green Belt. No very special circumstances
have been put forward that clearly outweigh the harm caused by reason of inappropriateness and
the substantial impact on the openness of the Green Belt. Accordingly, the proposal is contrary to
saved Policies GB1, GB2A of the Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Local Plan (June
2003), Policies SP1 and SP5 of the emerging Local Plan and Section 13 of the National Planning
Policy Framework (February 2019).

Part of the site is situated within flood zone 3b functional floodplain. The use has been classified
as a less vulnerable use, and such a use is identified as inappropriate development within FZ3b.
The applicant has also failed to submit a site-specific flood risk assessment as required by
Section 14 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

The concentration of up to 67 densely parked cars and the siting of a porta-cabin in a relatively
small area results in the urbanisation of this once open and rural piece of land. As such the
proposed use will negatively impact on the lawful open rural character of the site contrary to
saved policy DG1 of the Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Local Plan (June 2003) and
policy SP2 of the emerging Local Plan.

The use of the land to station/park up to 67 vehicles will increase the level of activity on the site
by virtue of the number of comings and goings. This will negatively affect the amenity of Mill
House, Mill Cottage the properties on Mill Place that back onto the access road and the
properties on Horton Road that back onto the site. The properties on Mill Place are positioned
between three and four metres from the access road and as such vehicles accessing the site will
be in close proximity to the doors and windows on the rear elevations of these properties and
their rear gardens. As such the increase in vehicle movements to the site resulting in noise and
disturbance will be detrimental to the amenity of these properties contrary to Section 12,
Paragraph 127 f) of the NPPF and SP3(L) of the emerging Local Plan.

40



1A%

N N
© ©
© ©
U1 ©
o0 N
Qo I
3 3
176639m 176639m
766 766
|
|
|
Car Pqiking
Total Area
1925 m?
67No Tars
765 N - 765
| |
- JoTchet
LOomMmor
| |
| |
Latitude I\/Iapping Limited 64 - - | — v nress m— _ T _\J A 764
Tel: 01707 663090 B o
www.latitudemaps.co.uk - * * RS TN W
176379m S S RN ~ 176379m
996 997 998 999
N 1N .
O e client .
8 8 Mr D Loveridge
Crown copyright and database o0 N
rights 2019 OS 100038864 %O g Mill Place Caravan Park
Datchet
Reproduction in whole or in N I i Sguzh‘?m 9D
ocation plan
W|thOUt the perm|SS|On Of 20 O 20 40 60 80 100 drawing title
Ordnance Survey o proposed
' location plan
Metres o A .
Reference / Licence number 011299015 1 P 5 00 @ 0 car parking areo
date scale sheet size
June 2017 1:500 AQ
job no. drawing no. revision
0912-1  A30-06-17 B



AutoCAD SHX Text
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
252

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
216

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
240

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
159

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
284

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
270

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
The Mill House

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
228

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
Mill

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
COBB CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
Datchet

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
17.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
147

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
264

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
MILL PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
Ruin

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
17.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
HORTON ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
Common


Crown copyright and database
rights 2019 OS 100038864

Reproduction in whole or in
part is prohibited

without the permission of
Ordnance Survey.

Car Parking

Reference / Licence number 011299015

Total Area
1925 m?
67No cars

-
O

N

NORTH

40

~ AN
N
y;
/ N
4 |
|
| |
i |
| |
| ,
| |
| ,
| |
| |
| ,
| |
|
| |
| [
| |
| |
| |
| |
|
|

D o)
PORTAKABIN (D)
REFER TO DRAWING —
A30-07-19 %)

765

20

client

Mr D Loveridge

Mill Place Caravan Park
Dafchet
Slough. SL3 9JD

drawing title

. - i i i i - proposed

location plan
car parking area - opftion 1

date

June 2017

job no. drawing no. revision

car parking plan  scale 1:200 @ Al 0919.1| A0.06.17 2 |




e

_ R i T T
‘ T
DOOR
Z 2
N ~
WINDOW WINDOW al
STEP
- S
r 7 11 ] ul \ /\ hnl ;
B 2500 _ 7000 o —
B 2740 | —
° ° o é
elevation A elevation B —
-~
T T T T —
‘ @ ]
— u
n — 8
A A — +
£ X — ¢
WINDOW LEVELLING FEET —
/ T
o il i il =
e
B 2500 _ B 7000 _ —
B 2740 | —
N
elevation C elevation D —
Walls — —f
External walls are of a durable one-piece construction. —
High-performance, low-maintenance, plastisol-coated, B 7000 —
galvanised steel cladding. o _—
Floor 0 0
The floor has arigid galvanised steel frame and an
aluminium-zinc coated steel sheet.
Roof 3
he roof deck is of one-piece construction and is impact a —
resistant. It is covered profiled plastisol-coated, galvanised Mr D Loveridge
positioning steel.
. Mill Place Caravan Park
r
(refer to location plans) DOOrS - . Datchet
Steel-faced doors with a cylinder mortise lock. Slough. SL3 9JD
. drawing fitle
\BNTS%WS]" S ong _— 5 proposed
o) e fixed and opening have square cornere . Portakabin
aluminium frames . roof plqn view plan and elevations
date scale sheet size
July 2019 | 1:50 A2
job no. drawing no. revision
0912-1] A30-07-19



AutoCAD SHX Text_35
metres


This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 6

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL PANEL

8 January 2020 Iltem: 6
Application 19/02007/FULL

No.:

Location: Legoland Windsor Resort Winkfield Road Windsor SL4 4AY

Proposal: Redevelopment of Adventure Land including the erection of new buildings, ride and

play equipment, hard and soft landscaping with associated infrastructure, following
demolition of various existing buildings.

Applicant: LEGOLAND Windsor Park LTD

Agent: Mrs Sarah Moorhouse

Parish/Ward:  Windsor Unparished/Clewer And Dedworth East

If you have a question about this report, please contact: Antonia Liu on 01628 796034 or at
antonia.liu@rbwm.gov.uk

1. SUMMARY

1.1  The proposal comprises of the re-theming and redevelopment of ‘Adventure Land’ including a
new drop tower ride, play equipment and seating area, a ‘photo-opportunity’ building and Main
Attraction Building and associated development.

1.2 The proposal was previously considered under the hybrid application 17/01878/OUT as ‘Project
5. However, in order to open in 2021 the construction of this project will have to include periods
when the park is open to the public. Therefore the applicant has sought an alternative location
which can be readily closed off from the park.

1.3 The proposal is considered to represent in policy terms inappropriate development in the Green
Belt, which is afforded substantial weight against the development, and there is limited harm to
trees and ecology which are both afforded limited weight against the development. Balanced
against this, the proposal is not considered to conflict with any of the stated purposes of the
Green Belt and there are a number of economic benefits in respect of the tourism economy,
employment and operational spend. There are also community and charitable benefits.
Therefore, it is considered that a case of very special circumstances has been demonstrated to
outweigh the harm to the Green Belt by reason of inappropriateness and harm to openness.

1.4  The proposal is considered to be acceptable in relation to character and appearance, heritage
assets, trees, ecology, highways and parking, neighbouring amenity and sustainable drainage.

1.5  This proposal, although in the different location, has already been considered acceptable under
17/01878/0OUT. If minded to approve, it is recommended that this is subject to a S106 to ensure
that only one of the scheme is implemented.

It is recommended the Panel defers and delegates to Head of Planning the Grant of
Planning Permission with the conditions listed in Section 13 of this report subject to the
completion of the satisfactory S106 to ensure either the proposal or project 5 under
17/01878/0OUT is implemented but not both.

2. REASON FOR PANEL DETERMINATION

e The Council’'s Constitution does not give the Head of Planning delegated powers to
determine the application in the way recommended; such decisions can only be made by
the Panel as the proposal results in a gross new floor space of 1171sgm (1097sgm, net)
which exceeds the 1000sgm threshold set out in the constitution.

45



3.1

3.2

4.1

5.1

5.2

DESCRIPTION OF THE SITE AND ITS SURROUNDINGS

Legoland is a theme park located approximately two miles to the south-west of Windsor town
centre. Within the main theme park there is an extensive range of built structures including rides,
marquees, kiosks, WC facilities, retail outlets, cafes, storage/maintenance facilities and office
space set within a well landscaped site where the topography and tree covered on the site
screens the majority of the park from view. Within the main theme park, towards the east of the
site is a 150 bedroom hotel with a 61 bed extension. The main theme park is delineated by a
service ring-road. On the outer edge to the west of the theme park are car and coach parks for
day-visitors, and a parking area for the hotel to the east. To the north and north-east is a
landscape buffer between the theme park and the residential properties on St Leonard’s Hill. The
access road leads off the existing roundabout junction with the B3022 Winkfield Road. There is
wider access from the strategic road network including the M3, M4, M25, M40, A404(M) and
A308(M).

The application comprises of approximately 0.92ha towards the eastern part of the theme park, to
the north of an existing service building and south of the lake, and currently comprises of
‘Adventure Land’, part of an internal service road, and grassed service area that is used for a
back-of-house area for staff and temporary storage / maintenance purposes.

KEY CONSTRAINTS

Legoland and the site is located on the edge of the built-up area of Windsor which lies to the
north-east of the theme park. To the south lies Windsor Forest and to the east is Windsor Great
Park. Windsor Great Park is designated as a historic park and garden, while both Windsor Forest
and Windsor Great Park are designated as a Special Area of Conservation (SAC) and Site of
Special Scientific Interest (SSSI). Windsor Great Park is designated as a historic park and
garden. The site, Legoland as a whole, and land to the north (in part), east, west and south lies in
the Green Belt. The site, Legoland, and immediate surrounds also lies in an Area of Special
Landscape Importance. The north-western section of ‘Adventure Land’ is covered by a TPO that
protects all Oak, EIm, Fir, Ash, Beech, Birch, Chestnut, Thorn and Poplar. The area to the south-
east forms part of a Woodland TPO designation covering all species ref: 003/1963/TPO. A Public
Right of Way (Public Bridleway 9 Windsor) runs west and south of the existing Resort.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSAL AND ANY RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

The proposal comprises of the re-theming and redevelopment of ‘Adventure Land’ including the
following:

e A new drop tower ride to the centre of the application site with two steel drop towers with
gondolas measuring approximately 13m in height and partial covered queue line to the
south-east of the ride.

e To the north of the application site and to the east of the existing Harbourside Fish and
Chips restaurant, new play equipment and seating area is proposed. The height of the
play equipment varies in form and height, but the tallest play piece would be
approximately 10.5m.

e To the western part of the application site is a new ‘photo-opportunity’ building with the
front fanade measuring a maximum of 7.5m in height before stepping down to a minimum
height of 2m to the rear. To the north-east of the photo-opportunity building is a queue line
bounded by a 1.1m high fence.

To the south of the site within the grassed area currently used for temporary storage/
maintenance purposes and back of house staff, a new attraction ride is proposed in a building
measuring approximately 13m in height with a floor area of approximately 1070sgm over 5 floors
(basement, ground floor, first floor, second floor and plant floor). To the south-east of the site is a

46



5.3

5.4

9.5

gueue area covered by a steel framed canopy with tensile fabric measuring approximately 4m in
height. To the front of the building is a paved courtyard area. Around the perimeter, associated
landscaping and a 2m high fence is proposed. This part of the proposal is referred to as the ‘Main
Attraction Building’ in the submitted Planning Statement and for consistency is referred as the
same in this report.

Other works are proposed, which do not form part of the application as used for or in connection
with the entertainment of the public within the amusement park they benefit from permitted
development rights under Schedule 2, Part 18, Class B of the Town and Country Planning
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015. However, for completeness, the works
include:
1 A games / photo collection kiosk with a maximum height of 4.1m and a footprint of
approximately 38sgm.
1. Plant room with a maximum height of 4.4m and a floor area of approximate 27sgm.
2. Operators Cabin in association with the drop tower with a maximum height of 2.7m and a
footprint of approximately 9sgm.

The re-theming and refreshing of the existing ‘Squid Surfer’ ride and Harbourside Fish and Chips
restaurant are not considered to be development. It should also be noted that are various
billboards, entrance portals, models and directional signs are considered to be advertisements
under the definition under Section 336 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as
amended).

The proposal was previously considered under the hybrid application 17/01878/OUT as ‘Project
5’. Due to investment cycles, the aim for Legoland was to progress this particular project to open
in 2021. However, due to the time taken to determine 17/01878/OUT and subsequent Judicial
Review, in order to open in 2021 the construction of this project will have to include periods when
the park is open to the public. Therefore the applicant has sought an alternative location which
can be readily closed off from the park.

There is significant planning history for the site, the most recent being:

Reference Description Decision
09/01184/0OUT | Outline application for the erection of a | Approved - 07.10.2009
150 bedroom hotel with landscaping,
sustainable drainage, alterations to
internal access road and parking to
provide 321 spaces and associated
works. All matters reserved.
09/02094/FULL | Replacement storage building, Approved — 09.11.2009
09/02647/VAR Erection of a 150 bedroom hotel with | Approved — 09.02.2010
landscaping, drainage, alterations to
internal access road and parking as
permitted by Outline application
09/01184 without complying with
condition 4 of that permission relating to
total floorspace not to exceed 9000sgm
gross external floorspace, to allow the
total floorspace not to exceed 9450
sgm gross external floorspace.
10/00064/FULL | Erection of a covered terrace area, to | Approved — 22.02.2010
the West of Pirate Falls Ride
10/00106/FULL | Proposed paid parking exit system | Approved —01.03.2010
comprising four parking barriers, a
ticket kiosk and works to realign/widen
and internal road.

47



10/00155/FULL

Reserved matters pursuant to outline
planning permission 09/01184/OUT for
the construction of a 150 bedroom hotel
with landscaping, sustainable drainage,
alterations to internal access road and
parking to provide 321 spaces and
associated works.

Approved — 19.04.2010

10/01122/FULL

Erection of an indoor Sealife attraction
building, including canopy, terrace and
associated landscaping

Approved — 08.07.2010

10/02813/FULL

Extension to the Adventureland toilets
and boardwalk

Approved — 04.01.2011

11/00526/FULL

Installation of a timber canopy over the
Dino Dipper ride

Approved — 04.04.2011

11/00802/FULL

Installation of new show seating at the
Johnny Thunder Adventures' Show

Approved — 03.05.2011

12/02314/FULL

Construction of a new 'Traffic Games'
kiosk style fairground unit

Approved — 07.01.2013

13/00043/FULL

Construction of a new plant enclosure
within the 'Duploland' area of the park

Approved — 11.02.2013

13/00190/FULL

Construction of a new 'Traffic Games'
kiosk style fairground unit

Approved — 11.03.2013

13/01168/FULL

Erection of timber food and beverage
kiosk

Approved — 10.07.2013

13/02393/FULL

Redevelopment of an existing area of
the Park to create a new and extended
'Pirate  Training Camp' including
demolition of existing structures and the
installation of

'Pirates Rigging'

Approved — 11.03.2013

14/01251/FULL

Installation of a new attraction including
a haunted house building, queue line
area, landscaping and alterations to an
existing pathway within the resort

Refused — 20.08.2014

Appeal
Allowed — 27.11.2015

15/02105/FULL

Installation of a new attraction including
a haunted house building, queue line
area, landscaping and alterations to an
existing pathway within the resort

Declined to Determine

15/02004/FULL

Erection of a 61 bedroom themed hotel
extension with covered link walkway,
restaurant extension to the

existing Legoland Windsor Hotel with
associated landscaping and alterations
to the existing SUDs

scheme, following demolition of existing
Dino Safari ride and toilet block

Approved — 15.02.2016

16/00851/FULL

Development of a new ride to replace
the existing Loki's

Labyrinth attraction, including erection
of new building,

entrance portal, courtyard, temple and
associated queue

line, infrastructure and landscaping

Approved — 17.06.2016

17/01878/0OUT

Hybrid planning application seeking
permission for the following Full
(detailed) projects:  Project 1 - the

Approved — 10.04.2019

Judicial Review - Pending

48




erection of 65 permanent semi-
detached lodges (130 units) and 20
'‘barrels' with associated amenity
facilities block to provide visitor
accommodation, a central facilities 'hub’
building, SUDS ponds, landscaping
works (including equipped play areas)
and associated infrastructure works
(‘'Phase 1' of the holiday village);
Project 2 - Reconfiguration of car
parking and internal accesses and
associated  engineering/infrastructure
works; Project 3 - Change of use of
existing farm buildings from
agricultural/'sui generis' use to Use
Class D2, ancillary 'back of house'
accommodation and land for re-use by
the theme park and the creation of one
new access point from the existing car
park and Project 4 - Extension and
alterations to The Beginning'
comprising new admissions building,
extension to existing toilet facilities and
new entrance portal. Permission for the
following Outline projects: Project 5 -
Construction of the '2019 attraction’
comprising three 'attraction zones' for
up to three new rides (one to be an
indoor attraction and the other two to be
uncovered or covered) with associated
gueue line areas, landscaping works
and associated infrastructure; Project 6
- Construction of a new indoor ride on
the 'Haunted House' site with
associated queue line area,
landscaping works and associated
infrastructure; Project 7 - Extension to
the existing 'Big Shop' LEGO store in
'The Beginning' area; Project 8 -
Erection of up to 300 units of visitor
accommodation ('Phases 2 and 3' of
the holiday village) with two associated
central facilities 'hub' buildings, SUDS
ponds, landscaping, infrastructure
works and car parking area.

19/02163/CPD Certificate of lawfulness to determine Approved — 07.10.2019
whether the proposed installation of a
coaster ride, control cabin, photo booth
and enclosure is lawful.
6. DEVELOPMENT PLAN

Adopted Royal Borough Local Plan (2003)

6.1 The main Development Plan policies applying to the site are:

49




7.1

Issue

Adopted Local Plan Policy

Green Belt GB1, GB2, GB9
Character and Appearance DG1, N1
Highways and Parking T5, P4
Trees N6
Historic Parks and Gardens HG1

These policies can be found at
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/downloads/download/154/local plan documents and appendices

MATERIAL PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
National Planning Policy Framework Sections (NPPF) (2019)

Section 2 — Achieving Sustainable Development

Section 4 — Decision—making

Section 6 — Building a Strong, Competitive Economy

Section 9 — Promoting Sustainable Transport

Section 12 — Achieving Well-Designed Places

Section 13 — Protecting Green Belt

Section 14 — Meeting the Challenge of Climate Change, Flooding and Coastal Change
Section 15 — Conserving and Enhancing the Natural Environment

Borough Local Plan: Submission Version

Issue Local Plan Policy
Green Belt SP1, SP5
Character and Appearance SP2, SP3
Sustainable Transport IF2, IF5
Trees and Ecology NR2, NR3
Historic Environment HE1, HE?2
Visitor Development VT1
Environmental Protection EP1, EP3, EP4

Borough Local Plan: Submission Version Proposed Changes (2019)

Issue Local Plan Policy
Green Belt SP1, QP5
Character and Appearance QP1, QP3
Sustainable Transport IF2, IF5
Trees and Ecology NR2, NR3
Historic Environment HE1, HE2
Visitor Development VT1
Environmental Protection EP1, EP3, EP4

The NPPF sets out that decision-makers may give weight to relevant policies in emerging plans
according to their stage of preparation. The Borough Local Plan Submission Document was
published in June 2017. Public consultation ran from 30 June to 27 September 2017. Following
this process the Council prepared a report summarising the issues raised in the representations
and setting out its response to them. This report, together with all the representations received
during the representation period, the plan and its supporting documents was submitted to the
Secretary of State for independent examination in January 2018. The Submission Version of the
Borough Local Plan does not form part of the statutory development plan for the Borough.

50



https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/downloads/download/154/local_plan_documents_and_appendices

7.2

7.3

In December 2018, the examination process was paused to enable the Council to undertake
additional work to address soundness issues raised by the Inspector. Following completion of
that work, in October 2019 the Council approved a series of Proposed Changes to the BLPSV.
Public consultation ran from 1 November to 15 December 2019. All representations received will
be reviewed by the Council to establish whether further changes are necessary before the
Proposed Changes are submitted to the Inspector. In due course the Inspector will resume the
Examination of the BLPSV. The BLPSV and the BLPSV together with the Proposed Changes are
therefore material considerations for decision-making. However, given the above both should be

given limited weight.

These documents can be found at:
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/blp

Other Local Strategies or Publications

Other Strategies or publications material to the proposal are:
o RBWM Landscape Character Assessment
o RBWM Parking Strategy

CONSULTATIONS CARRIED OUT

The planning officer posted a notice advertising the application at the site on 01.08.2019 and the
application was advertised in the Local Press on 17.10.2019.

No letters were received supporting or objecting to the application.

Consultee

Comment

Where in the report this is
considered and officer
comment.

Arboriculture
Officer

Raises objections over harm to the landscape
character which identifies trees and
woodland, some of which are ancient and
veteran, as a key characteristic. The loss of
existing trees indicated on the tree removal
plan would erode the landscape character of
the site, and the proposal does not provide
sufficient mitigation.

Hardstanding structures would intrude into
the buffer zone of trees and the layout would
bring additional pressure to harm trees within
the site.

The removal of the large dead tree sculpted
into a totem pole, and relocation of a
replacement tree would isolate oaks within
the Picnic Grove with the belt of trees to the
south-east.

Confirmation is required that there will be no
utilities which will impact on trees.

Section 9 (iv)

Replacement and new tree
planning would result in a net
gain, which would mitigate
the impact of the proposal,
and a condition is
recommended to secure this.

While there would be some
new hardstanding within the
buffer zone, there would also
be some removal and
reinstatement to natural state
which equate to
approximately the same
area. Together with
mitigation to ameliorate the
soil environment, this is
considered acceptable. It is
recommended that this is
secured by condition as part
of a Landscape and Ecology
Management Plan.

Based on the layout, any

51



https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/blp

potential excavation will be
limited to the outer edge of
the buffer zone, and
therefore considered
acceptable. A condition is
recommended to ensure any
excavation is hand dug.

Given the modest separation
distance from the oaks to the
belt of trees, this is
considered to cause only
limited harm.

Condition recommended
requiring submission of
details and approve of
underground utilities

Bray Parish Raises concerns relating to the impact on the | Section 9 (ii), (iii) and (vi)
Council historic views of Windsor Great Park (Grade |
registered Park and Gardens), and impact on | The submitted Landscape
the local highway network due to the | Visual Appraisal
additional number of visitors, and therefore | demonstrates there would be
recommends refusal. no effect or negligible views
of the tops of rides from
Windsor Great Park.
It is established that new
visitor attractions is not a
visitor trip generator in itself,
and would therefore not
result in an increase in
pressure on the local
highway network.
Conservation No objections as there would be minimal | Section 9 (ii) and (iii)
Officer impact on views from open areas of the
historic Windsor Great Park.
Ecology Special Area of Conservation Special Area of Conservation

Given the distance of the proposed
development to Windsor Forest and Great
Park Special Area of Protection, a screening
assessment for an appropriate assessment
should be undertaken.

Habitat

Natural England recommends a buffer
around veteran trees, and within the buffer
native species should be planted. Trees to be
lost must also be replaced on a like for like

Given the nature of
development it is considered
that an appropriate
assessment is not required
as the development alone
and in combination with other
development would not have
a significant effect on
Windsor Great Forest and
Great Park.

52




basis. This can be secured by condition.

Bats

The carved totem pole was recorded as
having the potential to support roosting bats
and a soprano pipistrelle bat was recorded
emerging from the structure during previous
surveys and the most recent bat surveys. It is
proposed to remove the totem pole. Details of
mitigation measures should be provided prior
to the determination of this application to
ensure that the populace of bats, at a
favourable conservation status in their natural
range, will be maintained.

A wildlife friendly lighting strategy can be
secured by condition.

Reptiles and Amphibians
No objections.

Invertebrates

Trees of invertebrate interest, deadwood and
stumps should be left in situ but if not
possible they should be relocated to another
part of the site as recommended with in the
ecology report. This can be secured by
condition.

Biodiversity Enhancements
Details of biodiversity enhancements can be
secured by condition.

Habitat

Where the hardstanding
within the buffer of veteran
trees is being restored to a
natural state, a condition is
recommended to secure
submission and approval of
details including species to
be included as part of a
Landscape and Ecology
Management Plan.

A condition to secure details
of location and species of
replacement trees as part of
a Landscape and Ecology
Management Plan is
recommended.

Bats

All species of bats are
protected including their
roosts, therefore a European
Protected Species Licence
from Natural England will be
required. To be obtained this
would include details of
mitigation. If minded to
approve this can be subject
to a condition to require a
Licence to be obtained and
carried out in accordance
with the Licence.

Condition for a wildlife
friendly lighting strategy as
part of a Landscape and
Ecology Management Plan
recommended.

Invertebrates

The tree stump identified at
TN4 in the Preliminary
Ecological Appraisal and Bat
Survey is to be removed and
relocated. A condition
requiring submission and
approval of details as part of
the Landscape and Ecology
Management Plan is
recommended.

Biodiversity Enhancements
Section 9 (v) and condition
recommended.

53




9.1

Garden Trust

Have considered the information provided
and wish to make no comment. This does not
signify approval or disproval of the proposal.

Noted.

Flood Authority

strategy is acceptable subject to a pre-
commencement condition requiring the
submission of full details of the proposed
surface water drainage system including
supporting calculations confirming
compliance with the Non-Statutory Standards
for  Sustainable  Drainage, and its
maintenance arrangement.

Historic No comments received. Noted.

England

Highways No objection. Section 9 (vi)

Officer

Lead Local | The preliminary surface water drainage | Section 9 (viii) and condition

recommended.

Natural
England

No objections as the proposed development
will not have a significant adverse impacts on
statutorily protected nature conservation sites
or landscapes, and refers the Local Planning
Authority to Natural England’s generic advice
on other natural environmental issues.

Section 9 (v)

Other Interested Parties

Where in the report this is

Informatives recommended in relation to
approval from Thames Water to discharge to
a public sewer, water pressure, and the use
of mains water for construction.

Group Comment ;
considered
Access No information submitted on the accessibility | Noted.
Advisory Forum | of the amenities in Adventure Land.
Thames Water | No objections in relation to waste water and | Noted and informatives
sewage treatment infrastructure capacity. | recommended.

EXPLANATION OF RECOMMENDATION

The key issues for consideration are:

i Green Belt

ii Character and Appearance

iii Heritage Assets

iv Trees
% Ecology
Vi Highways and Parking

54




9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

9.6

Vil Neighbouring Amenity

viii Sustainable Drainage
iX Planning Balance
[ Green Belt

The entire site lies within the Metropolitan Green Belt and the fundamental aim of Green Belt
policy is to prevent urban sprawl by keeping land permanently open. Paragraph 145 of the NPPF
states that new buildings in the Green Belt would be regarded as inappropriate development with
some exceptions, while paragraph 146 of the NPPF goes on to list other forms of development
that are also not inappropriate provided that they preserve its openness and do not conflict with
the purposes of including land within it.

Local Plan policy GB1 also sets out what may be considered appropriate development in the
Green Belt, which includes redevelopment of designated major sites in accordance with GB9.
However, while the Development Plan comprises of the Local Plan, policies GB1 and GB9 were
prepared in accordance with the cancelled PPG2 Green Belts and not entirely consistent with the
NPPF. As such, GB1 and GB9 are given limited weight for the purposes of this assessment. The
NPPF is considered to be the most up-to-date expression of Government intent and given
significant weight.

In this context, paragraph 145 (g) of the NPPF states that limited infilling or the partial or
complete redevelopment of previously developed land, whether redundant or in continuing use
(excluding temporary buildings), need not be inappropriate development in the Green Belt. This is
subject to the development not having a greater impact on the openness of the Green Belt than
the existing development.

Appendix 2 of the NPPF defines previously developed land as ‘land which is or was occupied by
a permanent structure including the curtilage of the development land (although it should not be
assumed that the whole of the curtilage should be developed) and any associated fixed surface
infrastructure’. On the basis of this definition it is considered that the site would fall under the
definition of previously developed land as the site lies within the main theme park and its
curtilage.

Turning to the impact on openness, the concept of openness relates to the lack of development
or built form, however Turner v SSCLG and East Dorset Council [2016] and Goodman v SSCLG
[2017] established that the impact of openness of the Green Belt should be assessed taking into
account both its spatial and visual impact, while Euro Garages Limited v SSCLG [2018]
establishes that greater floor area and/or volume does not necessarily mean that there is a
greater impact and it is also necessary to consider “the impact or harm, if any, wrought by the
change”. This Case Law is a material consideration, and in response to this case law the National
Planning Policy Guidance (NPPG) which supports the NPPF advises that in addition to volume
the visual impact of the proposal may also be relevant and the degree of activity likely to be
generated.

The new drop tower ride, play equipment and photo-opportunity building would be sited in
between existing rides and buildings, and would not exceed the height of the highest structure
within the main theme park (The Jolly Rocker ride, which measures approximately 17.5m above
ground). In the context of the main theme park it is considered that the new drop tower ride, play
equipment and photo-opportunity building would not have a greater impact on openness of the
Green Belt than the existing. However, the Main Attraction Building would be sited on open
grassland which is used as back-of-house and for temporary storage / maintenance purposes at
the outer edge of the theme park. There is currently no permanent structures on this part of the
site. Measuring approximately 13m in height with footprint of approximately 603sgm and a floor

55



9.7

9.8

9.9

9.10

9.11

area of approximately 1070sgm over 5 floors (basement, ground floor, first floor, second floor and
plant floor) it is considered that the Main Attraction Building would be a substantial building. The
resultant mass and bulk of the proposed Main Attraction Building, together with its strident
materials and colour as shown on the proposed elevations, drawing ref: LLWR-SA-01-XX-DR-A-
0401 rev. 3, is considered to result in a greater spatial and visual impact upon openness of the
Green Belt than the existing development. The degree of activity in this part of the site is also
likely to increase as part of the main theme park rather than back of house. Overall it is
considered that the proposal would result in a moderate harm to openness. Therefore, the
proposal is not an exception under paragraph 145 (g) of the NPPF and considered to be
inappropriate development in the Green Belt. In accordance with paragraph 144 of the NPPF this
is given substantial weight against the development.

Paragraph 143 of the NPPF states that where a proposal would be inappropriate development in
Green Belt that development should not be approved except in Very Special Circumstances
(VSC). Paragraph 144 of the NPPF states that VSC will not exist unless the potential harm to the
Green Belt by reason of its inappropriateness and any other harm resulting from the proposal is
clearly outweighed by other considerations. In terms of any other harm, it is considered that there
is very limited harm to landscape character and limited harm to ecology, which is given very
limited and limited weight against the development, respectively. This is discussed further in
sections iv and v below.

The applicant advances that the proposal is appropriate development, they also put forward a
case for VSC within the submitted Planning, Design and Access Statement which is set out
below. The decision-taker has to exercise a qualitative judgment and ask whether the
circumstances, taken together, are very special.

In relation to benefits of the scheme, the applicant has put forward a case for Very Special
Circumstances (VSC) which are each is assessed in turn.

Need for Development

The Council’s Tourism Plan indicates that Attractions and Entertainment accounts for £46 million
of tourism spends in 2015, and it has been put forward that Legoland accounts or a significant
proportion of this figure. It has therefore been put forward that the theme park is important locally
and regionally in terms the tourism economy. The leisure / tourism market is highly competitive
commercial market, and there is cyclical investment into Legoland to keep with the latest trends
to maintain its status as a leading regional theme park and the benefits to the local economy.
Furthermore, in addition to maintaining visitor numbers, it has been put forward that the proposal
would smooth visitor numbers over the season with two indoor (poor weather) attractions. This is
accepted. Direct expenditure generated by visitors and tourism in the Borough in 2017 was
£441.8 million and additional indirect and induced effects (which generate a further £124.7
million) translates to £566.5 million worth of income for local businesses. Legoland is one of
Britain’s most popular paid for tourist attractions with over 2.3 million visitors per year in 2018,
and considered to contribute to the tourism value. Proportionally, this is given moderate weight
in favour of the development.

Alternative Sites

A realistic fall back consideration is a material consideration. The proposal was considered in
another location within Legoland under 17/01878/OUT (Project 5, New Rides Attraction). The
applicant has put forward that there would be a neutral impact that would arise by relocating to
the alternative site subject to this application. However, it would have been sited centrally within
the resort under 17/01878/OUT and was considered to be appropriate development in Green Belt
and therefore the impact on the Green Belt is not comparable. Therefore no weight is given.

Other Special Reasons

56



9.12

The third part of the VSC case advanced by the applicant are the other special reasons which

they have identified. These are assessed below:

Case Made By Applicant

Officer Response

Employment Effects

The direct operations jobs supported by
Legoland include a combination of permanent
and seasonal jobs, the total of which includes
approximately 290 permanent jobs and over
1800 seasonal jobs. This equates to
approximately 1163 full time equivalent jobs.

The annual wage bill supporting the current
operations, facilities and services amount to
approximately £16.7million, 78% of which is
retained in householders in the local area.

The submitted Planning, Design and Access
Statement that the development will create 20
jobs (permanent and seasonal).

It is considered that the estimate of 1,163 FTE
and the estimate of 78% of wage expenditure
being retained in local households is
reasonable and robust.

It is accepted that the proposal would maintain
visitor numbers and thereby overall
employment, in addition to creating 20 jobs
(permanent and seasonal). This is given
moderate _weight in__ favour of the
development.

Operational Expenditure

In addition to wage spending, the total
expenditure on the supply of goods and
services to Legoland is around £31million
annually. Business Rates per year to RBWM
amount of approximately £1.7million.

The expenditure on goods and services to
Legoland in the local area has not been
guantified, and due to the national profile and
operations of the resort it is likely that the
supply chain linkages would extend regionally
and nationally. It is accepted that the proposal
would maintain visitor numbers and thereby the
viability of the business. Proportionally, this is
given moderate weight in_favour of the
development.

Visitor Economy Impact

Legoland attracts a large number of visitors to
Windsor, which has a strong positive impact on
the local ecology with increase spending levels
to other tourist attractions, local businesses etc.

It is considered that this is covered in the Need
for Development to maintain visitor numbers
and its contribution locally and regionally in
terms of the tourism economy, which is given
moderate weight in favour of the development.
To avoid double counting this is given no
additional _weight under _other special
reasons.

Community Impact

Legoland wundertakes a wide range of
community and charity initiatives through their
own programme and in partnership with other
organisations  which include donating
approximately 8000 free tickets to Windsor
School Pupils; free annual passes to RBWM
foster care programme; setting up a charity
partnership with Alexander Devine, the first

This is a benefit which weighs in favour of the
proposal. However, no case has been put
forward that the community and charitable
benefits directly arise from the proposed
development. However, it is accepted that the
proposal would maintain visitor numbers and
thereby the viability of the business.
Proportionally, this is given limited weight in

57




9.13

9.14

9.15

9.16

Children’s Hospice in Berkshire; and
supporting  Merlin’'s  Magic Wand, an
international charity that delivers magical days
for seriously ill, disabled and disadvantaged
children and families.

favour of the development.

In addition to the above, while the proposal represents inappropriate development in the Green
Belt and it is considered that the proposal would result in moderate harm to openness, it is not
considered that there would be any conflict with the 5 purpose of the Green Belt set out in
paragraph 134 of the NPPF. This is given significant weight in favour of the proposal.

Purpose of the Green Belt

Comment

To check the unrestricted sprawl
to large built-up areas

The proposed development encroaches into open space
within the site, but would be contained within the developed

envelop of the resort. As such, the proposed development
would not result in unrestricted sprawl to large built up
areas.

To prevent neighbouring town
merging into one another

The application site does not form part of the green gap
between settlements, and therefore the proposal would not
contribute to neighbouring town merging into one another.

To assist in safeguarding the
countryside from encroachment

While the application site includes open space, the
application site is not considered to represent countryside.
The proposal therefore does not encroach into the
countryside.

To preserve the setting and
special character of historic town

The application site is located on the edge of Windsor and
forms part of its parkland landscape, but the proposal is not
considered to harm its setting and special character of the
parkland landscape and therefore does not harm the setting
and special character of Windsor.

To assist in urban regeneration by
encouraging the recycling of
derelict and other urban land

The rides and attractions require to be located with the
resort, and comprises of previously developed land as
defined in the NPPF. The proposal therefore does not
conflict with this purposes.

It is considered that the harm to the Green Belt and any other harm identified in the report, which
is set out below, is clearly outweighed by the VSC.

If minded to approve, it is recommended that this is subject to a S106 to ensure either the
proposal under this application or project 5 under 17/01878/OUT is implemented but not both.
This is because the VSC presented relies on the contribution of this proposal towards the tourism
economy, employment and operational spend, and the community and charitable benefits. It has
not been demonstrated that both, which could be implemented, is necessary to achieve the
same.

ii Character and Appearance Including Impact on Landscape Character

Local Plan policy DG1 states that new development should not cause harm to the character of
the surrounding area through development which results in the loss of important features which

58



9.17

9.18

9.19

9.20

9.21

9.22

contribute to that character. As a material consideration of significant weight, paragraph 124 and
130 of the NPPF advises that high quality buildings and places is fundamental to what planning
should achieve and permission should be refused for development of poor design that fails to
take the opportunity for improving the character and quality of the area.

The site is classified as ‘Farmed Parkland’ (3d Windsor Great Park West) in the Council’s
Landscape Character Assessment (LCA). The Windsor Great Park West landscape character
includes mature parkland and deciduous woodland copses and belts on the periphery of the
Crown Estate. The age of the parkland and woodland copses and link with Royal Patronage adds
a historic and cultural dimension to the character of this landscape type. Legoland is located
towards the centre of this landscape area, set within a wooded framework it is relatively screened
from the wider landscape although there are long distance views of the area from Flemish Farm
and Windsor Great Park (Queens Anne’s Gate). The LCA advises that long distance views
across the predominately undulating landscape, which are experienced by users on the roadways
and footpaths within the locality, are important to the visual character of this identified type.

The Council’s Landscape Strategy concludes that overall this landscape is largely intact and
therefore its condition is considered to be excellent, while the capacity for change is low due to
the extent of important natural features within it. In terms of issues for recreation and tourism, the
Council’'s Landscape Strategy notes that Legoland is a large investor in tourism since it opened in
1996 but the pressure for new amenity and recreational facilities, in particular the incremental
spread and increased tourist activity may have a potentially significant impact on landscape
character. However, the Strategy goes on to advise on outline landscape strategies which the
proposal broadly complies with. This includes the ‘zoning’ of visitor activities to avoid damage to
sensitive areas, and the avoidance of development which would result in the loss of views across
the landscape from surrounding routeways.

The new drop tower ride, play equipment and photo-opportunity building would be sited on land
that currently comprises of ‘Adventure Land’ while the Main Attraction Building would be sited on
land in ancillary use to the theme park, and therefore within the envelope of the theme park. It
needs to be considered whether the loss of trees results in harm to the Parkland landscape
character. The Council’'s Landscape Character Assessment identifies Legoland as part of the
Parkland landscape, but it is considered that the Legoland incorporates its own distinct character.
Veteran trees are part of this characteristic, but are to be retained and there are no objections in
terms of impact by the proposal on their health and longevity as a result of the development. The
impact on trees is assessed in section iv. In relation to the wider Parkland landscape, the
Landscape Character Assessment identifies one of the key characteristics is the theme park
being framed by woodland. It is considered that the proposal would not erode this characteristic
and therefore acceptable in this respect.

In terms of general design and appearance, the overall height, form, scale, colours and materials
are considered to be acceptable within the context of Legoland.

In terms of views, the application is supported by the Landscape and Visual Appraisal (LVA)
which assesses the character, quality and value of the landscape and then considers the effects
of the proposal. Based on visualisations the LVA demonstrates that there would be no effect on
views from Windsor Great Park Queen Anne’s Gate with only negligible views of the tops of the
main attraction building from Windsor Great Park Cavalry Exercise Ground due to intervening
woodland and landform. It is noted that no visualisations have been included from Flemish Farm
or the south, but it is considered that direct views are likely to be minimal for the same reasons.

i Heritage Assets
The Windsor Great Park, a Grade | Registered Historic Park and Garden (RHPG), is a receptor of

high significance and sensitivity; the boundary of the RHPG is located circa 300m to the south-
east of the application site.

59



9.23

9.24

9.25

9.26

9.27

9.28

Paragraph 193 of the NPPF states that when considering the impact of a proposed development
on the significance of a designated heritage asset, great weight should be given to the asset’s
conservation (and the more important the asset, the greater the weight should be). Paragraph
194 of the NPPF goes on to state that substantial harm to assets of the highest significance
which includes Grade | registered parks and gardens, should be wholly exceptional and should
be refused unless it can be demonstrated that the substantial harm is necessary to achieve
substantial public benefits that outweigh that harm. Paragraph 196 of the NPPF states that where
a development leads to less than substantial harm to the significance of a designated heritage
asset, this harm should be weighed against the public benefits of the proposal including securing
its optimum viable use.

In this case, the proposal is not considered to result in any harm to the RHPG given the
screening of the site and the separation distance between the two. As such, it is considered that
the proposal is acceptable in this respect.

iv Trees

Local Plan policy N6 states that new development should wherever practicable allow for the
retention of existing trees, include appropriate tree planting and landscaping, and where the
amenity value of trees outweigh the justification for development planning permission may be
refused. As a material consideration of significant weight, paragraph 170 of the NPPF states that
planning decisions should recognise the intrinsic character of trees and woodland, while
paragraph 175 states that development resulting in the loss or deterioration of irreplaceable
habitats such as ancient woodland and ancient and veteran trees should be refused unless there
are wholly exceptional reasons. With reference to the definition of veteran trees in Appendix 2 of
the NPPF, it is considered that trees no. 3, 27, 32, 34, 45 and 46 on drawing ref: 1183-KC-XX-
YTREE-TCPO1 Rev A, are veteran oaks. Appendix 2 of the NPPF defines an ancient or veteran
tree as a tree which, because of its age, size and condition, is of exceptional biodiversity, cultural
or heritage value. All ancient trees are veteran trees. Not all veteran trees are old enough to be
ancient, but are old relative to other trees of the same species.

The north-western section of ‘Adventure Land’ is covered by a TPO that protects all Oak, Elm,
Fir, Ash, Beech, Birch, Chestnut, Thorn and Poplar. The area to the south-east forms part of a
Woodland TPO designation covering all species ref: 003/1963/TPO.

A Tree Survey and Impact Assessment has been submitted to support the proposal along with a
Tree Constraints Plan, ref: 1183-KC-XX-YTREE-TCPO1 Rev A and Tree Protection Plan, ref:
1183-KC-XX-YTREE-TPPO1 Rev B.

Veteran Trees

There are veteran trees within the site (no. 3, 27, 32, 34, 45 and 46). Natural England's standing
advice for Local Planning Authorities states that there could be direct and indirect impacts as a
result of development such as damaging or destroying all or part of them or increasing
disturbance to wildlife amongst other examples therefore a buffer zone is recommended. The
buffer should be at least 15 times its stem diameter. The submitted Tree Constraints Plan,
drawing ref: 1183-KC-XX-YTREE-TCPO1 Rev A illustrates Natural England’s recommended
buffer, which has subsequently been confirmed as accurate and correct by the applicant.
However, there is already development within the buffer zone of veteran trees. Natural England is
silent in relation to buffers and previously developed land, but taking the pragmatic approach, it is
considered that the situation should not be made any worse. In this case, drawing ref: LLWR-SA-
XX-XX-DR-A-0016 P4, which illustrates the buffer in relation to proposed development, indicates
new hardstanding of approximately 83sgm within the buffer zone of oaks no. 3 and 27. However,
there would also be some gain in the removal of hardstanding and return of land to a natural state
measuring approximately 97sgm. Together with measures to ameliorate the soil environment, it is
considered that the buffer environment would not be significantly worse than the existing situation
and therefore acceptable. If minded to approve, it is recommended that these measures are

60



9.29

9.30

9.31

9.32

9.33

9.34

secured by condition through the submission and approval of a Landscape and Ecology
Management Plan. There is also minor gain in the buffer zone for oak no. 45 in the removal of a
kiosk south of this tree.

The partially covered queue line area for the tower ride is within the buffer of veteran oak no. 32.
Whilst this is over existing hard standing, there are likely to be some structural supports for the
roof, which may require localised excavation to the outer edge of the buffer zone. If minded to
approve it is considered that hand dig method of excavation within the buffer zone for this veteran
oak should be secured by condition.

Other Trees

The proposal includes the loss of a few trees which are rated category C, which is one of the
lower category of trees. In general category C trees should not impose a constraint on the
development provided that their loss is adequately mitigated with replacement planting.
Replacement and new tree planting is proposed in areas across the application site as shown on
drawing ref: 591/38 5. The submitted Tree Survey and Impact Assessment states that this would
result in a net gain of trees. The Tree Survey and Impact Assessment also recommends that
native species are proposed. If minded to approve this can be secured by condition through a
Landscape and Ecology Management Plan.

Totem Pole

The new tower ride is sited towards the centre of the site where there is currently a dead tree
which has been retained and sculpted into a totem pole. There is a legal duty to replace trees that
have died under S. 206 of the Town & Country Planning Act 1990 and the Council’s Arboriculture
Officer has advised that it is desirable for a replacement to be planted in the same place to link
veteran oaks no. 45 and 46, which are within the Picnic Grove, with the band of the trees to the
south-west (nos. 28-29 and 31-39). The Council’'s Arboriculture Officer considered that the
absence of a replacement tree in this location would otherwise isolate oaks no. 45 and 46.
Natural England’s Standing Advice for Local Planning Authorities when assessing the impact of
development upon veteran trees notes that an indirect impact of development can includes the
breaking up or destroying of connections between woodland and ancient or veteran trees.
However, due to the modest separation distance from veteran oaks no. 45 and 46 to the bank of
trees to the south-west the loss of the visual ‘stepping stone’ is only considered to cause very
limited harm to the landscape character of the area.

Utilities

The new sustainable drainage pipe and flow control manhole to the south of the Main Attraction
Building shown on drawing ref: LLWR-HBL-XX-XX-DR-D-0753 P02 is not considered to result in
any unacceptable impact to the RPA of no. 33.

It is noted that no details have been submitted of any other additional underground utilities
required but it is considered that there is sufficient space for underground utilities to be installed
without incursion into the buffer and root protection area of existing and new trees within the site.
To ensure this, submission and approval of underground utility details include their location can
be secured by condition.

v Ecology

Special Area of Conservation

The site lies within 5km and the zone of influence of Windsor Forest and Great Park Special Area
of Conservation (SAC), which is a European Designated site. The primary reason for designation
is the significance of old acidophilous oak woods, range and diversity of saprxylic invertebrates,
and fungal assemblages. The Natura 2000 data form for Windsor Forest and Great Park reports

61



9.35

9.36

9.37

9.38

9.39

that the main threats relate to forest and plantation management and use; air pollution, invasive
non-native species; and interspecific floral relations. Where any proposal is likely to have a
significant effect on a European site either alone or in combination with other plans or projects,
the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 requires an appropriate assessment
to be made in view of that site’s conservation objectives. Paragraphs 175 and 176 of the NPPF
state that development resulting in the loss or deterioration of Special Areas of Conservation
should be refused unless there are wholly exceptional reasons and a suitable compensation
strategy exists. In this case given the nature of development the proposed development, alone
and in combination with other development, is not considered to have a significant effect on
Windsor Forest and Great Park, therefore an Appropriate Assessment is not required.

On Site Biodiversity

As a material consideration protecting and enhancing the natural environment forms part of the
‘Environmental’ dimension of ‘Sustainable Development’ and paragraph 170 of the NPPF states
that planning decisions should minimise impacts on and provide net gains for biodiversity.
Paragraph 175(a) states that if significant harm to biodiversity resulting from a development
cannot be avoided, adequately mitigated or as a last resort compensated for then planning
permission should be refused.

There are a number of mature trees on site, some of which have been classified as veteran,
which are likely to provide valuable habitat. Natural England's standing advice for Local Planning
Authorities states that there could be direct and direct impacts as a result of development such as
damaging or destroying all or part of them or increasing disturbance to wildlife amongst other
examples therefore a buffer zone is recommended. In this case, there is already development
within buffer for veteran trees, and while there would be some loss with the buffer zone there
would also be an approximate area being returned to a natural state, which is considered to
adequately maintain the buffer. If minded to approve, a condition is recommended to secure this
and details of restoration.

There are also a small number of trees that are to be removed as part of the proposed
development however there are no objections subject to like for like replacement planting to
contribute towards biodiversity.

Bats

A submitted Preliminary Ecology Appraisal and Bat Survey confirms that all buildings within the
proposed development area were recorded as having negligible potential to support bats, and
therefore it was considered that no further survey on these structures were required.

Trees and tree stumps within the site were also assessed for the potential to support roosting
bats and a number of trees and the carved totem pole were recorded as having the potential to
support roosting bats. An emergence survey was subsequently undertaken which recorded a
soprano pipistrelle emerging from the totem pole. However, to accommodate the new drop tower,
the proposal will result in the loss of this feature which without mitigation would result in a
significant ecological impact. No details of the mitigation has been provided as part of this
application, but as the totem pole is to be removed a European Protected Species Licence from
Natural England will be required as all species of bats receive special protection under UK law
and it is a criminal offence under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and The
Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (The Habitat Regulations), to
deliberately or recklessly destroy or damage their roosts. To obtain a licence, appropriate
mitigation would be required which should include details of the translocation of the carved
structure or replacement of the roost, timings of the works, details and locations of the
replacement roosts. If minded to approve it is recommended that this is subject to a condition
requiring the developer to apply for and obtain a European Protected Species Licence from
Natural England, and submit a copy to the Local Planning Authority.

62



9.40

9.41

9.42

9.43

9.44

9.45

Lighting

While the development is located within the existing resort which incorporates high levels of
lighting, there is a confirmed bat roost on site (the totem pole to be relocated) and several trees
that have the potential to support roosting bats. If minded to approve it is therefore recommended
that a wildlife friendly lighting strategy is prepared to ensure roosting, commuting and foraging
bats will not be impacted as part of the redevelopment. If minded to approve details within a
Landscape and Ecology Management Plan can be secured by condition.

Invertebrates

The veteran trees within the site are likely to support invertebrates in addition to the tree stump
located towards the south-east of the site which is identified as TN4 in the submitted Preliminary
Ecology Appraisal and Bat Survey. The applicant has confirmed that the veteran trees with
invertebrate interest will be retained as part of the development, and it is considered that their
protection during construction work can be secured by condition. The tree stump will be
relocated, but while it is desirable that this is left in situ this is only considered to cause limited
harm. If minded to approve details of the removal and relocation of tree stump TN4 within a
Landscape and Ecology Management Plan can also be secured by condition.

Reptiles and Amphibians

The submitted Preliminary Ecology Survey reports that the application has negligible potential to
support reptiles and amphibians and therefore no further survey for these groups of species are
required.

Biodiversity Enhancements

Paragraph 109 of the NPPF states that the planning system should contribute to and enhance the
natural and local environment by providing net gains in biodiversity where possible, contributing
to the Government’s commitment to halt the overall decline in biodiversity. The site is likely to
have the potential to increase its biodiversity and could include native species planting,
management of grassland for wildlife, incorporation of bird and bat boxes, and creation of log
piles / hibernacular. No details of biodiversity enhancements have been submitted as part of this
application, but details to be included within a Landscape and Ecology Management Plan can be
secured by condition.

Vi Highways and Parking

Local Plan policy T5 requires all development proposals to comply with adopted highway design
standards, policy P4 requires all development proposals to accord with adopted car parking
standards, and policy T7 seeks to ensure that new development makes appropriate provision for
cyclists including cycle parking. As a material consideration, paragraph 109 of the NPP states
that development should only be prevented or refused on highways grounds if there would be an
unacceptable impact on highway safety, or the residual cumulative impacts on the road network
would be severe.

Trip Generation

It is established that the principle of a new visitor attraction is not a visitor trip generator in itself.
Past evidence presented by Legoland and accepted by the Planning Inspectorate indicates that
visitor numbers do not automatically increase after investments in new attractions as new
attractions would represent a small fraction of the overall draw. On this basis and in the absence
of compelling evidence otherwise, it is considered the proposal would not result in a material
increase in trips to the site. It is acknowledged that the highway network is under significant
pressure at peak times however any increase in traffic generated by the proposal would not be
significant in the context of the daily and seasonal fluctuations in flow and therefore would not be

63



9.46

9.47

9.48

9.49

9.50

9.51

materially harmful in itself or cumulatively to the operation of the local highway network.
Additionally, it is noted that Legoland have been proactive with steps to manage trips to and from
the site and part of their wider strategy is to encourage sustainable methods of travel.

Parking

For visitors Legoland currently has 3,143 permanent car parking spaces and 10 cycle stands,
allowing parking for up to 20 cycles. There are no proposed changes to this provision. This is
considered acceptable as it is considered that there is unlikely to be any material increase in trips
to the site and thereby any additional demand for car or cycle parking.

Access

There are no changes to the existing access to the site or intensity of use, and so there are no
concerns over highway safety that over and above the existing situation.

vii Neighbouring Amenity

Paragraph 127 of the NPPF states that planning decisions should create a high standard of
amenity for existing and future users. The nearest residential properties to the proposal are
located over 350m away to the north-west (Chestnut Drive, Gratton Drive, Fairlawn Park and St
Leonards Hill). Given the significant separation distance, it is considered that the proposal would
not result in any undue loss of light, visual intrusion or loss of privacy to the nearest properties
nor create issues in terms of noise and disturbance.

viii Sustainable Drainage

Paragraph 165 of the NPPF states that major developments such as this should incorporate
sustainable drainage systems unless there is clear evidence that this would be inappropriate. In
this case, surface water run-off from all hardstanding and roof areas will be directed via
underground gravity pipe network to an attenuation tank with a flow control device for controlled
discharge to the existing 300mm diameter surface water sewer pipes via an existing manhole.
This is considered to be acceptable in principle, but further details of the design, construction
details and maintenance would be required. If minded to approve, it is recommended that a
condition is imposed to secure this.

iX Planning Balance

Paragraphs 10 and 11 of the NPPF set out that there will be a presumption in favour of
Sustainable Development. The latter paragraph states that:

For decision-taking this means:

c) approving development proposals that accord with an up-to-date development plan without
delay; or
d) where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies which are most
important for determining the application are out-of-date, granting permission unless:
i. the application of policies in this Framework that protect areas or assets of particular
importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed; or
ii. any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the
benefits, when assessed against the policies in this Framework taken as a whole.

Footnote 6 of the NPPF (2019) clarifies that section d(i) of paragraph 11 of the NPPF (2019) is
not applied where ‘policies in this Framework that protect areas or assets of particular importance
provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed’. This includes Green Belt, and
the proposal is considered to be inappropriate development in the Green Belt. However, for the
reasons set out in section ix it is considered that there are very special circumstances to justify

64



9.52

9.53

9.54

9.55

10.

10.1

11.

111

12.

13.

the development. As such, and whilst the proposed development falls within a ‘protect area(s) or
assets of particular importance’ there is no clear reason for refusing the proposed development
on this basis. Accordingly the so-called ‘tilted balance’ is engaged.

The harm to the Green Belt is given substantial weight against the development by reason of
inappropriateness in policy terms and moderate harm to openness. With removal of the totem
pole/relocation of replacement tree there would be very limited harm in relation to landscape
character, which is given very limited weight against the development. With the relocation of
deadwood within the site there would be limited harm, which is given limited weight against the
development.

The proposal would not conflict with any of the 5 purposes of the Green Belt, which his given
significant weight in favour of the proposal. The proposal would also result in a number of
economic benefits with its contribution to the tourism economy which is given moderate weight
in_favour of the development, employment which is given moderate weight in favour of the
development, and operational expenditure which is given moderate weight in favour of the
development. There are also community and charitable benefits, which is given limited weight in
favour of the development.

It is considered that the proposal would be in compliance with national and local planning policies
in relation to heritage assets, trees, highway and parking, neighbouring amenity or surface water
flood risk, and therefore would not result in any harm. However, there are also considered to be
no benefits, and would therefore carry neutral weight.

Overall, it is considered that the benefits would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the harm.
COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY (CIL)

The Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead implemented its Community Infrastructure Level
(CIL) to help deliver the infrastructure needed to support development in the area in September
2016. In accordance with the adopted CIL charging schedule the development is CIL liable, but
the chargeable rate is £0 per square metre.

CONCLUSION

Paragraph 11 of the Framework explains how the presumption in favour of sustainable
development applies. As set out in section ix it is considered that in this instance the tilted
balance should be applied. For decision making this means approving development proposals
any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits,
when assessed against the policies in this Framework taken as a whole. However such
assessment are considered to be academic. This is because for reasons set out above, Officers
are of the view that if this application is determined in accordance with the normal test under
section 38(6) of the 2004 Act the proposal is in general conformity with the Development Plan
overall and that there are no material considerations of sufficient weight to justify refusal.

APPENDICES TO THIS REPORT
e Appendix A - Site location plan
e Appendix B — Proposed site layout
e Appendix B — Proposed Plans and Elevations
CONDITIONS RECOMMENDED FOR INCLUSION IF PERMISSION IS GRANTED

The development hereby permitted shall be commenced within three years from the date of this
permission.

65



Reason: To accord with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
(as amended).

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the approved plans
listed below.

Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the approved
particulars and plans.

No development above slab level shall take place until details of the materials to be used on the
external surfaces of the development have first been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out and maintained in accordance
with the approved details.

Reason: In the interests of the visual amenities of the area. Relevant Policy DG1, N1

The erection of fencing for the protection of any retained tree and any other protection specified
shall be undertaken in accordance with the approved plans and particulars before any
equipment, machinery or materials are brought on to the site, and thereafter maintained until the
completion of all construction work and all equipment, machinery and surplus materials have
been permanently removed from the site. Nothing shall be stored or placed in any area fenced in
accordance with this condition and the ground levels within those areas shall not be altered, nor
shall any excavation be made, without the written approval of the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To protect trees which contribute to the visual amenities of the site and surrounding
area. Relevant Policies - Local Plan DG1, NG6.

All works involving excavation of soil, including foundations, erection of structural supports and
the laying of services, within the buffer zone of retained trees as shown on drawing ref: LLWR-
SA-XX-XX-DR-A-0016 PA shall be dug by hand.

Reason: To safeguard existing trees to be retained. Relevant Policies - Local Plan DG1, N6.

No development shall commence until a Landscape and Ecology Management Plan has been
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The Landscape and Ecology
Management Plan shall set out the details of the creation, maintenance, and management of the
biodiversity enhancements including native species planting, management of grassland for
wildlife, incorporation or bird and bat boxes, creation of log piles and hibernaculars; details of a
wildlife friendly lighting strategy for external lighting which should be prepared following Bat
Conservation Trust guidelines and should include details of the prevention of increased lux and
illumination levels within sensitive areas, avoidance of lighting in known or potential roosts,
creation of dark corridors through the development, use of low sodium laps or lamps with UV
filters; details of the removal and relocation of deadwood stump marked TN4 in the Preliminary
Ecological Appraisal and Bat Survey (July 2019); details of the removal of hardstanding and
restoration to natural state of areas within the buffer zones as shown on drawing ref: LLWR-SA-
XX-XX-DR-A-0016 PA including the amelioration of the soil environment and location and
species to be planted which should be native; and details including location and species of
replacement tree planting for the trees shown to be removed on drawing ref: LLWR-SA-XX-XX-
SC-A-3001 PA and new trees which are proposed in areas shown in drawing ref: 591/38 5. The
development hereby approved shall be implemented and maintained in accordance with the
approved details.

Reason: In the interest of the health and longevity of existing trees, the character of the area, and
biodiversity. Relevant Policies - Local Plan DG1, N1, N6 and Paragraph 170 and 175 of the
National Planning Policy Framework.

A copy of the European Protected Species License for bats, issued by Natural England must be
obtained and the development shall be carried out in accordance with the agreed license.
Reason: To ensure that the development will not harm the protected species and its habitat.
Relevant Policies - Paragraph 170 and 175 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

Prior to commencement (excluding demolition) a surface water drainage scheme for the
development, based on submitted sustainable drainage strategy, shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Details shall include: Full details of all
components of the proposed surface water drainage system including dimensions, locations,
gradients, invert levels, cover levels and relevant construction details. Supporting calculations
confirming compliance with, the Non-statutory Standards for Sustainable Drainage, and the
agreed discharge rate of 5 I/s from Zone 1 of the proposed development, and the attenuation
volumes to be provided. Details of the maintenance arrangements relating to the proposed

66



1

surface water drainage system, confirming who will be responsible for its maintenance and the
maintenance regime to be implemented. The surface water drainage system shall be
implemented and maintained in accordance with the approved details thereafter.

Reason: To ensure compliance with the National Planning Policy Framework and the Non-
Statutory Technical Standards for Sustainable Drainage Systems, and to ensure the proposed
development is safe from flooding and does not increase flood risk elsewhere. Relevant Policies -
Paragraph 165 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

Prior to the installation of underground utilities, details including their location shall be submitted
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out
and maintained in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure that the any existing and new planting is not compromised. Relevant Policies
- Local Plan DG1, N6.

Informatives

Where the developer proposes to discharge to a public sewer, prior approval from Thames
Water Developer Services will be required. Should you require further information please refer
to: https://developers.thameswater.co.uk/Developing-a-large-site/Apply-and-pay-for-
services/Wastewater-services

Thames Water will aim to provide customers with a minimum pressure of 10m head (approx 1
bar) and a flow rate of 9 litres/minute at the point where it leaves Thames Waters pipes. The
developer should take account of this minimum pressure in the design of the proposed
development.

If you are planning on using mains water for construction purposes, it's important you let Thames

Water know before you start using it, to avoid potential fines for improper usage. More
information and how to apply can be found online at thameswater.co.uk/buildingwater.

67



Appendix A — Site Location Plan

8E/16S

_ ﬂ”oon\. ﬂ
v & docen
—— 1 o)

]

umee @
X3y 93(01d YOSONIA ONYIODIT,

e
195 6 NOXD STV NOATIN4 TNGHINON “ENOH ONCd

S¥INNYId 3dVOSONYT ONV SLOIUHDEY
d17¥3883M | NAO¥E | STOHDIN

|
scamrS: Kpyes puT Epeq KL 3F e

> ey 915 205 s mpnss dxsodus;
5% J0 39T PUE BOBID ) S 4 5 IR G |
sunpang Amodus

“eumngs

Sapemozns o jo apiges @ ams 0 xxwaE0d
5 g w3 39 pogs soETEal w30 V.
sampnng D elpy /Sugs jo vegmalg

e Iy snopaT
s e 5900 FUELDR UG OGS

A 6
pumsoandmbs Gy SSUARD Qi 0 P 3V,

Suauaus pow 0 Dud suAPLRs 0o v
i U P33 0351 XA 3 DASMOH “RIsEp
% § U0 PP G PIROGS 3S AF & HITY
sy

“Basesp

S U0 PATAPU LR OUPP KT 30§ J0RP0-0) WD

sa.:iasxxlall-n.!-av K3
u““:u..l_&é FOOSI0C 2 o 4%
wn 65 swey oL 0 @ v L, 7
Eu#ﬁ\

xodad i 0y Buynesp 213 w0 paprial Q“‘

25 2 o prRo S pd o sy

NiE -
I IN( ORI PATITS 257 65 AP SEORIOIN B ), 4 ¢
Y | 1 PATES 2530 DU S 3 T ]

) posdazd 533 SR DL S1G 1 FUREP L
SAUVMNO 18 /165,

ST DN ¥ AXA
nodnd g0
Auw 30 posm 3 w0u pocgs A3q] womsRIGRS SunwTy

SALON INVINOJWI

\‘“

7N os .
GRS
Clb e\

N

BN
«"\.\ s Y‘

T L

68



Appendix B — Proposed Site Layout

Z| 85/165
TR
wn

pasodolg ubid Y0018

xay w2foid YOSANIM ANVIOD3T

D9 40 NOVD SIVHL NO AT HINGMON T5T0H GNOu
INYT ON!

SUINNVId 34VISONYT ONY S1D3ILHONY
dT1438E3M | NAOYE | STOHDIN

v -
| m
Anmpunog g usuxdopasg 1opy y
E
fempmog dmssung |

Kempunog Summg | :
PoucEpuos 3 o) Fugued ﬁ
s poo smousfiput jo s aoN [0 L
PowRRUO 3G01
T Fuumpd mof ey Jo TR MIN g

PowRpuO> 3q01
1 Funuepd mo| Xy o ST MIN

Azepunog uoneanddy
Suruuel x2y 1204

sompns pur Fupmg MON

1/B5/165 o S310N uoviodus sa5 ihay ¢ ¥
B

69



Appendix C— Proposed Plans and Elevations

70

Y
ToTERSE IS UEED POD W27




e LI EI OO UE HNT

womseu sques B T n]m ],. = W s
T o, ue|dioo|4 - Juswabuelly [e18Uss) § 0} g sBuipjing
N o0s o

)
B [ o s e
Her  pepap s g "/

wawsbuewy E2usn 5 1 7 B 7 Bupmng

3 B

Ao ey, wopdur pemen
WrOTIRUI AR g
‘SBLEE BESkDl v 4 e wrmeaes weey
o2 BESLD e | veens ubm 21

Wiy v Az
& NyaHLANS Ao i
A wmr
a

\ —

1202 Xy Joaloig

usamac] Aotk
SUSWLIELEUT WS - 10SpUIM pUBIOBS] \
L] /
¥s @E Y
© g et
snams Buiseag = SDARINS 3840 £ L0 BN

ot B e
B, e

) e s
[ ——"

2298 &
H
®

—
mmancog By - W
R Ze)
&
LEE
§F
£
¥ Bupe
o s

| T T I | g oy

A TR

g
Buipjing - sinpayog scedsioo)4

v e
== [l FLLT

T B TR W

¥
Buipjing - sinpayog soedsion|4

s Jrwe] © |
[ TR I |

|
| -3

 ——r— -

14
Buipjing - sjnpauog soedsioo|4

£
o/

4
Buipjing - a|npayos aocedsioo)4

“OpEE AU DI U o
oS I PROSR 1D DENGAL S50 o B S
CEPes A, I DUF (ALUsEmN L LEYE] OISO
N 205 AT 1 P LD S AL L

00 0 NI A1 0 PEODES ERERU 10 £ A
B I et ] LR ] O SO A3 AR

Py 5 o A mnjeg opoenun g
575 Un PeTPey> =0 FINOUS SFUAE AU S TR 1Y

71



= F T

[es— EETT—

50 peman oy

g
- L a iS50
owgor  perus - =g

wABUELY [2i3650 AIUNUodds a0t

s By

VI3

-
& NvaHLANS A
40 € d N M
a ﬂ<._oom._%

1207 xay Rsloig

]

SUSUELSIUT Usy - 10SPUINL PUEloBsT]

ws zwm e\
cc_n__oo_u_UEE:m....._c:toqn_Ocha,/m\._

R

g
%y
g

2
wr

1M 2530650 00w - | 240 rew]

DU 2 0 Sojudels) - peng abeufis|

Cwew MIS U 198D 32|

pacIdde IEILUIS 10 FZ0S Tvd 3G
edoy Wb 212 6627 Mo - Buaaus|
318 PAECD J3pW0d - £ 3K J00u

paacsdce|

RIS 1o ¥apdo) wedsbur - L 241 ooy

Buge|9 pawe 1 wnuuniypaEas)|
Jepmag - | adh) Buzes

30Uz
Ul SRR Ul We - 2 3661 30usd

261 uBsaq - sous|
2un 3nand ubs wi'L - | 360 26y

J50p AL SI0) SIS DE00 S

1920000 315 PRISANGT PSIEDD SOMOS

. )
UE|d ooy Duiping ..._c:toon:w ooud v/

)
¥

e By

mea tg wwq amg

B e T

e ey N SR D

I ey A o 1 D

51000 215 PRIEDD SOMed

Sno|
oy Burspdng AdouEa LgE) padins|
Buipuaue pEwnow s - £ 3d4) ddoues |

138070 JUGE SHISUSL U
Adowes pawesd paS - | 3601 ddoues)

TEL S100Re

o pusba sjouksn

3007 T JEOURAET PRI

O¥02 Tv 319 BUCIS P3N

2007 T @0, P2 el

V03 Ty e 24 Wig

£208 Tw SBURI0 WED

1105 Tv ¥oe

0124 B

€20

55 )3 o o | |

006 Tvad SUUM,

BEL spuke

puzba mog

oo o )

UONEAS[S 1567

UGNEAS[T JHON X

72

NLoGa0 ooud W2/




d TVEDCIVERNT N : B

wemaas s i e e ey
[T y—— [ [ iepwdg - | adA) Buzery| 1) 5005 T sepussE pay B bz
- gy 2405 TvH N7y wEq oBa|  aze
wewss oocpams o issapag UK Wz ‘hs.c.m_c& 2 i ot S BT NM_
E I 520 1v5 s g b el _e1
wer  sewo uwms wmo TR PRI oS TSI T |00 T seiorreas pteos rapwaa| 1] orae (o s b cBel] sel]
ssodaud s suagens Bupiing BONLD 0 ST B Tele e e S00v Tyt 197 Py WPus o vz
P ranensry Bupiing uryy H Nl U 580 SRRU0)| L 1o5I00q oS paEag Ipkd] 10 %109 TVH Uoag 194 1R a1 611]
R PanIalE F|ILIS 10 ¥206 T¥E S sropo A
ket wr 212 9ba najeg -Buteeys s B i auge s Ee
[ — [ — 15645 payeoy sepmog codd jooh| ey Bupusyo paunou [ - ¢ adA) ddoueg| g = ._kﬁ.um_..ﬂh_m RM._._ M
1 Sy o aise o=
pav Jan0D oue: EsuE ] )
By s s 10 yapdoy wedsBury - 4 ey joou | uid Adouey powsy o - 1 sk Adoeg| 10 006 TvH AmmMoEEl] &
£ o1 wwoaley EEn oL emue e o= Eo)
w5 TN o iy o

R VS e e =

anvioo P

1202 xay 1aloid

D]

—
v

SIWAUUENEUS UE - 105pU M PUEISES]

£

T

W suul ss

[t

o3

“oxed soneaoum pees o eney
‘0L g ondd £ 6L - o0 v

LSpTD? A0 DS B DANGAL 2O VR ulis
AEeETR F UE (Lo, A w50 SOEAELT)
A2 e 58 e 1y peesed eme 52 w1

=)

Do o o paate sanmmuo 5 woue e

B o eer g 1 omyes e Ancys susrsoeup e
U 2 ] o AL e AT K

BT U0 DANDET BT FTOLE ELORLBLD LD TARE THEA 1Y

73



e LI Y 1S T
v sscuns Buisea
0@ oAy

s

e m o s
onaor  peww  uwe =

1 uogosg Bupsng uep pesodoiy

oy By

o U . wepSury pewn
% PR 20 0LIS
[l 1L 05 oS Ba]

el Er T T

113

barson 2ocpus i PLmpB

1202 xay Joaloid

D]

SuawUEpET upay - 05puy pugioBe]

]

s

‘=nam Bupm

wmeg kg men s

® sam
B e e
B

0 ey s s ey s e e
i s i B Ak St
£ w3

.

150 ANGUS Scpe s perb

aucpoq e a3 i
ormnSp LR 3 O Y

o]

[ooi Tov

P

s [,

T5E3 DUMoO| Ul 80U &/ - | UONa8s m:.__u__jm N,

=m
o o
Te0

we

i
T T Turmneesww
=
B
ST s D w0 - i
4 — =
s e ™ 51

74



52 L0200 L VST
oy soqus Buj vy
B0 L

)

e o o sweom
o pewar g mg

suEly
1004 - wawsbuELy [I15usE Buppng UEY

‘o Bujwman

W00 LB LS MMM o6 pewr
o D o
Sz s v 4 wisiy oG eE
B0TLL BESLDl ¥ 1 vomng ybie 71

PA=] -
& NYIWIHLANS Ao

bosey soou p pumeb

1202 ¥ay 103loid

[

‘SWSLIIELES U - I0spuL puEaBe

]
s

s Buj g

meq g meg sm

] -

o b 01 =
[ =

) s M T "
[ b

S pORPds £ K Y MY

epzec oy ey o vy
YN0 AQ PEIDALER 40 DEMCALL SE0y of SR Ufksep
s U ey e ] LT

N 543 A BRI 1 pedesd s £ BUND AL

o PR a3 o) e ROSEUD 5 Saun A AE
Bhages oy ooucvooic o e o AU ucrRs g penby

P i A g s A
5 L0 Peria0y3 50 PNDS RCISUAIE DU 3035 Thibhey 1Y

451501 514 - 20-10YS £/

me e awos (T
._u_u_Eo_n_Em_&.wo._oé.w/m\

= -
L pp s Zmen mumg
=L 5o

-
0o s
T

wet aws (e
.an_uv::eo.s.s.qmé

. =
]
510t 250050

| r——

744 10014 pueass - e0-10-VS

znon g

we s swos (Cen

o

Spnaumy

744 uUsWaseg - 00-+0WS W/

i o,
Bapra um

75



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 7

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL PANEL

8 January 2020 ltem: 7

Application 19/02017/FULL

No.:

Location: Land At Datchet Common Horton Road Datchet Slough

Proposal: Use of the land as a Gypsy and Traveller site consisting of 9no. residential pitches 5no.
Amenities blocks, 1no. Warden blocks, play area, entrance gates and associated
parking.

Applicant: Messrs Giles And Loveridge

Agent: Dr Angus Murdoch

Parish/Ward:  Datchet Parish/Datchet Horton And Wraysbury

If you have a question about this report, please contact: Adam Jackson on 01628 796660 or at
adam.jackson@rbwm.gov.uk

1.

11

1.2

3.1

SUMMARY

The application seeks planning permission for 9 traveller pitches, 5 amenity blocks, a warden’s
block, new areas of hardstanding, parking areas, and a children’s play area. The development is
inappropriate development within the Green Belt. It is considered that the development would
have a significant impact on the openness of the Green Belt, and would result in encroachment
into the countryside. In addition, the application fails to demonstrate that the Sequential Test (in
respect of flood risk) has been passed.

A decision by the Secretary of State on this land for 9 traveller pitches (which was dismissed) is
a material consideration of significant weight in the determination of this application. This
development proposes the same number of pitches as the scheme considered by the secretary
of state and as such will have a similar impact on the openness of the Green Belt. The
development is also inappropriate by definition, and would result in encroachment in the
countryside, this harm to the Green Belt is given substantial weight. No very special
circumstances have been put forward, nor is it considered that any very special circumstances
exist that would clearly outweigh the harm to the Green Belt and the other harm identified.

It is recommended the Panel refuses planning permission for the following summarised
reasons (the full reasons are identified in Section 10 of this report):

1. | The proposal represents inappropriate development in the Green Belt. Inappropriate
development is by definition harmful to the Green Belt. The proposal would also result in a
significant impact on the openness of the Green Belt. No case for very special
circumstances has been put forward and it is not considered that any very special
circumstances exist that would clearly outweigh the harm caused to the Green Belt and the
other identified harm.

2. | The sequential test has also not been undertaken and as such it has not been
demonstrated that the development cannot be located in an area of lower flood risk.

REASON FOR PANEL DETERMINATION

o At the request of Councillor Larcome irrespective of the recommendation of the Head of
Planning due to the Green Belt and Flooding issues at the site.

DESCRIPTION OF THE SITE AND ITS SURROUNDINGS

The application site is located between houses on the south-western side of Horton Road and
south-eastern side of Cobb Close. A pallet storage yard is directly to the east of the site, as is a

77



3.2

3.3
3.4

4.1

4.2

4.3

spray booth, with associated car parking. A number of cars are currently parked on the land,
however, this use does not benefit from planning permission.

The land is known as Datchet Common (as it formed part of the Datchet Common area) although
it is not registered as Common Land and therefore does not provide this public function and the
rights normally associated with common land do not apply here.

To the south-west of the site is the existing Mill Place Caravan site which provides 16 pitches.

The application site is within the Green Belt, and the flood zone.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSAL AND ANY RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

Permission is sought for the use of the land as a gypsy and traveller site consisting of 9 pitches, 5
amenities blocks and a warden’s office. Areas of parking, hardstanding and a play area for
children are also proposed.

The pitches are approximately 15m x 15m each (including amenity blocks) with each amenity
building around 6.5m x 6m. The amenity blocks would include two bathrooms and utility rooms.
The utility buildings would sit under pitched roofs with a ridge height of around 3.7m. The
warden’s block measures 6 x 3.5m and also had a ridge height of 3.7m. No plans have been
provided regarding the expected size of the mobile homes, however the concrete hardstanding
laid out on each pitch for the mobile homes measures 12m x 6m. A play area is shown within the
application site. Some additional tree planting is indicated. The site would be accessed by
vehicles via an existing unnamed road which leads to Mill Place Caravan Park. An emergency
exit is shown from the application site through to land with commercial uses on (within the
ownership of the applicant).

Application Description of proposal Decision

Reference

17/02404/FULL | Use of the land as a Gypsy and Traveller site | Refused on 1% January 2018
consisting of 4 no. residential pitches, 2 no. — Appeal on going
Amenities blocks, 1 no Wardens block and
play area

17/02236/FULL | Adjacent to the application site is a planning Withdrawn on 6" December
application for the change of use of the land 2017
to the stationing/parking of vehicles

Use of the land as a Gypsy and Traveller site | Withdrawn on the 26™ July
16/03681/FULL | consisting of 5 no. residential pitches plus 1 2017

no. warden pitch, play area and three amenity
blocks.

14/01370/FULL | The use of land as a gypsy and traveller site Dismissed by the Secretary
consisting of 9 x pitches, 5 x utility buildings, of State on the 5" July 2016.
play area, warden's office and associated
works. Resubmission of planning application
13/02024

13/02024/FULL | The use of land as a public gypsy and Withdrawn on the 29" April
traveller site consisting of 10 pitches, 5 utility | 2014.

buildings, play area and associated works

The Secretary of State in considering the previous application (14/01370/FULL), also for 9
pitches, considered that the site was well related to local services and facilities, that walking,
cycling and use of public transport would be realistic and practicable options, and that the
occupiers of the site would be able to easily access education, health, welfare and employment
infrastructure. This is still considered to be the case.

78



51

5.2

5.3

54

5.5

MAIN RELEVANT STRATEGIES AND POLICIES RELEVANT TO THE DECISION

National Planning Policy Framework Sections

Section 9 - Promoting sustainable transport

Section 12 — Achieving well-designed places

Section 13 — Protecting Green Belt land

Section 14 - Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change

Department for Communities and Local Government

Planning Policy for Traveller sites (2015)
Royal Borough Local Plan

The main strategic planning considerations applying to the site and the associated policies are:

Within settlement
area Green Belt Trees Flood Risk

DG1 GB1, GB2 (Part A) N6 F1

These policies can be found at
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/downloads/download/154/local plan documents and appendices

Borough Local Plan: Submission Version

Issue Local Plan Policy

Appropriate Development in Green Belt and

. SP1, SP5
acceptable impact on Green Belt
Design in keeping with character and appearance SP2, SP3
of area
Manages flood risk and waterways NR1
Gypsies and Travellers HO4

Borough Local Plan: Submission Version Proposed Changes (2019)

Issue Local Plan Policy
Appropriate Development in Green Belt and QP5
acceptable impact on Green Belt
Design in keeping with character and appearance QP3
of area
Manages flood risk and waterways NR1
Gypsies and Travellers HO4

The NPPF sets out that decision-makers may give weight to relevant policies in emerging plans
according to their stage of preparation. The Borough Local Plan Submission Document was
published in June 2017. Public consultation ran from 30 June to 27 September 2017. Following
this process the Council prepared a report summarising the issues raised in the representations
and setting out its response to them. This report, together with all the representations received
during the representation period, the plan and its supporting documents was submitted to the
Secretary of State for independent examination in January 2018. The Submission Version of the

Borough Local Plan does not form part of the statutory development plan for the Borough.

In December 2018, the examination process was paused to enable the Council to undertake
additional work to address soundness issues raised by the Inspector. Following completion of

79


https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/downloads/download/154/local_plan_documents_and_appendices

5.6

5.7

5.8

6.1

6.2

that work, in October 2019 the Council approved a series of Proposed Changes to the BLPSV.
Public consultation ran from 1 November to 15 December 2019. All representations received will
be reviewed by the Council to establish whether further changes are necessary before the
Proposed Changes are submitted to the Inspector. In due course the Inspector will resume the
Examination of the BLPSV. The BLPSV and the BLPSV together with the Proposed Changes are
therefore material considerations for decision-making. However, given the above both should be

given limited weight.

These documents can be found at;
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/blp

Supplementary planning documents
Supplementary planning documents adopted by the Council relevant to the proposal are:

¢ The Interpretation of Policy F1 (Area Liable to Flooding) Supplementary Planning Guidance
(SPG) 2004

More information on these documents can be found at:
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/info/200414/local development framework/494/supplementary planni

ng

Other Local Strategies or Publications
Other Strategies or publications relevant to the proposal are:

o RBWM Townscape Assessment — view at:
o RBWM Parking Strategy — view at:

More information on these documents can be found at;
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/info/200414/local development framework/494/supplementary planni

ng

EXPLANATION OF RECOMMENDATION

The key issues for consideration are:

[ Green Belt;

i Flood Risk

iii Impact on character and appearance of the area;

iv Highway safety;

% Impact on amenities of neighbours;

Vi Other material considerations;

vii The planning balance and the case of Very Special Circumstances;
Green Belt

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) details that the fundamental aim of Green Belt
Policy is to prevent urban sprawl by keeping land permanently open; it confirms that the essential
characteristics of Green Belts are their openness and their permanence (paragraph 133). At

80


https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/blp
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/info/200414/local_development_framework/494/supplementary_planning
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/info/200414/local_development_framework/494/supplementary_planning
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/info/200414/local_development_framework/494/supplementary_planning
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/info/200414/local_development_framework/494/supplementary_planning

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

6.10

paragraph 134 it identifies five purposes for the Green Belt, the third being ‘to assist in
safeguarding the countryside from encroachment’.

At Paragraph 144, the NPPF stipulates that when considering any planning application, Local
Planning Authorities should ensure that substantial weight is given to any harm to the Green
Belt.

The NPPF sets out the forms of development which can be considered appropriate within the
Green Belt in paragraphs 145 and 146. The material change of use of the land (which is what this
development would amount to) is listed as an appropriate form of development within the Green
Belt, however the Planning Policy for Traveller Sites 2015 (PPTS), which is to be read in
conjunction with the NPPF is a material consideration in determining planning applications. Policy
E of the PPTS is specific to traveller sites in the Green Belt and states that: “Traveller sites
(temporary or permanent) in the Green Belt are inappropriate development”. It states that ‘subject
to the best interests of the child, personal circumstances and unmet need are unlikely to clearly
outweigh harm to the Green Belt and any other harm so as to establish very special
circumstances’. In addition the development required in association with the change of use such
as: amenity blocks, warden blocks, gates/boundary treatment & hardstanding are not included
within the list of appropriate forms of development within the Green Belt in the NPPF.

As set out by paragraph 143 of the NPPF, inappropriate development in the Green Belt is by
definition, harmful and should not be approved except in very special circumstances. Furthermore
paragraph 144 sets out that very special circumstances will not exist unless the potential harm to
the Green Belt by reason of its inappropriateness, and any other harm resulting from the
proposal, is clearly outweighed by other considerations.

The Local Plan was adopted well before the publication of the NPPF. The tests set out in Policy
GB1 to determine whether a development would be inappropriate are not fully consistent with
those in the Framework. This is seen in relation the erection of certain categories of buildings.
Also, Policy GB2 (A) imposes an additional test with a view to safeguarding the openness of the
Green Belt. Policies GB1 and GB2 (part A) of the Local Plan are consistent in part with the NPPF,
and so are given weight, but not full weight in the determination of this application.

An essential characteristic of the Green Belt is its openness. The effect of the proposal on
openness requires consideration because it is not an explicit part of the assessment as to
whether or not the development types are inappropriate.

The site has an open quality despite the somewhat neglected appearance and the apparent loss
of vegetation. The proposal would introduce a residential use, which would incorporate 9
residential pitches and up to 18 caravans, 5 amenity blocks, a warden’s block, new areas of
hardstanding, parking areas, and a children’s play area. Given the above it is considered that the
development would have a significant impact on the openness of the Green Belt and would also
conflict with the purposes of the Green Belt by encroachment into the countryside. This was also
the conclusion of the Secretary of State in the determination of application 14/01370/FULL which
was also for 9 pitches.

Flood Risk

The application site is within flood zones 2 and 3 (medium and high probability of flooding) and
the Environment Agency advise that much of the site lies within flood zone 3b (functional flood
plain), as identified within the Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Level 1 Strategic Flood
Risk Assessment (SFRA).

In accordance with the requirements of National Planning Policy, the Sequential Test needs to be
applied. The applicant refers to Cabinet reports dated 27" September 2012 and 24 January
2013, and to the Sequential Test undertaken by RBWM in 2014 which demonstrated that the
Sequential Test had been passed. However, the sequential test undertaken in 2014 is now out of

81



6.11

6.12

6.13

6.14

6.15

6.16

6.17

date (some 5 years old), and there could be sequentially preferable sites that are available. The
Local Planning Authority is not satisfied the current scheme passes the Sequential Test, and so
the scheme fails on this element. As the Sequential Test has not been passed, no further
assessment of the acceptability of the development in the flood zone is required.

Notwithstanding the above the use of the land for caravans in residential use is classed as ‘highly
vulnerable’ in respect of flood risk, and this type of development should not be permitted in flood
zones 3a and 3Db, in accordance with the advice within the National Planning Practice Guidance.
In addition a site specific flood risk assessment has not been submitted with the application, as
required by paragraph 163 of the National Planning Policy Framework, which is vital to making an
informed planning decision. Without a flood risk assessment the acceptability of the proposal and
the resultant risks to the occupiers cannot be determined.

Furthermore, the scheme is for highly vulnerable development in food zones 3a and 3b, where
such development should not be permitted, according to the flood risk vulnerability zone
compatibility table within the National Planning Practice Guidance and the Environmental Agency
raise an in principle objection.

Impact on character of the area

The site is a relatively enclosed area of land bordered on two sides by residential and commercial
properties with the Mill Place Caravan Park located around 145 metres away. Given the
proposed design of the scheme, inclusion of soft landscaping, location and characteristics along
with surrounding uses, the proposal is not considered to have a detrimental impact on the
character and appearance of the surrounding area.

Highways

Subject to the unnamed road being used as the main entrance to the site (access furthest
south), the proposal is not considered to raise any highway objections given that there are no
highway deficiencies in the immediate area or in the surrounding road network to prevent
development taking place.

Impact on amenities of neighbours

The scheme is considered to result in an acceptable level of amenity for future residents,
particularly given the inclusion of amenity space to the centre of the site. Considering the impact
on neighbouring residents, the proposed residential scheme is considered to be compatible with
the residential nature of the surrounding area. The separation distances (12 metres as a
minimum) between the proposed pitches and amenity blocks with neighbouring residential
boundaries would ensure that the proposal would not harm the amenities of neighbouring
properties by reason of loss of privacy, loss of light, noise impact or being over bearing on
adjoining properties.

Other material considerations

There are no Local Plan policies in relation to traveller sites. The Council is in the process of
producing a Traveller Local Plan (TLP). This will set out how the Council will meet the future
accommodation needs of the Traveller communities. The first stage of this was an Issues and
Options paper which was published for 8 weeks consultation early this year (January to March
2019). This sets out a number of options for how to meet the identified need for different types of
traveller.

The TLP Issues and Options paper sets out an indicative timetable and estimated that the draft

version of the plan would be published in Autumn 2019, with proposed submission in Spring
2020.

82



6.18

6.19

6.20

6.21

6.22

The comments received to the Issues and Options consultation are still to be analysed and the
next stage, the draft version of the Traveller Local Plan, will be published later than was
anticipated at the time of the consultation on the Issues and Options paper. The focus of the
Planning Policy Team is currently on progressing the Borough Local Plan. The Planning Policy
Team will be progressing the Traveller Local Plan as soon as they are able to. More information
on the timetable for the TLP will be published when the Local Development Scheme is next
updated.

Future Occupiers

The best interests of the child is a consideration to be given significant weight. It was stated in the
design and access statement submitted with the previous application 17/02404/FULL at
paragraph 36 that ‘given the evidence base in the recent needs assessments that local need
arising from overcrowding on existing sites forms a larger part of the unmet need in the district,
then weight should be given to this material consideration, so that families with local connections
can stay close together’. This is considered further in paragraph 6.29 below.

Needs for traveller accommodation within the Borough

The LPA at this time of writing still has unmet need for traveller pitches and plots. The RBWM
Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Assessment (GTAA) published in 2018 found that, using
the definition of Gypsies and Travellers set out in the Government’s Planning Policy for Traveller
Sites (PPTS) that there is a need for 26 pitches in the period 2017/18 to 2032/33. However, when
the likely turnover of pitches on local authority sites during the plan period is taken into account,
this results in a reduced residual need for 21 pitches over this period. Of the 26 pitches, 20 are
required in the five year period 2017/18 to 2021/22. The GTAA also examined the broader need
under the ‘cultural’ definition which encompasses all of those who are ethnically defined as
Gypsies or Travellers. This showed a cultural need for 70 pitches in the five year period 2017/18
to 2021/22 and a 90 pitch need over the period to 2032/33. This decreases slightly to 85 pitches
when expected turnover of pitches is factored in. It should be noted that the Council is required
to meet the need based on the definition of Gypsy & Traveller in the PPTS, e.g. 21-26 pitches
and not the wider cultural need 70-90 pitches.

Provision of a 5 year land supply of deliverable sites

The LPA accept that the Council cannot demonstrate that there is a 5 year supply of deliverable
Gypsy/Traveller sites. Once the Council has decided on a pitch target for the Traveller Local
Plan, it will be possible to examine five year supply issues in more detail, but at this stage the
Council has not calculated how many pitches are required to meet the 5 year supply.

Secretary of State Decision

A material consideration that is given significant weight in the determination of this application is
the decision by the Secretary of State in 2016 to dismiss a scheme on the same land. The
Secretary of State made the following conclusions:

‘The Secretary of State considers that, in accordance with national policies, Traveller sites in the
Green Belt are inappropriate development which should not be approved except in very special
circumstances. The Secretary of State concludes that the harm caused by the proposal by
reason of inappropriate development, the harm to the Green Belt through loss of openness, and
the conflict with one of the purposes of the Green Belt through encroachment into the countryside
should be accorded substantial weight.’

83



6.23

6.24

6.25

6.26

6.27

6.28

6.29

6.30

6.31

‘

. concludes that the factors weighing in favour of the development are insufficient to clearly
outweigh the harm to the Green Belt, which the proposal would cause such that very special
circumstances exist, taking into account the additional harm he finds by way of loss of openness
in the Green Belt. He therefore concludes that a permanent planning permission is not justified.’

Other considerations

The impact of a development on the price of house insurance is not a material planning
consideration.

The development is CIL liable, and this would contribute to infrastructure provision. The comment
about the capacity of the sewerage system is noted, this would not be a reason to refuse
planning permission in itself for a development of this scale. The sewerage provider may require
improvements which would be secured outside the planning process.

Concern has been raised over the impacts on ecology at the site, however, it is not considered
that the site is of ecological value to require an ecology survey.

Planning Balance and the Case of Very Special Circumstances

It has been concluded that the development constitutes an inappropriate form of development in
the Green Belt which is harmful by definition and substantial weight needs to be given to this
harm. It is considered that the development would result in encroachment into the countryside,
and that the development would have a significant impact on the openness of the Green Belt.

The development would also result in other harm. The application has not demonstrated that the
Sequential Test has been passed, as required by National Planning Policy. Furthermore a site
specific flood risk assessment has not been submitted with the application and the flood risk
associated with the development cannot be properly considered. Flood risk is given moderate
weight in the consideration of this application.

A case for very special circumstances has not been put forward in support of this application.
Within the previous application 17/02404/FULL a case for very special circumstances was put
forward which is also the same case as that considered by the secretary of state in 2016, this
included:

1 The need for further sites for Gypsies and Travellers nationally, regionally, locally and
personally for local families in need of site provision (this was given significant weight),

2 The unavailability of suitable, affordable, acceptable alternative site(s) (this was given
considerable weight),

3 The best interests of the children (this was given significant weight),

4 Deficiencies with Development Plan policy provision for Gypsy and Traveller caravan
sites in the area (this was given limited weight),

5 The lack of a 5 year supply of deliverable sites (this was given limited weight), and

6 That it is highly likely that any future site would also be in the Green Belt (this was given
limited weight).

As set out in the PPTS, personal circumstances and unmet need are unlikely to outweigh harm to
the Green Belt and any other harm so as to establish VSC.

In respect of the absence of the Council having an up to date 5 year supply of traveller sites, and
deficiencies in the development plan, these are considerations which are given weight, but only
limited weight. The unmet need for traveller pitches within the Borough is given significant weight.

The lack of alternative sites is given considerable weight.

84



6.32

6.33

6.34

6.35

7.1

The refusal of planning permission may have some impact on the best interests of the children is
given significant weight in principle, notwithstanding the paucity of information relevant to this
VSC.

It is not considered that the Very Special Circumstances put forward or other considerations
would outweigh the identified harm to the Green Belt, and the other harm in respect of flood risk.
This is also in accordance with Secretary of State’s decision who concluded as follows:

“65.  The Secretary of State recognises that refusing this application is likely to result in some
Gypsy families not receiving pitches on which to live in circumstances where there is
significant local need and an absence of alternative sites.

56. The outcome would not lead to the direct loss of any homes, although the Secretary of
State accepts that Article 8 rights are capable of being interfered with even in caravans
are not already stationed on the land. He agrees that there is a possibility that the site
would provide pitches for families currently living in overcrowded conditions at Mill Place
1, or other individuals in similar or worse circumstances. The Secretary of State
concludes that refusing to grant planning permission would have a negative impact
through overcrowding and failing to facilitate the Gypsy way of life.

57. He also recognises that refusing to grant this application may also impact on some
children and/or the elderly (age being a protected characteristic) through overcrowding
and failing to facilitate the Gypsy way of life, and as such would have an impact on the
best interests of children.

58. However, against these impacts he weighs the public interest objectives of protecting the
environment, including the highly protected Green Belt, and the policy considerations of
preventing vulnerable development on land prone to flooding. As such he concludes that,
taking into account the best interests of the child, his decision to refuse planning
permission is proportionate and justified in the circumstances.”

Officers have also considered whether the granting of a temporary permission would be
acceptable but the weight attributed to the VSC as described in this report would not clearly
outweigh the harm to the Green Belt and flood risk even for a temporary period. This is also in
accordance with the SoS conclusions in the determination of application 14/01370/FULL.

The LPA in making their recommendation has had due regard to the requirements of section 149
of the Public Sector Equality Duty 2010, the best interests of the child and the need to eliminate
discrimination, advance equality of opportunity and foster good relations between those with
protected characteristics and those who do not. The proposed site would be restricted to use by
Gypsies and Travellers and as such the outcome of this application is likely to have an impact on
the identified racial group of Gypsies and Travellers. The impacts are likely to be on Article 8
rights and in this regard and in coming to this recommendation officers have considered the
provision of and need for sites and the lack of alternative sites.

COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY (CIL)

The proposal is CIL liable, however no CIL forms have been submitted at this stage.
CONSULTATIONS CARRIED OUT

Comments from interested parties

76 occupiers were notified directly of the application.

The planning officer posted a notice advertising the application at the site on the 7" October
20109.

85



13 letters were received objecting to the application, summarised as:

Where in the
Comment report this is
considered
1. The proposed development would result in a very significant loss of Paragraph 6.15

privacy to properties within Horton Road and Cobb Close.

2. The development is likely to result in a significant level of noise and Paragraph 6.15
disturbance.
3. Any further development will add to the serious congestion and Paragraph 6.14
parking problems existing in the village, resulting in additional danger | — Also see
to pedestrians. Highway
Authority
comments
below
4, The sewerage infrastructure to the rear of Horton Road is already Paragraph 6.24
inadequate and any further development will only exacerbate the
annual flooding resulting from the pressures on this system.
5. The proposal is inappropriate within the Green Belt. Green Belt land Paragraphs 6.2
should be protected. - 6.8
6. The proposal will have an unacceptable impact on flooding Paragraphs 6.9
-6.12
7. Concerns raised regarding the impact and stress the development will | Paragraph 6.24
have on the services and amenities within Datchet.
8. The site is already being used unlawfully for the storage of hundreds | This application
of cars. has to be
assessed on its
own merits
9. The development will result in the loss of wildlife and biodiversity. 6.25
10. | The development will result in a drop in air quality. No objections
have been
raised by
Environmental
Protection in
this regard
11. | Light pollution will result from security lighting on site. No security
lighting is shown
on the plans.
Light pollution is
unlikely to
significantly
impact
neighbours.
12. | The development will result in increased house insurance costs due Paragraph 6.23
to location of proposed traveller accommodation.
13. | The application is very similar to the 14/01370 proposal that was See paragraph
rejected by the secretary of state. 6.22
14. | The current scheme will have 9 static buildings, 3 brick amenity Noted.

blocks, 9 travelling caravans, 1 warden office, 1 raised platform and
upwards of 20 cars caravans.

86




15.

As the Inquiry discussions took place regarding the likely level of
development on the land and alongside the main static caravan
pitches there was also space for a touring caravan on each pitch site
as it was claimed by the travellers that they would travel at times
during the year. In addition, brick built amenity blocks are proposed
and the whole site is raised up on a concrete base. All these elements
impact on the openness of the Green Belt.

Noted.

16.

Historically it was claimed that there were no sequentially better sites.
Since the Inquiry, the Council has published its draft Local Plan. One
main site identified for housing by the Borough is Maidenhead Golf
Course site HAB, which is identified for 2,000 houses. It is understood
that this site is owned by the Council. In any event, on such a
strategic housing site, an allocation for part of the site for Gypsy
Traveller pitches, alongside the other identified needs of the Borough
i.e. affordable housing, should be made.

6.10
6.16-6.19

17.

National Planning Policy sets out that traveller sites should be
identified through the Local Plan process, not through planning

Noted, however,
the application

applications. has to be
considered on
its merits.
1 letter was received in support of the application summarised as:
Where in the
Comment report this is
considered
1. The RBWM have a shortfall of Gypsy and Traveller sites. Paragraphs
6.20 and 6.21
2. The site had already been approved for 9 pitches in 2017 but was 6.22
then refused by the secretary of state — since then no new sites have
been identified or approved.
3. A very important factor in planning policy must be understanding of Paragraph 6.29
the family in GRT culture. Splitting families into different parishes or
Boroughs would likely cause problems. The proposed site would
provide accommodation for the extended families of residents of the
existing Mill Place site.
4, The proposed site appears to comply with the design principles set Noted
out in Designing Gypsy and Traveller Sites Good Practice Guide
(Department for Communities and Local Government, May 2008)
5. Originally it was proposed that new sites suitable for 5 — 10 pitches Noted
should be established but with a restriction that these sites are for the
local Gypsy and Traveller families.
6. Location of Gypsy community sites should be within easy access of Noted
Village amenities. We also believe that it is beneficial to the Gypsy
and wider community of these sites are on the periphery of the Village
centre. This site meets both those objectives.
7. We believe that approval for this new site is essential for the existing Noted
Gypsy Community and the wider Datchet Community.
Other consultees
Where in the
Consultee Comment report this is
considered
Highway The proposal would not place an undue burden on the | Paragraphs

87




10.

Authority local highway network, nor require improvements to the | 6.14
local highway infrastructure. Recommends a condition
with regards to refuse storage if the Local Planning
Authority are minded to approve the application.

Berkshire The application site falls within an area of | Noted
Archaeology archaeological significance and archaeological remains
may be damaged by ground disturbance for the
proposed development. Recommends a condition
securing a written scheme of investigation for
archaeological works prior to commencement.

Environmental | Recommends conditions relating to contaminated land, | Noted

Protection construction working hours and collection and delivery

hours.
Environment Object to the proposed development as it falls within a | Paragraphs
Agency flood risk vulnerability category that is inappropriate to | 6.11 —6.12

the Flood Zone in which the application site is located
and because a flood risk assessment has not been
submitted in support of the development.

Trees Objects as most of the vegetation on site has been | There are no
cleared and replaced with hard standing, and it is | protected trees
therefore important that the majority of what remains of | on site and the
soft ground trees/scrub is retained intact. Further | loss of trees has
pressure to remove trees could result from | notbeen raised

overshadowing of windows in the mobile homes. as an objection
in the previous

application. New
landscaping is
shown as part of
the proposal.

Parish Council | No objection to this application. Noted

APPENDICES TO THIS REPORT

e Appendix A - Site location plan
e Appendix B — Proposed site plan
e Appendix C — Elevations and floor plans

RECOMMENDED FOR REFUSAL IF PERMISSION IS NOT GRANTED

The proposal represents inappropriate development in the Green Belt. Inappropriate
development is by definition harmful to the Green Belt and this should be given substantial
weight. The proposal would also result in a significant impact on the openness of the Green Belt.
No case for very special circumstances has been put forward and it is not considered that any
very special circumstances exist that would clearly outweigh the harm caused to the Green Belt
and the other identified harm. The development fails to comply with saved Policies GB1 and GB2
(Part A) of the Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Local Plan (June 2003), and conflicts
with Paragraphs 133 and 134, and 143 - 146 of the National Planning Policy Framework and the
allied National Planning Policy for Traveller Sites (August 2015).

The sequential test has not been undertaken and as such it has not been demonstrated that the
development cannot be located in an area of lower flood risk. Furthermore no flood risk
assessment has been submitted in support of the application. The site is situated within flood

88



zone 3b functional floodplain and 3a (high risk flooding). The units are classed as a highly
vulnerable use, and such a use is identified as inappropriate development within these flood
zones, as set out in the National Planning Practice Guidance and the Royal Borough of Windsor
and Maidenhead Strategic Flood Risk Assessment. .The scheme conflicts with Paragraphs 157
and 163 of the National Planning Policy Framework, and Policy F1 of the Royal Borough of
Windsor and Maidenhead Local Plan 1999 (Incorporating Alterations Adopted 2003).

89



Appendix A—Site location plan

766
765
764

il

The Mill

|

g,;#;-"%gvuf A - _Eﬁ
(G

1R«

Q

'C o

O 3

| | e

N 8 o0

[ | O

O 9



Appendix B—Proposed site plan




Typical plot layout

clothes
drying area

amenifies
block

15000

e T ]
i
- .
bike storage \
; - vehicular gated
¥ enirance

% gravel
) off road parking
e

M| — fencing

concrete
hard standing for
mobile home

bins - foottraffic
gated enfrance

T

a front lawn with
% low growing
trees and shrubs
54—

a

a

<

=

f 54G0 1

typical plof layout
scale 1:50 @ Al

92

AMENITIES BLOCK



Appendix C— Elevations and floor plans

Amenities block— floor plan

EXTERMAL WALLS:

226emm conity wall consinuction comerising
1mm exbermal skin brickwork with focing bricks
fo match evisfing cweling

75mem cavity flled with 75mm rockwall covity wal

ELING - INTERNAL: RCOF | WALL JUNCTIOH
o for 150.% 50mm ko for 100 % Fmm
ding joicts of 450mm sohweod fiing plabe fxed
2.5

be insholled @ T25mm varfical cenies arcund al

o i m 4o wal wing MB bolt or
operings. B plasterbaond fo undemide. smicr approved.
close ol cavifie: wih cut fhemaite block, ‘ceiing joths spporied on rafiess fo be brdsmouihed
i S0rren wice. Cafric o Smiar approved wer max{ depth of rafier
provide varfical dps oround ol opering: jeist hangan, depth.

DRANAGE.
38mm @ washe Fom wezhing machine o
ith, S00rem Upshand on TEmm deap RWP
sealirap

100mm & vpve w.c. float
00 @ vpve z0d & vent sock
3mm @ washe pipe from snk e
e @ deep zeal rop

RWP

FOUNDATIONS:
clow for 800 x 8)0rmm deep concrete

3:) fourdiafionz. \y
1000rmem mirimum degpth -
HSTEfircl dapth fo e confrmed on

site in cenfunction wih e buiding
irspacice,

- Utility Room
rawdodits @ 500 c/cs and fobe
5| ] siropped down fo wal ot 1600mm
e hororial cenires refer fo siucturd
SOt cemmert serae ot \ i Swnemcdodon.
1:2:4 rrix owerit= conceie dabon e e e
seporfion loyer of bulding poper on P -
fhermafioor TF70, 70mm treck igid
insuicrfion loid an beeck bond ond ight
butted joints on 1200 guoge polythens
domp proof memirane wih wel 3
lapped and foided joints on 40mm sand c ! |

wasring || umbie
macning dryer

fo underide of insdfion

biinding on 150mm thick ioyer of clean
broken, wel compacted hordcore. F
dpm fc be fakan up face of enclodng
el and & fo be lapped over fhe

wasring || fumbie

Bathroom

nite: foor frishes fo olign with exiding machine dryer S W W W
H casement docr: | ghed scresnz fo be:
! UPVC framed double ghazzd and
I Utility R 55 achieve @ Ualue of 16 W/maK
Hiote: ol new glczing wil be sofety gloz
_-—
FLOOR 5LAK = Ty koom %0 B 62062 1951

o o
ground condifions fo be artesed on
site for sutabiity of consructing an
ouersite concrete fioor
altemafive mel o inshall @ beam
end bloci fisor using bison biock and -
beam fioor o simior opproved.
NOTE: fo be ogresd with the biding

irspechor. =
TH 1 R4l WATER DRAINAC
: 125eren diometer haf round vpve
- - i gufter and 75mm @ upve downpipe
_ Sonnected fo new granar
BATHROCM VENTLATICN: zockasay. 13 cubic copadty. located

alow for mechornicol venfiction fo new
bathroom occommeodafion. dliow for 3
ar changes per hourwith 20 minute

Srmawey om buiding face.
REFER 1O DWG A402 FOR FURTHER
DEALS

vemun o conneciion to gkt switch

RWP

RWP

plan view
scale 1:20 @ Al

93

AMENITIES BLOCK



Amenities block— elevations

BATHROOM VERTILATCH
allows for macharical venfiction to new
bathreom accommedafion. cliow for 3

overun and connection fo fight

s 2, W3 and Wi

asemerd doors | giazed screers fo be
VC fromed doubie giczed and

achieve o vaue of 1.5 WimK

Hote: oll new glozing wil be salety gios|

fo 85 4206 1581

tml

ROCF CONSTRUCTION:

elevation A - A

scale 1:20 @ Al

NTTTT

rm reof coninuction comprising of
Merisy Bamit Matiem concraie
inferiacking roof fles |sufobie for o x®
pitch] or simiar approved fo match
esizfing main roof on 28 25mm
softwood batters on uriearabie oo

utter and 75mm @ upve downpips
connected o new gronukar
ockaway. | 3 cubic copaci

aweay from bulding fac

elevation B - B

scale 1:20 @ Al

94

g 108mm extemal

75mm rockwal
cavity wal batts, 150mm themnaite
hurbo infemal block well Fished
13mm ightweight plastes
provide el wal fies @
900mem herzontal carires and 450mm
rtical ceries. wol fies o be instaled
& Z25mm verfical centres around al
rings.

mm wide.
provide verfical dpe around all
opering:

AMENITIES BLOCK



Amenities block— elevations

il

==

T (AT
— :
——

elevation C - C
scale 1:20 @ Al

L —

elevation D -D
scale 1:20@ Al

95

AMENITIES BLOCK



Wardens block plan and gates

e
\
- < | ! \
s 3

' } TR

pl G n Of entro nce WARDEN ENTRANCE GATES: PEDESTRIAN ENTRANCE GATE: VEHICULAR ENTRANCE GATES:
i Manual opening enfrance gares. manual opening enfrance gate. Metal, uromatic eiecTic

scale 1:50 @ Al Timber gates, firshed to mateh Fnsned gloss black. entrance gates.

fimber fencing.

[ T B 1 4 H

oo v by

saties

[y

Inward opening.
Finshed gloss black.

elevation of enfrance
scale 1:50 @ Al

© T B 3 ¥ s

T AT O OOPRR

96

=

=

ENTRANCE GATES



Warden Block plan

WARDEN BLOCK:
Refer to pians, secfion and
elevation arawings.

WARDEN ENTRANCE GATES:
Manual opening enfrance gates.
Timber gates, finshed fo match
timber fencing.

plot layout
scale 1:50 @ Al

97

foot traffic
gated enfrance

fencing

WARDENS BLOCK



Wardens block—floor plan

DRAINAGE
3erem & weashe from weshing machine
with 500mem upstand and 75mm deep
sl frop

00mm @ upve w.c. float

00mm @ upve 301 & ver

3o 3 e pipe i r.m i
75mm @ desp seo

FOUNDATION:
aliows For 400 x 800mm deep concrete
[1:3:4] foundafions

m minimum e ph
NOTE:final depth to be corfimed on
e in corjunchion with the bulding
spector

FLOOR SLAE:
S0 sand  cement screed on 100mm
1:2:4 mix overste concrele siab on
separafion layer of bulding paper on
Shermatioor TF7D, 7lmm rick igid
jaficn iaid on breok bond and ight
butted joints on 1200 gucge poiythens
damp proof membrane with wel
lapped and folded joints on 40mm z
binding on 150mm fhick layer of clean
Ercken, well compacted hardcore.
dpm o be faken up face of enclesing
wialls and is o be lopped over the
horzontal d

nate: Roor fiishes fo align with exising

FLOOR SLAE:
alternative:

ground condifions ko be assesed on
e for st a:ha—cm»—ucrngcv
cvanite conar

chamaive method & airatal a bearm
and sk fsar eng sson Biock and
beom foor or smiar appro

NOTE: to oe cggreed wi foa bulding
ector

W.C VENTLATIO!

o changes per hour with 20 minute:
‘overmun and connechion fo light swch

EXTERMAL WALLS

a2Bmm cavity wal constucion comprising
103mem external sin brickwork with focing bricks
isfing dweling
73mm rociwall cavity wal
batt, 150mm thermaite furbo intemal block well
firished with 13mm lightweight picster.

provide stainies stes] woll
Cenires nd 450mm verfical cerires. wo
alied & Z25mm verfcal cenbes around

tomaich e
75mm cavity flled with

cicae al cavifies with cut themaiite: block,

Fririmum S0mm wide.

provide verfical dpe around ol operin

i3 @ P00mm herzonfal

fiesto

ROCF [ WALL JUNCTION:
alowsfor 100% 75mm
sofwood fing iate e
fowal boltzar

.m\um;pm
raffers fo be brdimouthed
‘over man+ cepth of rafier
depth.

RWP

sfore

office

RWP

plan view
scale 1:20 @ Al

98

ROOF COHSTRUCTOOH:

over softwood fmber weil piate
[meimum § depth of rafiersjwel plate
to be botted into wal using M10
reuiboit: & 500 cjcx and 1o be
rapped doun o el of 1500mm
‘cenires. refer fo suchural
eng re=rs calcuafions
rofters fo be stropped down fo wal
piate ot 1800mm horizontal centres.
allow for 2 layers 100mm / 70mm figid
rauiaficn by kngapan or srmikar

to unceride of indafion

HEW WINDOWS:
new windoes W1, W2, W3 and W

achieve @ Uralue of 1.8 Wim2k
i new glazing wil be safety gias
o 85 6208 . 1981

BAIN WATER DRAINAGE

25emm diemeter hall round upve

gutter and 7Smm @ upve downpipe

connected o new gronular il

soakaway. 1.3 cubic capochy. located
o

ding face.
WG AL FDR FURTHER

WARDENS BLOCK



Wardens block—Elevations

OFFICE
alow for mecharical venfiafion fo
n cccommodafion. aliow
anges per hour with 20 m
avermun and connechion o fight

ROCF CONSTRUCTICH:
warm roof contuction comprising of
Mariey Bhemit Malvem concrete
rderiocking roof fies fsufabie for o
pitch] or simiar approved fo match

exisfing main roof on 28 x 25mm
softwood battens on uriearable oo
felf on 150 x Smem soffwood fimber

engineen calcuiafion:
rofiers fo be stopped down fowall
plate af 1300mm horzrial cenires
allows for 2 layers 100mm | T0mm Agid

to underide of indafion

elevation A- A
scale 1:20 @ Al

RAI WATER DRANAGE
125mm diameter halfround vpve
gutter and 75mm B upve downpipe
connected to new granuicr i
soakewoy. 13 cubic copaciy. located
¥om building foce.
REFER TO DWWG A402 FOR FURTHER
DETALS

Wa and Wl
casement doors | glaz=d soreers fo be

VC framed doble gozed ar
achieve o Lvaive of 13 W/m2t
Hote: ol new giazing wil be safefy gias|
4o B5 62082 1981

ovemun and connection fa ight saitch

ity wal consiuchon
mpriing 108mm exiemal skin
brickwerk with focing bricks fo match
exiing dweliing.

provide verfical dpe cround all
operi

elevation B - B
scale 1:220@ Al

99

WARDENS BLOCK



Wardens block—Elevations

]

|

elevatfion C - C
scale 1:20 @ Al

elevation D -D
scale 1:20 @ Al

100

WARDENS BLOCK



Gates and elevations

A
FV
ENTRANCE NAME FLATE: SRTANC
Inset ceramic name piate either ENTRANCE KEY PAD: T
sde of enfrances. Entrance key pad and bel inked b
Text naming / wording to be fo wardens block.
agreed.
B
N N pe
L 1 r L
o1 o = —
delaEFasi—
Back Meadew | B f—]Back Msadon |
= I
(L e = ok |
g —
FPEDESTRIAN ENTRANCE GATE: VEHICULAR ENTRANCE GATES
Manual opening entrance gate. Mefal, gutematic electric
Finished gloss biack. enfrance gates
Inward opening.
Finisned gloss biack.
4600 6000
scale 1:20 @ Al
BRICK PIERS:
325 X 440mm Drick pier witn
caping stane top.
-
: — I
I .
\ |V
W
1
L | L
4600 600 4 =

101



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 8

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL PANEL

8 January 2020 Iltem: 8
Application 19/02073/FULL

No.:

Location: Thames Valley Athletics Centre Pococks Lane Eton Windsor SL4 6HN
Proposal: Side extension to the existing building to provide an additional squash court.
Applicant: Mr Fenwick

Agent: Mr Leigh Tugwood

Parish/Ward: Eton Town Council/Eton And Castle

If you have a question about this report, please contact: Adam Jackson on 01628 796660 or at
adam.jackson@rbwm.gov.uk

1.

SUMMARY

This application was deferred from the Windsor Area Development Management Panel on the 4™
December. In light of the fact that the site is in flood zone 3B, the panel wished to know why the
previous application 11/01808/FULL (which allowed extensions to the original building) was
approved, and wanted more information on the flood risk for the site. Further information has
been provided in Appendix C at the end of this report. There is no change to the
recommendation previously put to members on the 4" December.

The proposal represents inappropriate development within the Green Belt and there are no very
special circumstances which would clearly outweigh the harm caused by this inappropriate form
of development and the other harm identified.

The proposed development will be located within flood zone 3b (functional floodplain) which is
land where water has to flow or be stored in times of flood. The proposed development is not
appropriate within flood zone 3b as the NPPG sets out that only water compatible development
should be permitted within the functional flood plain.

The proposed development will result in the loss of 5 trees which currently make a strong positive
contribution to the character and appearance of the area. Furthermore insufficient information
has been submitted to determine the arboricultural impact of the development on other on and
off site trees.

It is considered that the additional traffic likely to be generated by the new squash court can be
comfortably accommodated within the existing 180 space car park.

It is recommended the Panel refuses planning permission for the following summarised
reasons (the full reasons are identified in Section 13 of this report):

1. | The proposed development does not fall within any of the categories of appropriate
development in the Green Belt as set out in paragraph 145 of the National Planning Policy
Framework and is therefore classified as inappropriate development. Furthermore the
scale and position of the extension would result in harm being caused to both the spatial
and visual openness of the Green Belt. It is not considered that any very special
circumstances exist that clearly outweigh this harm and the other harm identified within the
other reasons for refusal. The development fails to comply with policies GB1 and GB2 of
the Local Plan, paragraphs 133, 143, 144 and 145 of the National Planning Policy
Framework, and policies SP1 and SP5 of the submission version of the emerging Borough
Local Plan.

2. | The development is proposed to be located within flood zone 3b which is the functional
flood plain and an area where water has to flow or be stored in times of flood. As set out in
National Planning Policy Guidance, development is not acceptable within the functional

103



3.1

4.1

5.1

flood plain unless classified as a water compatible use. The proposed development is not
water compatible. The proposed development fails to comply with policy F1 of the Local
Plan, policy EN3 of the Eton and Eton Wick Neighbourhood Plan, paragraph 163 of the
National Planning Policy Framework, and policy NR1 of the submission version of the
emerging Borough Local Plan.

3. | 5 trees are shown to be removed to make space for the proposed development. These
trees which make a strong positive contribution to the character and appearance of the
area. Furthermore, insufficient information has been provided to determine the
arboricultural impacts of the proposed development upon other on and off site trees. The
proposed development fails to comply with policies DG1 and N6 of the Local Plan,
paragraph 127 of the National Planning Policy Framework, and policy NR2 of the
submission version of the emerging Borough Local Plan.

REASON FOR PANEL DETERMINATION

o The Council’'s Constitution does not give the Head of Planning delegated powers to
determine the application in the way recommended; such decisions can only be made by the
Panel.

DESCRIPTION OF THE SITE AND ITS SURROUNDINGS

The application site is currently home to the Thames Valley Athletics Centre with the main
building being built in 1999 to provide a training hall and associated facilities, and a spectator’'s
stand. The site is accessed from Pococks Lane and the main building and parking area is to the
south east, with the rest of the site constituting playing fields and an athletics track. The main
building was extended following a grant of permission in 2011 for a two storey extension on its
south elevation. This extension provided 4 x new squash courts and a dance studio at first floor.
To the north, east and west of the site are Eton College playing fields. The site is situated both
within the Green Belt and Flood Zone 3. The site is heavily treed along its southern boundary.

KEY CONSTRAINTS
The key constraints to development are:

i. Green Belt
ii. Flooding
iii. Trees

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSAL AND ANY RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

The proposal is for an extension to the main building on the western elevation, to provide an
additional squash court and store rooms. The squash court would be linked to the main building
via a covered walkway and a terrace area is proposed on top of the walkway and store room. The
proposed extension, including the covered walkways and store rooms, will have a footprint of
220sgm and will have a height of 7.6m. The extension will be finished in timber cladding.

Reference Description Decision
94/00480/REG3 Erection of new 2-storey spectators | Permitted — 22.12.1997
(473236) stand with indoor straight and

training hall, changing & club rooms
plus associated car parking and new
access road. Extension of pavilion.

99/78199/ADV Installation of 1 wall plaque with
studs and one wall sign for a period | Permitted — 27.07.1999
of 5 years.

104



04/85232/FULL Erection of 1810mm high brick plinth | Permitted — 21.06.2004
at entrance of site.

04/85231/ADV Display of two externally illuminated | Permitted — 21.06.2004
freestanding signs.
05/02965/FULL Change of use of existing sports | Permitted — 15.09.2006

pavilion to pre school nursery with
associated parking, fencing and
access gates.

08/02212/FULL Erection of street lighting to car | Permitted —04.11.2008
parking area to replace bollard style
lighting.

11/01808/FULL Extension to southern side of | Permitted —11.08.2011

existing sports centre to provide 4
new squash and a dance studio at
first floor fitness suite together with
ancillary works and refurbishment.

11/02121/FULL Formation of an overflow car park | Permitted — 12.09.2011
with street lighting, widening of
access road and associated works.

15/01758/FULL Installation of 2 security cages | Permitted — 23.07.2015
around existing dosing and sampling
kiosks and 1 replacement security
cage to store gas cylinders.

6. DEVELOPMENT PLAN

Adopted Royal Borough Local Plan (2003)

Issue Adopted Local Plan Policy
Design in keeping with character and appearance DG1
of area
Acceptable development within the Green Belt GB1, GB2
Acceptable development within the flood plain F1
Sufficient parking provided P4
Acceptable impact on important trees N6

These policies can be found at
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/downloads/download/154/local plan documents and appendices

Adopted Eton and Eton Wick Neighbourhood Plan (2016-2036)

Issue Neighbourhood Plan Policy
Flooding EN3

These policies can be found at
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/info/200209/planning _policy/477/neighbourhood plans/2

7. MATERIAL PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
National Planning Policy Framework Sections (NPPF) (2019)

Section 4- Decision—making

Section 9- Promoting Sustainable Transport
Section 12- Achieving well-designed places
Section 13- Protecting Green Belt land

105


https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/downloads/download/154/local_plan_documents_and_appendices
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/info/200209/planning_policy/477/neighbourhood_plans/2

7.1

7.2

7.3

e Section 14- Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change

Borough Local Plan: Submission Version

Issue Local Plan Policy
Design in keeping with character and appearance SP2, SP3
of area
Acceptable development in the Green Belt SP5
Sufficient parking provided IF2
Managing flood risk and waterways NR1
Acceptable impact on important trees NR2

Borough Local Plan: Submission Version Proposed Changes (2019)

Issue Local Plan Policy
Design in keeping with character and appearance OP1,QP3
of area
Acceptable development in the Green Belt QP5
Sufficient parking provided IF2
Managing flood risk and waterways NR1
Acceptable impact on important trees NR3

The NPPF sets out that decision-makers may give weight to relevant policies in emerging plans
according to their stage of preparation. The Borough Local Plan Submission Document was
published in June 2017. Public consultation ran from 30 June to 27 September 2017. Following
this process the Council prepared a report summarising the issues raised in the representations
and setting out its response to them. This report, together with all the representations received
during the representation period, the plan and its supporting documents was submitted to the
Secretary of State for independent examination in January 2018. The Submission Version of the
Borough Local Plan does not form part of the statutory development plan for the Borough.

In December 2018, the examination process was paused to enable the Council to undertake
additional work to address soundness issues raised by the Inspector. Following completion of
that work, in October 2019 the Council approved a series of Proposed Changes to the BLPSV
which are now out to public consultation until Sunday, 15 December 2019. All representations
received will be reviewed by the Council to establish whether further changes are necessary
before the Proposed Changes are submitted to the Inspector. In due course the Inspector will
resume the Examination of the BLPSV. The BLPSV and the BLPSV together with the Proposed
Changes are therefore material considerations for decision-making. However, given the above
both should be given limited weight.

These documents can be found at:
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/blp

Supplementary Planning Documents
e RBWM Interpretation of Policy F1
Other Local Strategies or Publications

e RBWM Townscape Assessment
e RBWM Parking Strategy

More information on these documents can be found at:
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/info/200414/local development framework/494/supplementary planni

ng

106


https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/blp
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/info/200414/local_development_framework/494/supplementary_planning
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/info/200414/local_development_framework/494/supplementary_planning

CONSULTATIONS CARRIED OUT
Comments from interested parties

The planning officer posted a notice advertising the application at the site on 01.08.2019 and the
application was advertised in the Local Press on 08.08.2019

2 letters were received supporting the application, 1 from Cllr Samantha Rayner, and 1 from a
representative of a group of squash players from the Windsor Club, signed by 58 people. Both
letters are summarised below and all considerations noted.

Comment

ClIlr S. Rayner

1. | The Council is committed to providing high quality leisure and cultural facilities for
residents.

2. | When the Windsor Squash Club site was developed a S106 was put in place to
provide £270k of funds to re-provide squash facilities.

3. | In my position as Lead Member for Culture and Communities | fully support this
application.

The Windsor Club

1. | The Windsor Club was closed down in June 2016 to make way for the Castle View
Retirement Village. When the club shut down there were over 400 active members
and the community lost 5 squash courts, 2 studio rooms, a fully equipped 2 storey
gym and a member’s bar and community room.

2. | The S106 agreement for the Castle View Retirement Village secured funds for the
reprovision of squash courts.

3. | In August 2015 an application to build 4 new squash courts, a swimming pool,
large gym and several studio rooms at the Eton Excelsior Rowing Club was
refused at application and appeal stage.

4. | The RBWM Sport& Leisure Strategy (2016) commits to working with the Windsor
Club to find an affordable site at which it can effectively development for squash
courts and ancillary facilities/social provision. It further commits to supporting
TVAC to maintain and improve it as a centre for indoor sport and outdoor athletics
plus squash.

5. | The 4 squash courts at TVAC are under pressure due to closure of more than 14
courts across The Windsor Club, La Fitness Club (Burnham) and Princess Club
(Bedfont).

6. | There is currently a lack of a ‘show court’ with seating, which is critical to host high
guality squash matches and to retain the best players as well as providing a court
environment suitable for exhibition matches.

All of the above points are noted however the need for the squash courts are not considered to
outweigh the environmental harm outlined in the summary section of this report, particularly the
fact that the proposal would be sited within functional floodplain.

Consultees
Where in the
Consultee Comment report this is
considered
Parish Concerns that no additional parking has been included, even | 9.10-9.11
Council though parking is already a problem at TVAC.
Lead Local Requests that further details are provided for the proposed
Flood surface water drainage system and supporting calculations.
Authority

107



9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

Highways Considers that the existing car park is large enough to 9.10-9.11
accommodate the addition of a squash court and that the
development would not have a detrimental effect on the local
highway network. Concerns have been raised with the
proposed temporary access for construction traffic, however
it is considered that this will have an acceptable impact on
highway safety subject to conditions.

Trees Insufficient information has been provided to determine the 9.9
arboricultural impacts of the proposed development upon on
and off site trees.

EXPLANATION OF RECOMMENDATION

The key issues for consideration are:

i Whether the proposal is appropriate development within the Green Belt

ii Whether the proposal is appropriate development in the flood plain

iii The impact of the development on the character and appearance of the area
iv Whether the proposal would be provided with sufficient parking space
Whether the proposal is appropriate development within the Green Belt

Paragraph 145 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) sets out a list of appropriate
forms of development within the Green Belt. Within this list, the extension of a building is
considered to be appropriate provided the extension does not result in a disproportionate addition
over and above the size of the original building. In determining whether an extension is
disproportionate the increase in floor space is a guiding factor, however the bulk and scale of a
proposal and its effect on the openness of the Green Belt are also important considerations.
Policies GB1 and GB2 of the Local Plan set out similar criteria for building in the Green Belt.

The Thames Valley Athletics Centre has been extended in the past. The original building had a
floor space of approximately 3700sgm and the proposed extension and the previous extension
have a combined floor space of approximately 850sgm, which amounts to an increase of 29%.
Whilst this is not a significant increase in percentage terms, the extensions are visually
prominent. The previous extension was full height and added bulk to the original building. The
proposed extension, whilst only single storey, is 7.5m tall and is set well outside of the existing
building envelope. Because it is set so far away from the existing/original building the proposed
extension would have a significant visual impact on the openness of the Green Belt as well as a
significant spatial impact due to its size. In conclusion the proposed extensions when taken with
the previous extension would result in a disproportionate addition to the original building.

The proposal is inappropriate development in the Green Belt, and according to paragraph 143 of
the NPPF inappropriate development is by definition harmful and should not be approved except
in very special circumstances. Paragraph 144 of the NPPF sets out that substantial weight will be
given to any harm to the Green Belt, and very special circumstances will not exist unless the
potential harm to the Green Belt by reason of inappropriateness and any other harm resulting
from the proposal is clearly outweighed by other considerations. Whether very special
circumstances exist has been considered in the planning balance section at the end of this report
after all harm resulting from the development has been identified.

Whether the proposal is appropriate development in the flood plain

108



9.5

9.6

9.7

9.8

The application site is within Flood Zone 3b which is classified as functional floodplain. The
Council’s Strategic Flood Risk Assessment (SFRA) sets out that the functional floodplain is land
where water has to flow or be stored in times of flood, and National Planning Practice Guidance
(NPPG) sets out that development should not be permitted in the functional floodplain unless it is
a water compatible use. A leisure use is classed as a ‘Less Vulnerable’ use, and as such the
proposed development is not appropriate in the functional flood plain. A site specific flood risk
assessment (FRA) has been submitted with the application which concludes that the site should
be classified as flood zone 3a, in which development can sometimes be considered acceptable,
due to the Maidenhead, Windsor and Eton Flood Alleviation scheme (MWEFAS), however,
NPPG sets out that it is the SFRA, prepared by the Local Planning Authority, which will establish
areas of functional flood plain, and this should be referred to in identifying what flood zone a
proposed development is within. Furthermore the SFRA already takes into consideration the
MWEFAS (see paragraph 5.1.5 of the SFRA). It is noted that an extension has previously been
approved under application11/01808, however this was assessed under a previous iteration of
the SFRA. It is not clear from the previous submission documents whether the development was
assessed as being within flood zone 3b or 3a.

Notwithstanding the above, if the development was accepted as being within flood zone 3a then
the applicant would need to, through the submission of the FRA and the application of the
exceptions test, demonstrate that the development is safe from flooding and would not increase
flood risk elsewhere. It has been demonstrated that the development itself would be safe from
flooding through the use of flood resilient/resistant construction and by updating the existing
Thames Valley Athletics Flood Evacuation Plan, however it is considered that the proposed
development would have an unacceptable impact on flooding elsewhere as explained below.

Policy F1 of the Local Plan allows for an increase in ground covered area (GCA) on site of up to
30sgm. For any amount of GCA above this the applicant must demonstrate that the development
will not reduce the capacity of the flood plain to store water, impact on the free flow of flood water,
or increase the number of people and properties at risk from flooding. Furthermore policy EN3 of
the Eton and Eton Wick Neighbourhood Plan states that development should not result in an
increase in maximum flood levels within adjoining properties. The proposed extension has a total
ground covered area of approximately 220sgm, which is in excess of the 30sgm allowed under
policy F1. The 2011 extension was also in excess of the 30sgm limit set out under policy F1,
however due to the use of underfloor voids it was considered that the development would not
significantly impede the flow of flood water or reduce the capacity of the flood plain to store flood
water. It is stated within the FRA for the current proposal that the external store is designed to
flood, however it is not clear from the plans exactly how this will be achieved. It is also noted that
the squash court itself is raised up to create an underfloor void, however no details of how this
will be managed have been submitted. It is not clear whether this space will be kept empty and
whether it can be ensured that there would be no loss of flood plain storage. It is noted that two
shipping containers are to be removed from the site, and it is claimed that these are permanent
additions, however no details have been submitted to support this. Furthermore the containers
have a combined GCA of approximately 40sgm and as such would not offset the loss in flood
plain storage resulting from the proposed extension. The proposed development would therefore
reduce the capacity of the flood plain to store and impact upon the free flow of flood water,
thereby putting additional people and properties at an increased risk from flooding.

The impact of the development on the character and appearance of the area

Policy DG1 of the Local Plan and paragraph 127 of the NPPF set out that development should be
of a high standard of design, visually attractive, and in keeping with the local character. The
proposed extension has a flat roof and will be finished using timber cladding. The proposed
extension does not match the main building in terms of its design or choice of materials, however
given the extensions scale and its positioning away from the envelope of the main building it
appears almost as a standalone structure. Within this context it is not considered that the design
of the extension or the materials used need to match the host building exactly, and it is not

109



9.9

9.10

9.11

9.12

9.13

10.

considered that the extension would cause harm to the appearance of the host building or the
character of the wider area.

The extension will be located in an area currently containing a number of trees, and whilst these
are not protected they do make a significant positive contribution to the character and
appearance of the area, giving it a sylvan wooded appearance, and currently provide some
screening of the building when viewed from Pococks Lane. Insufficient information has been
provided to determine the arboricultural impacts of the proposed development upon on and off
site trees. It would appear that at least 5 trees will need to be removed to make space for the
extension and that additional trees could be harmed or lost due to interference with their canopies
and roots. The loss of these trees would harm the character and appearance of the area and it is
considered that steps should be taken to ensure as may trees are retained as possible.

Whether the proposal would be provided with sufficient parking space

A D1 leisure use, as set out in the Borough’s adopted Parking Strategy, is required to provide 1
space per 30sgm. The proposed extension has a total floor space of 220sgm (including store
room and covered walkway), and the squash court is 90sgm. The proposed development
therefore generates a requirement of between 3 and 7 car parking spaces. The site currently
benefits from 180 car parking spaces across the main car park, overflow car park and an informal
parking area to the side of the main building. It is considered that the proposed extension is
unlikely to have a significant impact on the number of visitors to the centre and as such the
existing car park is considered sufficient.

A temporary access is proposed off of Pococks Lane for the construction period. Council
Highway Officers have raised some concerns with this, however it is accepted that a temporary
access can be made safe through the use of conditions relating to: visibility splays, access
details, construction management details, and the stopping up of the access once the squash
court is brought into use.

Planning Balance

The proposed development is considered to cause harm to the Green Belt through reason of its
inappropriateness and harm to openness. Paragraph 144 of the NPPF sets out that substantial
weight will be given to any harm to the Green Belt, and very special circumstances will not exist
unless the potential harm to the Green Belt by reason of inappropriateness and any other harm
resulting from the proposal is clearly outweighed by other considerations. As set out above, the
development also causes harm as a result of the developments impact on flooding, and it is
considered that this should be given substantial weight. Harm will also result from the loss of
trees which make a significant positive impact on the character and appearance of the area,
however this is only given moderate weight as the trees are not covered by a Tree Preservation
Order.

The applicant has not put forward a case for very special circumstances, however it is accepted
that the development does make a contribution towards and improves sports/leisure facilities in
the Borough. It is also noted from the letter sent in on behalf of the former members of the
Windsor Club that there would appear to be a need for new squash facilities. Indeed paragraph
91 of the NPPF supports the promotion of healthy communities and tasks planning decisions with
enabling and supporting healthy lifestyles — for example through the provision of sports facilities,
however the new squash court would make a fairly limited contribution towards achieving this
goal, and the benefits of this improved facility would not outweigh the harm identified in
paragraph 9.12 above. In this case therefore there are not considered to be any very special
circumstances that would clearly outweigh the harm to the Green Belt and the other harm
identified.

CONCLUSION

110



10.1

10.2

10.3

11.

12.

The proposed development constitutes inappropriate development in the Green Belt and would
reduce the openness of the Green Belt. There are no very special circumstances that outweigh
this harm and the other harm identified with regards to flooding and the character of the area.
The development fails to comply with policies GB1 and GB2 of the Local Plan, paragraphs 133,
143, 144 and 145 of the National Planning Policy Framework, and policies SP1 and SP5 of the
submission version of the emerging Borough Local Plan.

The proposed development would be located within flood zone 3b which is the functional flood
plain and an area where water has to flow or be stored in times of flood. Development is not
acceptable within the functional flood plain other than water compatible uses. The proposed
development fails to comply with policy F1 of the Local Plan, policy EN3 of the Eton and Eton
Wick Neighbourhood Plan, paragraph 163 of the National Planning Policy Framework, and policy
NR1 of the submission version of the emerging Borough Local Plan.

The proposed development would result in the loss of 5 trees which make a significant positive
contribution to the character and appearance of the area. Furthermore, insufficient information
has been provided to determine the arboricultural impacts of the proposed development upon
other on and off site trees. The proposed development fails to comply with policies DG1 and N6
of the Local Plan, paragraph 127 of the National Planning Policy Framework, and policy NR2 of
the submission version of the emerging Borough Local Plan.

APPENDICES TO THIS REPORT

o Appendix A — Site location plan and site layout
e Appendix B — Plan and elevation drawings
e Appendix C — Flood information

REASONS RECOMMENDED FOR REFUSAL.

The proposed development does not fall within any of the categories of appropriate development
in the Green Belt as set out in paragraph 145 of the National Planning Policy Framework and is
therefore classified as inappropriate development. Furthermore the scale and position of the
extension would result in harm being caused to both the spatial and visual openness of the Green
Belt. It is not considered that any very special circumstances exist that clearly outweigh this harm
and the other harm identified within the other reasons for refusal. The development fails to
comply with policies GB1 and GB2 of the Local Plan, paragraphs 133, 143, 144 and 145 of the
National Planning Policy Framework, and policies SP1 and SP5 of the submission version of the
emerging Borough Local Plan.

The development is proposed to be located within flood zone 3b which is the functional flood
plain and an area where water has to flow or be stored in times of flood. As set out in National
Planning Policy Guidance, development is not acceptable within the functional flood plain unless
classified as a water compatible use. The proposed development is not water compatible. The
proposed development fails to comply with policy F1 of the Local Plan, policy EN3 of the Eton
and Eton Wick Neighbourhood Plan, paragraph 163 of the National Planning Policy Framework,
and policy NR1 of the submission version of the emerging Borough Local Plan.

5 trees are shown to be removed to make space for the proposed development. These trees
which make a strong positive contribution to the character and appearance of the area.
Furthermore, insufficient information has been provided to determine the arboricultural impacts of
the proposed development upon other on and off site trees. The proposed development fails to
comply with policies DG1 and N6 of the Local Plan, paragraph 127 of the National Planning
Policy Framework, and policy NR2 of the submission version of the emerging Borough Local
Plan.

111



Appendix A—Site location plan and site layout

ohrans | e

T
DO M DO B

[ ——"

ETE S hoRrss

I- ONINNV1d

117




>8d | /

@Wﬁ\rr Y

| b7

113

spiag Buifelg

(8489 iz xoudchy)
%961 2060 10)
wed Jea deen




I-ONINNV'1d

o vl Ry
‘o s O 30D

Appendix B—Plans and elevation drawings - Proposed ground floor

:
.

",

IV @00l1-1

P ® — _ NY1d 30074 ANNOYD ANY LNOAYT LIS




Proposed first floor

woriin | ovmen
_____ e
onra | e
T T
P o s

o i 3 i o o wrannganse
[Ep——Cp———

o S s

L el
S s o oL

o
=)

o oo

e

=
LD IR P R

[-DNINNV1d

115



Proposed elevations

o S o

oIpr

[Ep—C————

W% NOILIIS / NOLLWAT T3 15W3 HLNON

MNOILYAFTI 15%3 HLNOS

- DNINNY1d

Lo L
EE R e e

nozs
= a0
= S T

mramour
LD Y M O

NOILYAITI 153M HLNOS

NOLLYATTT 153M HLEOMN

116

|

[t




Appendix C—Flood information

The below is an extract of the flood map for Eton, taken from Appendix A of the 2009 Stra-
tegic Flood Risk Assessment (SFRA). This is the flood map that would have been relevant in

2011 and would have therefore informed the decision made on application 11/01808/
FULL.

Legend
) e soundary
. Main Rivers.
w— Fiood Defences
Potential Site Allocations
®  FoinilSie Alocstions

- Zone 2 Medium Probability

B == ign Prosasiiy

- Zona 3 Functional Floodplain
o I zoneabDeveloped

SO0, Bstent of Zone 3b Funcsion sl Fioo dplsin unkn own

Mon Fluvial Flooding
@ Surface Flooding Incidents July '07 Event
Fooding from Sewers
PFoo ding from Other Sources

As can be seen from the legend, the building and the ground immediately surrounding it is
all classified as Flood Zone 3b (developed). Development in Flood Zone 3b (developed)
should be assessed in the same way as development within Flood Zone 3a, where develop-
ment can sometimes be acceptable subject to certain tests being met and provided suita-
ble flood mitigation is provided. When 11/01808/FULL was assessed it was considered that
underfloor voids were a suitable form of flood mitigation.

117



Below is an extract taken from the Eton flood map, taken from the 2017 SFRA. The SFRA is
reviewed on a regular basis in light of improved information regarding flood risk within the
borough, and/or change in government policy. In February 2013 WSP was commissioned to
carry out an update to the SFRA following updated Lower Thames Modelling and the publi-
cation of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the Technical Guidance Note.
The updated SFRA consists of a revised SFRA Level 1 report and an Increased Scope and Se-
quential Testing of Sites report, both published in January 2014. As part of the Borough Lo-
cal Plan preparation the SFRA Level 1 has been updated in 2017 along with the sequential
testing and SFRA level 2.

. Nma g Bl

| RBWM Boundary

—— EA Main Rivers

| Zone 2 Medium Probability
L] Zone 3a High Probability
‘ Zone 3b Developed

Zone 3b Functional Floodplain
!m Areas Benefitting from Defences
smms Flood Defences

“H

As can be seen on the above map, whilst the building itself remains within Flood Zone 3b
(developed), the area surrounding the building has been re-classified as Flood Zone 3b
(functional floodplain). This is in spite of the flood defences shown to the east of the site.
National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) sets out that development should not be al-
lowed within the functional floodplain unless it is for a water compatible use (See figure 1
on the next page). A leisure use such as this is classified as less vulnerable (see figure 2)
and as such is not appropriate within the functional flood plain.

118



Figure 1

Flood |Flood Risk Vulnerability Classification

Zones
Essential Highly More Less Water
infrastructure | vulnerable | vulnerable | vulnerable  compatible
Zone 1|V v v v v
Zone 2 Exception
v Test v v v
required
Zone | Exception Exception
3at Test required | X Test v v
T required

Zone | Exception

/*
3b* Test required * x X

Key:
v" Development is appropriate

X Development should not be permitted.

Fiqure 2

Less vulnerable

* Police, ambulance and fire stations which are not required to be
operational during flooding.

* Buildings used for shops: financial, professional and other services;
restaurants, cafes and hot food takeaways: offices; general industry,
storage and distribution; non-residential institutions not included in the
‘more vulnerable’ class; and assembly and leisure.

* Land and buildings used for agriculture and forestry.
+ Waste treatment (except landfill* and hazardous waste facilities).
« Minerals working and processing (except for sand and gravel working).

« Water treatment works which do not need to remain operational during
times of flood.

« Sewage treatment works, if adequate measures to control pollution and
manage sewage during flooding firsnts are in place.



As can be seen in the figures above the development does not fall within the types of de-
velopment that would be considered acceptable in the functional floodplain. Due to the
changes in the flood maps between 2011 and now, as well as the introduction of the NPPF
and NPPG, it is considered that the current application should not be permitted.

It should be noted that even if the site was assessed as being in Flood Zone 3b (developed)
or Flood Zone 33, insufficient information has been provided to safely conclude that the
loss in flood plain storage would be adequately mitigated for. Paragraph 5.2.7 of the appli-
cants Flood Risk Assessment states that:

‘It is therefore proposed that the extension will incorporate floodable under-floor voids, in

order to compensate for losses in floodplain storage on a ‘level for level’ basis. These voids
should be provided with a base no lower than the existing ground level, and up to the 1 in

100 annual probability +25% climate change flood level of 20.08m AOD. 1m void openings
should be provided at least every 5m all the way around the perimeter of the building’

It is shown on the proposed elevations that these voids will be provided beneath the
squash court, however it is not clear whether the voids will be provided underneath the
external sports equipment store, which has a footprint of 75sgm. It should be noted that
ordinarily voids are not accepted by the borough as a suitable form of flood mitigation as
they can become blocked by flood debris and are often used as a storage area, minimising
their effectiveness. It is likely that flood voids have been allowed at Thames Valley Athletics
Centre in the past as the centre has the resources to ensure these areas are kept clear and
well maintained.

120



Agenda ltem 9

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL PANEL

8 January 2020 Iltem: 9

Application 19/02733/FULL

No.:

Location: 63 The Avenue Wraysbury Staines TW19 5EY

Proposal: Application for demolition of existing dwelling and outbuilding and replacement with
new four bedroom dwelling and car port using existing access.

Applicant: Mr Marston

Agent: Mr Michael Pagliaroli

Parish/Ward:  Wraysbury Parish/Datchet Horton And Wraysbury

If you have a question about this report, please contact: Josey Short on 01628 683960 or at
josey.short@rbwm.gov.uk

1. SUMMARY

11 The proposed replacement dwelling and carport would clearly be materially larger than those
which they would replace and thus would constitute inappropriate development, which is, by
definition, harmful to the Green Belt and should not be approved, unless a case of very special
circumstances (VSC) (paragraph 143, NPPF 2019) is put forward which clearly outweighs the
harm to the Green Belt and any other harm. A case for VSC has been put forward by the
applicant claiming that the property’s permitted developments rights provide a fall-back position.
However, given the single storey nature and limited size of such extensions allowed under
permitted development this is awarded limited weight and would not constitute a case of VSC
which would clearly outweigh the harm to the Green Belt and other harm identified below.

1.2 The proposed scheme would also appear inconsistent with the character of the area by virtue of
the scale, mass and bulk and would appear visually dominant in its location.

1.3 Additionally, the ecological report submitted in support of the application fails to demonstrate
presence or otherwise of protected species that may be affected by the proposed development.

1.4 There are no issues raised relating to neighbouring amenity, flooding, parking and highways, and
trees.

It is recommended the Panel refuses planning permission for the following summarised
reasons (the full reasons are identified in Section 13 of this report):

1. | The development would not constitute an appropriate form of the development in the
Green Belt, for the reason that the new dwelling would clearly be materially larger than the
existing dwelling on site, and it would have a greater impact on the openness of the Green
Belt than the existing development both spatially and visually. Similarly, the proposed
ancillary outbuilding would be materially larger than the outbuilding it would replace. No
VSC has been put forward which would outweigh the harm to the Green Belt and the harm
below.

2. | The proposed development would not maintain the character of the area by virtue of its
proposed scale, mass, bulk and positioning. Additionally, given the close proximity of the
dwelling to the front boundary of the site in combination with the visual quality of the east
elevation, the resultant development would appear visually dominant in this location and as
such would not remain in keeping in this regard

3. | The Ecology Report submitted in support of the application has failed to demonstrate the
existing outbuildings potential to host roosting bats and the impact the proposed scheme
would have on them alongside the protection and mitigation measures proposed to ensure
the safeguarding of the designated sites and habitats that the application site falls within or
within close proximity to.

121



3.1

3.2

5.1

5.2

5.3

54

REASON FOR PANEL DETERMINATION

o At the request of Councillor Bateson as neighbouring residents would like the application to
go to panel because the application has been refused once and they feel that this
development with its changes from the original plans would enhance their neighbourhood.

DESCRIPTION OF THE SITE AND ITS SURROUNDINGS

The application site is located on the south west side of The Avenue within the Green Belt in
Woraysbury. The site backs onto the river and falls within flood zones 3 (high risk).

The site comprises a detached bungalow and detached outbuilding. At the time of the site visit
on 15" July 2017, the front of the site was bounded by 2.5 metre hoarding and accessed via
gates. The street scene of The Avenue is characterised by detached dwellings of varying sizes
and styles.

KEY CONSTRAINTS

i. Floodzones 3
il Green Belt
iii.  Setting of the Thames

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSAL AND ANY RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

The application seeks planning permission for the construction of a replacement dwelling and
detached carport following the demolition of the existing dwelling and outbuilding. The application
site is 0.1 hectares. Amended plans received by the Council on 13.11.2019 show the removal of
the first floor accommodation, associated staircase and front facing dormer from the car port.

The proposed dwelling would provide habitable accommodation over two storeys, providing four
bedrooms, with a ground floor level raised 1.6 metres. The dwelling would have a width of 21.1
metres with the entrance porch and steps adding an additional 2.3 metres. The dwelling would
have a maximum depth of 8.8 metres, set back 1.5 metres from the sites front boundary at its
closest point. The dwelling would encompass a dual pitched roof, with 2 x gable ends fronting the
river, and 4 x gable ends fronting the public realm. The dwelling would have a maximum eaves
height of 4.5 metres and ridge height of 7.99 metres.

The proposed car port and first floor accommodation would be positioned to the south of the site,
between the proposed new dwelling and neighbouring dwelling, No. 61B. The car port would be
open at ground floor, providing parking provision for 2 x vehicles. The building would have a width
of 6.8 metres and depth of 6.3 metres. It would encompass a dual pitched roof with gable ends to
each side, with an eaves height of 2.2 metres and a ridge height of 5.5 metres.

Reference Description Decision
19/01526/FULL Construction of x1 dwelling and | Refused
detached carport with

accommodation in the roofspace,
following demolition of the existing
dwelling and outbuilding.

122



6.1

7.1

7.2

DEVELOPMENT PLAN

Adopted Royal Borough Local Plan (2003)

The main strategic planning considerations applying to the site and the associated policies are:

Issue Adopted Local Plan Policy
Green Belt GB1, GB2 and GB3
Flooding F1
Design in keeping with character and appearance DG1, H10,H11
of area
Highways P4 AND T5

These policies can be found at

https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/downloads/download/154/local plan documents and appendices

MATERIAL PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS

National Planning Policy Framework Sections (NPPF) (2019)

Section 4- Decision—making
Section 12- Achieving well-designed places
Section 13- Protecting Green Belt land

Section 14- Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change

Borough Local Plan: Submission Version

Issue Local Plan Policy
Design in keeping with character and appearance SP2. SP3
of area
Green Belt SP5
Flood Risk NR1

Borough Local Plan: Submission Version Proposed Changes (2019)

Issue Local Plan Policy
Design in keeping with character and appearance QP1,0P3
of area
Green Belt QP5
Flood risk NR1

The NPPF sets out that decision-makers may give weight to relevant policies in emerging plans
according to their stage of preparation. The Borough Local Plan Submission Document was
published in June 2017. Public consultation ran from 30 June to 27 September 2017. Following
this process the Council prepared a report summarising the issues raised in the representations
and setting out its response to them. This report, together with all the representations received
during the representation period, the plan and its supporting documents was submitted to the
Secretary of State for independent examination in January 2018. The Submission Version of the
Borough Local Plan does not form part of the statutory development plan for the Borough.

In December 2018, the examination process was paused to enable the Council to undertake
additional work to address soundness issues raised by the Inspector. Following completion of
that work, in October 2019 the Council approved a series of Proposed Changes to the BLPSV.
Public consultation ran from 1 November to 15 December 2019. All representations received will
be reviewed by the Council to establish whether further changes are necessary before the

123


https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/downloads/download/154/local_plan_documents_and_appendices

7.3

7.4

Proposed Changes are submitted to the Inspector. In due course the Inspector will resume the
Examination of the BLPSV. The BLPSV and the BLPSV together with the Proposed Changes are
therefore material considerations for decision-making. However, given the above both should be

given limited weight.

These documents can be found at;
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/blp

Supplementary Planning Documents
e RBWM Interpretation of Policy F1
Other Local Strategies or Publications

Other Strategies or publications relevant to the proposal are:
o RBWM Townscape Assessment
o RBWM Parking Strategy

More information on these documents can be found at;
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/info/200414/local development framework/494/supplementary planni
ng

CONSULTATIONS CARRIED OUT

Comments from interested parties

Two occupiers were notified directly of the application.

The planning officer posted a notice advertising the application at the site on 22/10/2019.

No letters were received supporting or objecting to the application.

Statutory consultees

Where in the
Consultee Comment report this is
considered
Highways The proposal raises no highway concerns Noted. Please
see paragraphs
9.19-9.22
Environment The proposed development will be acceptable if the | Noted. Please
Agency following conditions are included on the planning | see paragraphs

permission decision notice. Without these conditions, the | 9.2 -9.4
EA would object to the proposal due to its adverse impact
on the environment. The conditions relate to the
development being carried out in accordance with the
submitted FRA and a pre commencement condition
requiring a method statement.

Environmental | Recommended that if planning permission is granted in | Noted. Please
Protection this instance that conditions attached to the decision | see paragraph
notice relating to aircraft noise, construction site working | 9.27

hours, collection during construction and demolition.
Informatives relating to smoke and dust control also
recommended,

124


https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/blp
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/info/200414/local_development_framework/494/supplementary_planning
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/info/200414/local_development_framework/494/supplementary_planning

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

Consultees

Where in the
Consultee Comment report this is
considered
Parish No objection subject to compliance with local policies. Noted. Please
Council However, there are concerns for the proposed height of the see paragraphs
development 9.5-9.15

EXPLANATION OF RECOMMENDATION
The key issues for consideration are:
[ Impact on flooding

ii Impact on Green Belt
iii Impact on the character of the area and locality in general

iv Impact on neighbour amenity
v Parking and highways

Vi Ecology

Vi Trees

viii Other material considerations
Flooding

The application site is located within flood zone 3 (High Risk). As there is an existing dwelling on
site, the principle of replacing it is considered to be acceptable. Paragraph 164, footnote 50 of
the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (July 2018) requires development within flood
zone 3 defined as having a ‘high probability’ of flooding from rivers to submit a site specific flood
risk assessment (FRA) to ensure that flood risk is not being increased on site or elsewhere. This
position is supported by Policy F1 of the Local Plan. Policy F1 allows development which has a
ground covered area (GCA) of not more than 30 square metres provided there have been no
previous developments which required planning permission from 1978. Policy F1 of the Local
Plan states that development will not be permitted for new residential development that exceeds
30 sg. metres. Paragraph 2.4.7 of this policy states;- “The 30 sg. metres will be taken to include
all additions completed since 26 September 1978 (the date the council first adopted the flood
policy) which required express planning permission. Detached ancillary buildings within the
curtilage of a property such as garages, sheds, greenhouses, boathouses, summerhouses or
enclosed swimming pools will all count as additions where they result from the grant of planning
permission.” Paragraph 2.4.9 of Policy F1 states that the use of pier foundations will not be
acceptable as a means of overcoming an objection to the proposal on the grounds of Policy F1
as as it can result in problems from the inability of the Local Authority to ensure that the voids are
not obstructed by domestic effects or flooding debris.

As measured from submitted drawing no. 1231 — EX 01, it is calculated that the sites existing
GCA is 171.87 sq. metres (original dwelling; - 96.02 sg. metres, extension — 20.1 metres &
outbuilding;- 55.75 sg. metres). Though it is noted that the proposal includes a detached carport,
given that this is open on all sides, it would not contribute towards the proposed GCA in line with
Appendix 6 : Calculating Ground Covered Area (GCA) of the Interpretation of Policy F1 SPG
(2004). With this taken into account, the proposed GCA of the dwelling would be 162.78 sq.
metres and thus would be 9.09 sq. metres less than that which is existing on site, resulting in a
betterment. As such there is no objection raised with regard to Policy F1.

Additional regard is also had for the comments received from the Environment Agency who

consider that the scheme is acceptable subject to conditions requiring the development to be
carried out in accordance with the submitted FRA.

125



9.5

9.6

9.7

9.8

9.9

Green Belt

Policy GB1 of the Local Plan lists the types of new buildings that are appropriate forms of
development in the Green Belt; this includes residential development in accordance with Policy
GB3. Policy GB3 relates specifically to new dwellings in the Green Belt and allows for the one-
for-one replacement of an existing dwelling provided it is not materially larger or would result in a
material alteration to the scale of development on site. Paragraph 145 of the National Planning
Policy Framework (February 2019) sets out the types of buildings that are not inappropriate
development in the Green Belt. Included in this list is “the replacement of a building, provided the
new building is in the same use and not materially larger than the one it replaces.”

The table below sets out the parameters of both the existing dwelling and that which is proposed
as a point of comparison;-

Existing Proposed
Total usable floorspace 116.12 sqg. metres (dwelling | 317.94 sg. metres (excludes
(dwelling) and existing extension as balconies)

measured from submitted
drawing 1231 — EX 01)

Additional floorspace 55.75 sg. metres (single | 34.16 sq. metres (maximum

(outbuilding) storey — maximum height 3.2 | height 5.5 metres — potential to
metres) provide a further 18.3 sq.

metres in the roof space)

Maximum ridge height of 5 metres 7.995 metres

dwelling

Maximum eaves height of 3 metres 4.5 metres

dweeling

With the above taken into account, on floor space alone, the proposed dwelling would result in an
increase of 173% from that of the sites existing dwelling. However, it is noted that floorspace is
not the sole determining factor when assessing if a development is materially larger than that
which it replaces. The term materially larger concerns more than simply floorspace, and as such
an assessment of whether it is materially larger relates to the overall scale, mass and bulk of the
proposal in comparison to that which is being replaced. Therefore, regard must be had to issues
such as bulk, height, volume and mass too. The existing site comprises a single storey dwelling
with 1 detached outbuilding which is also single storey in nature. The proposed replacement
dwelling would provide habitable accommodation over 2 floors and would also include a raised
ground floor level (to accommodate flooding issues). The resultant dwelling would be just short of
3 metres taller than the existing and thus would be significantly greater in height than that which it
replaces. This increase in height, mass and bulk would have a detrimental impact on the existing
open and spacious nature at the application site. It is also noted that the proposed car port would
have a height 2.3 metres greater than the site’s existing outbuilding.

Mindful of this it is considered that both the replacement dwelling and ancillary outbuilding would
clearly have a materially greater volume, mass and bulk than those which are existing, and
consequently, in all senses of the words would be materially larger than the existing. As such, the
proposed replacement dwelling and outbuilding would be inappropriate development in the Green
Belt location which, as stated by paragraph 145 of the NPPF, is by definition harmful to the Green
Belt and should not be approved except in very special circumstances (VSC).

VSC will not exist unless other considerations clearly outweigh the harm to the Green Belt and
other harm. In this instance, the Design Statement submitted in support of the proposed
application states a case for VSC due to the permitted development fall-back position of the site,
with the developments specifically mentioned including;-

126



9.10

9.11

9.12

9.13

9.14

9.15

e The conversion of the existing attic space up to 50 cubic metres which would increase the
floor area by 13 sq. metres
e A 30sg. metre extension/decking

With the above taken into account, whilst it is recognised that the site does have a permitted
development fall-back position which would extend the footprint of the existing dwellinghouse, it is
considered that the impact on the Green Belt would be limited due to the single storey height and
depth restrictions which are imposed under the General Permitted Development Order. As such it
is considered that this fall-back position would not clearly outweigh the harm which would be
caused to the openness of the Green Belt by the proposed scheme which significantly adds to
the mass and bulk of built form at first floor level and the other harm outlined in this report.
Additionally, whilst it is noted that the roofspace of the existing dwelling could be converted to
habitable accommodation, it is noted that this would not have a greater impact on the openness
of the Green Belt as the dwelling and roofspace are already in situ.

In this case the applicant has failed to demonstrate VSC which would outweigh the harm to the
Green Belt and none are apparent. Therefore the proposal is contrary to Policy GB1, GB2 and
GB3 of the Councils Local Plan and paragraph 145 of the NPPF.

Character

National Planning Policy Framework Section 12 (Achieving well-designed places) and Local Plan
Policy DG1 advises that all development should seek to achieve a high quality of design that
improves the character and quality of an area. The street scene of The Avenue is characterised
by detached dwellings of varying scales and styles. Whilst part of the street scene is
characterised by 1.5 storey dwellings, it is noted that the application site is located in a more
varied part of the street scene. With this taken into account, it is considered that the principle of
constructing a replacement dwelling and ancillary outbuilding in this location would remain in
keeping.

The proposal is for a detached two storey dwelling which is raised at ground level by 1.6 metres.
The dwelling would encompass a large pitched roof with 4 gables fronting the street scene of The
Avenue. The west elevation, which would front the river, would encompass a large amount of
glazing whilst the east elevation would be largely free of glazing, finished in ivory render with
timber cladding and a grey slate roof. The application form details that the proposed boundary
treatment would be 1.8 metre timber fencing. The dwelling would have an overall width of 22.4
metres (inclusive of the porch), and height of 7.995 metres and as such would be visible when
viewed from the public realm.

By virtue of the overall scale, mass and bulk of the proposed dwelling in combination with the
close proximity to the front boundary of the site, the proposed dwelling and garage would be
visually prominent from the public realm. Whilst it is noted that the street scene comprises a
range of styles and varies between dwellings of one and two storey’s, it is considered that the
proposed dwelling would be of a larger scale than other 2 storey dwellings within the immediate
locality and as such would appear inconsistent in this regard. The dwellings east elevation would
front the public realm and the roof form would encompass 4 x gables. It is considered that the
design of this roof form itself would appear bulky and over dominant, particularly given the overall
height and width of the proposed dwelling. Additionally, this elevation would contain few window
openings and thus no architectural features or interest to break up the render and cladding. With
this taken into consideration in combination with the overall width and height of the elevation, it is
deemed that the resultant dwelling would appear incongruous and overbearing and in turn would
have a detrimental impact on the character of the area and locality in general.

With the above taken into account, it is considered that the proposed works would have an
adverse impact on the character of the street scene and locality in general and thus would be

127



9.16

9.17

9.18

9.19

9.20

9.21

9.22

9.23

9.24

contrary to policies DG1, H10 and H11 of the Councils Local Plan, alongside section 12 of the
NPPF (February 2019).

Neighbour Amenity

The site benefits from a wide plot and the proposed dwelling would be positioned centrally on it
preventing any harm to either neighbouring property with regard to loss of light or over bearing
impact. Furthermore the proposed car port is sited sufficiently off the side boundary to prevent
any harm to the neighbours’ amenities.

The proposed dwelling would not encompass any first floor side facing windows and in
combination with the distance from the north and south flanks, it is considered that the proposal
would not result in overlooking or a loss of privacy to the nearest neighbouring dwellings.

With the above taken into account, it is considered that the proposal complies with paragraph 127
(f) of the NPPF.

Highways and parking provision

The Avenue is a cul de sac classified as a private road comprising of residential buildings and
junctions with B376 Welley Road. The site is located approximately 370metres from Sunnymeads
Railway Station. Under the current Council Parking Strategy, accessibility to public transport is
considered to be good.

The Design & Access statement submitted as part of this proposal suggests that 1.8 metres high
timber fencing may be erected to the boundary on either side of the entrance access. Access to
the proposed development will be via the existing vehicular access. No additional access is
required. The new four-bedroom dwelling has the potential to generate 4 to 8 vehicle movements
per day. This is not expected to have a detrimental impact on the local road network. The
proposal indicates that the car port will be used to store bicycles, which the highway authority
offers no objection to. The proposal indicate that the site parking area will be used to
accommodate the refuse bins, which the highway authority offers no objection to.

The proposed car port will provide parking for two vehicles, which satisfies the requirements of
the Council’s current parking strategy that a minimum of two parking spaces should be provided
for four bedroomed dwelling in areas of good accessibility. However, as per the amended plan
received by the Council on 13.11.2019, the proposed car port would fail to meet the minimum
specification for parking spaces within a garage which would be 6 metre x 6 metres in the case of
a double garage/ car port in line with the RBWM Parking Strategy (2004). Nonetheless, it has
also been observed that the parking area proposed to the front of the car port can accommodate
the required parking provision for the proposed dwelling.

With the above taken into account, the proposal would comply with policies T5 and P4 of the
Councils Local Plan.

Ecology

The application site is within 500m of the South West London Waterbodies Special Protection
Area (SPA) Ramsar, Wraysbury No 1 Gravel Pit Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI) and
several Local Wildlife Sites, one of which is adjacent to the site to the north. In addition, the site is
located adjacent to the River Thames. Rivers are listed as habitats of principal importance under
Section 41 of the NERC Act 2006, i.e. they require conservation action and are regarded as
‘Priority Habitat’ as per the NPPF. A Phase 1 Ecological Assessment (Peach Ecology, May 2019)
has been submitted in support of the application.

An amended ecology report was received by the Council on 23 November 2019 subsequent to
the consultee comments for the ecology report initially submitted. The Councils ecology officer

128



9.25

9.26

9.27

10.

10.1

11.

111

11.2

11.3

was consulted on the revised report. The report confirms that the shed to be demolished is not
suitable for use by roosting bats. Though it is noted that the report states that windows along the
river frontage will have glazing to reduce glare which would be confirmed at the condition stage,
however the elevations illustrate that the windows within the elevation fronting the river would be
extensive and as such, the details of the type of glazing and how this will minimise glare would be
required prior to the determination of the application.

Without this information the council are unable to determine to what extent bats and the adjacent
River Thames will be affected by the proposals and as such the scheme fails to comply with
paragraph 175 of the NPPF (Feb 2019) and Policy NR1 of the Councils Local Plan and NR3 of
the emerging Borough Local Plan 2013 -2033 submission version.

Trees

The application site does not fall within a TPO area or have any TPO trees on the site. The
proposal would not have any tree or landscaping implications.

Other Material Considerations

The conditions and informatives recommended by Environmental Protection are noted. However,
it is considered that it would not be necessary to condition construction working hours and
collection during construction and demolition, and as such, these conditions would fail the six
part test as set out within section 55 of the NPPF (2019). Mindful of this, these conditions will be
included as informatives in the event of planning permission being granted in this instance.

COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY (CIL)

The development is CIL liable. The proposed floorspace of the dwellings is 291.2 sqg. metres.

CONCLUSION

The proposed scheme would have a GCA 9.09 sg. metres less than that which is existing on site
and thus would result in a betterment with regard to flooding. With this taken into account, the
scheme would comply with policy F1 of the Councils Local Plan. Similarly, it is considered that
the proposed parking would be sufficient in line with the RBWM Parking Standards, and as such
would comply with policy P4 of the Councils Local Plan. The proposed works would not
encompass any tree or landscaping implications nor there be any harm to neighbouring amenity.

The proposed replacement dwelling and carport would however be materially larger than those
which they would replace. Therefore, the proposal would constitute inappropriate development,
which is, by definition, harmful to the Green Belt and should not be approved, unless a case of
very special circumstances (VSC) (paragraph 143, NPPF 2019) is put forward which clearly
outweighs the harm to the Green Belt and any other harm. A case for VSC has been put forward
as the existing building benefits from permitted development rights and thus has a fall-back
position as small extensions could be constructed. However, given the single storey nature of this
fall-back position, this is awarded limited weight.

The proposed scheme would also appear inconsistent with the character of the area by virtue of
the scale, mass and bulk and would appear visually dominant in its location and thus would fail to
comply with policies DG1, H10 and H11 of the Councils Local Plan, alongside Section 12 of the
NPPF.

Additionally, the ecological report submitted in support of the application fails to demonstrate to
what extent bats and the adjacent River Thames will be affected by the glazing within the rear

129



12.

13.

elevation of the proposed dwelling. As such, the scheme fails to comply with paragraph 175 of
the NPPF (Feb 2019) and Policy NR1 of the Councils Local Plan and NR3 of the emerging
Borough Local Plan 2013 -2033 submission version. With the above taken into account, it is
considered that the VSC put forward would not outweigh the harm to the Green Belt or other
harm which would be caused as a result of the proposed development.

APPENDICES TO THIS REPORT

o Appendix A - Site location plan and site layout
o Appendix B — plan and elevation dwelling
e Appendix C — plans and elevations garage

REASONS RECOMMENDED FOR REFUSAL IF PERMISSION IS NOT GRANTED

The proposed replacement dwelling and ancillary building, by reason of a combination of its
proposed scale, height, bulk and volume, would be materially larger than the ones they would
replace, thereby amounting to inappropriate development within the Green Belt. Inappropriate
development is by definition harmful to the Green Belt and any harm to the Green Belt should be
given substantial weight and should not be approved expect in very special circumstances. It is
not considered that any very special circumstances exist in this case that would outweigh the
harm to the Green Belt and the harm identified in the following reasons for refusal The proposal is
therefore contrary to paragraphs 133, 143, 144 and 146 of the National Planning Policy
Framework (NPPF)(February 2019), the provisions of saved Policies GB1 and GB2 of the Royal
Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Local Plan (Incorporating Alterations adopted June 2003)
and policy SP5 of the emerging Borough Local Plan Submission Version.

The proposed development would not maintain the character of the area by virtue of its proposed
scale, mass bulk and positioning. Additionally, given the close proximity of the dwelling to the
front boundary of the site in combination with the visual quality of the east elevation, the resultant
development would appear visually dominant in this location as such would not remain in keeping
in this regard. As such it is considered that the proposal would be contrary to policies DG1, H10
and H11 of the Councils Local Plan and Section 12 of the NPPF (February 2019).

The scheme failes to demonstrate the adequate protection and mitigation measures proposed to
ensure the safeguarding of the designated sites and habitats that the application site falls within
or within close proximity to. As such the proposal is contrary to saved local plan policies NR1,
NR3 and NR4 of the emerging Borough Local Plan (Submission Version) and paragraph 175 of
the NPPF (February 2019).

130



Appendix A — Location Plan

N\,

N\ AN
%

NS

Ordnance Survey (¢) Crown Copyright 2018. All rights resefved. Licence number

Site Location Plan %@

Scale 1:1250 |

131



Proposed Block Plan

\ N
:’:tc;ter j \\ MP 0.75 \
, e N
o A
RRRRT
~

aw

Ordnance Survey (c) Crown Copyright 2018. All rights reserved. Licence number 100022432

Proposed Block Plan

Scale 1:500

132



Appendix B — Proposed Floor Plans

] =_:, - l Er‘\‘trancs Hall
1 OZI

: ' GIA - 141sgm : !
Proposed Ground Floor Plan

= F
O
@ Bathroom @
 —
En-Suit ol / = En-Sutte
Landing

— | — 1, I — | —
Qq
&/

Bedroom Bedroom

‘ Balcony GlA - ]27-4 Sqm

Proposed First Floor Plan

133




Append

ix C— Proposed Elevations

17.30

Proposed West Elevation

Scale 1:100

Proposed East Elevation

134




17.30
AV

Proposed North Elevation

17.30
Z

Proposed South Elevation

135



This page is intentionally left blank



WINDSOR

Agenda ltem 10

7

=

>

0

o0

£

2 C

"8' Q»%I\'@L‘) 1
z | Royal Borough
2 of Windsor &
2 Maidenhead

Planning Appeals Received

26 November 2019 - 20 December 2019

The appeals listed below have been received by the Council and will be considered by the Planning Inspectorate.
Should you wish to make additional/new comments in connection with an appeal you can do so on the Planning
Inspectorate website at https://acp.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/ please use the Plns reference number. If you do
not have access to the Internet please write to the relevant address, shown below.

Enforcement appeals: The Planning Inspectorate, Temple Quay House, 2 The Square, Temple Quay, Bristol,

BS1 6PN

Other appeals: The Planning Inspectorate Temple Quay House, 2 The Square Bristol BS1 6PN

Ward:
Parish:
Appeal Ref.:

Date Received:

Type:
Description:
Location:
Appellant:

Ward:
Parish:
Appeal Ref.:

Date Received:

Type:
Description:

Location:
Appellant:

Sunningdale Parish

19/60118/REF Planning Ref.:  18/03524/FULL Pins Ref.:  APP/T0355/W/19/
3238418
27 November 2019 Comments Due: 1 January 2020

Refusal

Detached 4 bedroom dwelling
Land Adjacent Cherry Tree Cottage Bedford Lane Sunningdale Ascot

Mr Derek Lamb c/o Agent: Mr Christian Leigh Leigh & Glennie Ltd 6 All Souls Road Ascot
SL5 9EA

Appeal Type: Written Representation

Windsor Unparished

19/60120/ENF Enforcement 17/50230/ENF Pins Ref.:  APP/T0355/C/19/
Ref.: 3234518
2 December 2019 Comments Due: 27 January 2020

Enforcement Appeal Appeal Type: Written Representation
Appeal against the Enforcement notice: Without planning permission, the erection of a
single storey rear extension and attached lean to.

91 Kentons Lane Windsor SL4 4JH

Dajinder Pal Singh Goraya c/o Agent: Mr Syed Naqvi DOTS Architectural Services Ltd 45
New Road Uxbridge UB8 3DY

137


https://acp.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/

WINDSOR

Appeal Ref.:
Appellant:
Decision Type:

Description:

Location:

Appeal Decision:

www.rbwm.gov.uk

kq\l%}\'&ry) D
Royal Borough
of Windsor &
.. Maidenhead
Appeal Decision Report
26 November 2019 - 20 December 2019
18/60136/REF Planning Ref.: 18/02492/TPO Pins Ref.. APP/TPO/T0355/

7066

Mr Steve Wood - SMW (Tree) Consultancy Ltd c/o Agent: Mr Stephen M Wood SMW (Tree)
Consultancy Ltd 3 Orchard Close Blackwater Camberley GU17 9EX

Delegated

(T7) Oak T7 - Extra Over mature - Air Spade Root investigation and root analysis of soil area
within the proposed foundation area to establish what root activity is present and its species.
(TPO 50 of 2006)

Land Adjacent Wellington House Rise Road Ascot

Officer Recommendation: Refuse

Dismissed Decision Date: 28 November 2019

Main Issue: The Inspector concluded that the appeal trees as a whole have a significant impact on the
local environment and it's enjoyment by the public. As such, any works, which disturb the
rooting medium of any of the vegetation, leading to the loss of saplings and seedlings, would
significantly diminish the character and appearance of the area.

Appeal Ref.: 19/60033/REF Planning Ref.: 18/03079/TPO PIns Ref.:  APP/TPO/T0355/

7297
Appellant: G McShane c/o Agent: Mr Paul Warrener Branch Management 110 Bagshot Green Bagshot

Decision Type:

Description:

Location:

Appeal Decision:

Main Issue:

Surrey GU19 5JT

Partial
Refusal/Partial
Approval

Officer Recommendation:

(T1) - Turkey Oak - Remove selected lower branches to raise canopy up to 6 - 8 metres from
ground level and reduce over extending branches in length throughout the remainder of the
canopy by 2 - 3 metres. (T2,4,5) - Oak - Reduce in length by 2 - 3 metres the branches that
are growing toward the house. (T3) - Sweet Chestnut - Reduce in length by 2 - 3 metres the
branches that are growing toward the house.. (TPO 16 of 1985).

6 Martingales Close Ascot SL5 9FQ

Dismissed Decision Date: 29 November 2019

The Inspector concluded that the Council has taken account of the shading to the rear
garden complained of and they have granted consent for reasonable reduction works which
would be in accord with best practice. There is no justification for the pruning works
proposed.

138



139



Appeal Ref.:
Appellant:

Decision Type:
Description:

Location:

Appeal Decision:

19/60073/REF Planning Ref.: 18/02651/LBC Pins Ref.:  APP/T0355/Y/19/
3229172

Mr John Clark c/o Agent: Mr Robert Wilson Granit Chartered Architects Unit 18 - 19 16
Porteus Place London SW4 0AS

Delegated Officer Recommendation:  Refuse

Consent to undertake internal alterations to the lower ground floor comprising; replacement
floor, close and fix shut the opening from WC to kitchen, reinstate basement/sink et al,
drainage to a below-ground connector, reconnect waste pipes, wall removal, enlarge existing
openings to stair, alterations to existing joinery/and existing spindles.

6 Queens Terrace Kings Road Windsor SL4 2AR
Dismissed Decision Date: 27 November 2019

140



Main Issue:

6 Queens Terrace forms part of a terrace of 9 dwellings. The buildings are 3 storey and set
back from the road by a forecourt. The group is Jacobean in design and constructed in brick
of varying colours, with prominent gabled fronts to each dwelling. The windows have stone
mullions and distinctive honeycomb glazing. The building is believed to have been designed
by Samuel Teulon and is Grade Il listed. Whilst the listing does not provide details of the
interior, it is understood that some of the properties in the terrace have been reconfigured
internally. The significance in the asset lies in the fact that it forms part of a well-preserved
wider group, and as an attractive surviving example of a building of its type by a prominent
architect. 7. The proposal comprises the removal of the internal walls between the existing
internal hallway, and the adjoining dining room and kitchen. It is acknowledged that the
internal hierarchy of the building would have attributed less importance to the basement and
attic, as servants’ quarters. The floorplan has likely already been altered, with the inclusion of
a WC underneath the stairs, and the likely removal of at least one partition wall within the
space inhabited by the existing kitchen. Nevertheless, the cellular layout is an important
characteristic of the space. The further alteration of the space would remove the kitchen wall
almost entirely, and whilst the original line of the wall would be discernible in the remaining
"nibs", the absence of separation would nonetheless erode the plan form and with it, some of
the historic character of this part of the house. It would also lead to a loss of historic fabric.
Both these factors would cause harm to the significance of the heritage asset. 8. With
regard to the removal of the dining room wall, the submitted plans show the partial removal
of this structure with the retention of the internal window by means of a steel support. As a
result, the window would "float" above an empty space, allowing views of the staircase and
open kitchen behind. The retention of the window in this manner would appear contrived and
the steel support would introduce an incongruous element. This would fail to preserve the
character of this part of the building, or its architectural interest, and would also involve the
loss of historic fabric. 9. The Inspector advised that other properties in the terrace have had
the walls identified above removed at basement level. For this reason, the Council did not
object to the removal of the kitchen wall. The Inspector is not aware of the circumstances,
which led to these or other approvals for such works along the terrace. As each proposal
must be treated on its own merits, and having regard to the statutory duty under the Act, she
does not consider the precedent to be justification in itself. The erosion of the original plan
form of the other basements adds some weight to the need to preserve remaining examples
of the original plan where appropriate. 10. The works are internal and so would have only
limited impact on the external appearance of the building. Due to the level of the front
basement window, the front facade would be unaffected and although the greater openness
of the ground floor would be evident in views into the basement at the rear, the position of
the existing garden extension limits the extent of such views. This matter does not therefore
add to the harm identified. 11. The harm identified would amount to "less than substantial
harm" which the Framework advises must be weighed against the public benefits of the
scheme. The works are intended to improve the existing accommodation and so secure its
optimum viable use. The Inspector had no convincing evidence that the existing
accommodation is deficient, or that the existing layout prohibits the effective or comfortable
use of the asset as a family home. The Inspector therefore gives no weight to this matter as
a public benefit. It has also been put to her that the removal of the walls is also intended to
allow more light into the central area of the floorplan. Having regard to the depth of the
relevant rooms, any increase in light is likely to be very low, if any, and so attributes this
matter no weight. 12. The appellant has identified a number of heritage benefits, which
would arise if the scheme was implemented in its entirety. These include the removal of
inappropriate cornicing and radiators, removal of ceiling speakers and MDF cupboards, the
reinstatement of a door to the sitting room and the reuse of part of the floorplan for storage,
in line with its probable historical use. Most of these changes could be carried out without
also removing the walls as proposed and in any case, whilst the cumulative effect of these
minor alterations may be positive, they would not, taken together, outweigh the harm arising
from the removal of historic fabric and erosion of plan form that would arise from the scheme.
13. The Framework is clear that heritage assets are an irreplaceable resource and that in
considering the impact of development on the significance of heritage assets, great weight
should be given to the asset's conservation. The Inspector therefore attributes great weight
to the harm, which would arise to the significance of the asset and conclude that the limited
public benefits identified would not outweigh this harm. It follows that the proposal fails to
comply with national policy outlined in the Framework and with policy LB2 of the Local Plan.

141



Appeal Ref.:
Appellant:
Decision Type:

Description:

Location:

Appeal Decision:

Main Issue:

19/60095/REF Planning Ref.: 19/00596/CPD Pins Ref.:  APP/T0355/X/19/
3227351

Mr & Mrs Dimbylow c/o Agent: Mr Cameron Lloyd CAD UP Ltd Landmark House Station
Road Hook RG27 9HA

Delegated Officer Recommendation:  Refuse

Certificate of lawfulness to determine whether the proposed L-shaped rear dormer and 2no.
front rooflights following the removal of existing 2no. rear dormer windows and 1no. front
rooflight is lawful.

307 St Leonards Road Windsor SL4 3DR
Allowed Decision Date: 5 December 2019

The Inspector considers that the proposed L-shaped former is one discrete operation, not
separate out its constituent parts. The proposed L-shaped dormer would be a single
structure, and so as a matter of fact and degree, it would be an enlargement which joins the
main roof to the roof of the outrigger and conditions B.2 (b)(i)(aa) and B2(b)(ii) do not apply.

142



	Agenda
	2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
	LOCAL GOVERNMENT.docx access to info.pdf
	Declaring Interests at Meetings (Oct 2015).pdf
	Insert from: "APRIL 2017_Govt access and declarations of interest.pdf"
	LOCAL GOVERNMENT.docx access to info.pdf
	Declaring Interests at Meetings (Oct 2015).pdf


	3 MINUTES
	4 19/00063/FULL - STEVENS YARD, KIMBERS LANE FARM, OAKLEY GREEN ROAD, WINDSOR SL4 4QF
	5 19/01555/FULL - DATCHET COMMON, HORTON ROAD, DATCHET, SLOUGH
	6 19/02007/FULL - LEGOLAND WINDSOR RESORT, WINKFIELD ROAD, WINDSOR SL4 4AY
	7 19/02017/FULL - LAND AT DATCHET COMMON, HORTON ROAD, DATCHET, SLOUGH
	8 19/02073/FULL - THAMES VALLEY ATHLETICS CENTRE, POCOCKS LANE, ETON, WINDSOR SL4 6HN
	9 19/02733/FULL - 63 THE AVENUE, WRAYSBURY, STAINES TW19 5EY
	10 ESSENTIAL MONITORING REPORTS (MONITORING)

